
City of Capitola Agenda

Mayor: Ed Bottorff
Vice Mayor: Stephanie Harlan
Council Members: Jacques Bertrand

Dennis Norton
Michael Termini

Treasurer: Christine McBroom

REVISED

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING

THURSDAY, APRIL 14, 2016

7:00 PM

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
420 CAPITOLA AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA  95010

City of Capitola                                Page 1                       Updated 4/18/2016 11:38 AM

All correspondences received prior to 5:00 p.m. on the Wednesday preceding a Council 
Meeting will be distributed to Councilmembers to review prior to the meeting.  Information 
submitted after 5 p.m. on that Wednesday may not have time to reach Councilmembers, nor 
be read by them prior to consideration of an item.

All matters listed on the Regular Meeting of the Capitola City Council Agenda shall be 
considered as Public Hearings.

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Council Members Dennis Norton, Stephanie Harlan, Jacques Bertrand, Michael Termini and 
Mayor Ed Bottorff

2. PRESENTATIONS

A. Introduction of Sergeant Mark Gonzalez and Senior Officer Sara Ryan 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: None.

3. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
Additional information submitted to the City after distribution of the agenda packet.

A. Item 9.B. Public Communications regarding Design Permit for 4980 Garnet Street 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
April 14, 2016

City of Capitola                                Page 2 Updated 4/18/2016 11:38 AM

4. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Oral Communications allows time for members of the Public to address the City Council on 
any item not on the Agenda.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes per speaker.   
Individuals may not speak more than once during Oral Communications.  All speakers must 
address the entire legislative body and will not be permitted to engage in dialogue. All 
speakers are requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so 
that their name may be accurately recorded in the minutes.  A MAXIMUM of 30 MINUTES is 
set aside for Oral Communications at this time.

6. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS
City Council Members/City Treasurer/Staff may comment on matters of a general nature or 
identify issues for staff response or future council consideration.

7. REPORT FROM CITY REPRESENTATIVES TO REGIONAL BOARDS / COMMISSIONS

8. CONSENT CALENDAR
All items listed in the “Consent Calendar” will be enacted by one motion in the form listed 
below.  There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council 
votes on the action unless members of the public or the City Council request specific items 
to be discussed for separate review.  Items pulled for separate discussion will be considered 
following General Government.

Note that all Ordinances which appear on the public agenda shall be determined to have 
been read by title and further reading waived.

A. Consider the March 24, 2016, Regular City Council Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Minutes.

B. Receive Planning Commission Action Minutes for the Special Meetings of March 17 
and March 31, 2016 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Minutes.

C. Award Construction Contract to Monterey Peninsula Engineering for the Rosedale 
Area Paving Project 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Award a contract to Monterey Peninsula Engineering for 
the Rosedale Area Paving Project with a bid in the amount of $228,676.50 for 
construction of the Rosedale Avenue Paving Project, and authorize the Public Works 
Director to add a section of Plum Street from Rosedale Avenue to the Brookvale 
Terrace Mobile Home Park into the project at an estimated cost of $12,000.

D. Approve Contract Change Order No. 1 for the Stockton and Esplanade Improvement 
Project 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. Approve Contract Change Order No. 1 for the Stockton Avenue and 
Esplanade Intersection Improvements in the amount of $44,645 for the 
addition of sidewalk adjacent the David Lyng Real Estate office at the corner 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
April 14, 2016

City of Capitola                                Page 3 Updated 4/18/2016 11:38 AM

of Stockton Avenue and Capitola Avenue; and

2. Authorize and budget amendment receiving unanticipated revenue in the 
amount of $10,000 from David Lyng for this project; and

3. Authorize the transfer of $34,645 within the Capital Improvement Fund to 
cover the balance of this change order with funding coming from the Village 
Sidewalk Cooperative Project funding bank.

E. Professional Services Agreement with Ben Noble: Urban and Regional Planning for 
the Zoning Code Update 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement 
with Ben Noble Urban and Regional Planning in the amount of $26,110 for 
completion of the Zoning Code Update.  

9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
General Government items are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of 
each item listed.  The following procedure is followed for each General Government item:  1) 
Staff explanation; 2) Council questions; 3) Public comment; 4) Council deliberation; 5) 
Decision.

A. Accept Report on the Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Wharf Resiliency 
Study (Study) and Provide Direction to Staff 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept the Study and provide direction to staff on a 10-
year plan of improvements for the Capitola Wharf.

B. Appeal of a Planning Commission Approval of a Design Permit and Variance for a 
Garage Addition to a Single-family Home Located at 4980 Garnet Street 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Uphold the Planning Commission’s decision to approve 
the project as conditioned.

C. Consider a Wharf House Lease Extension 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Give staff direction on the terms of the Wharf House 
Lease Extension and whether to prepare a competitive proposal process for the 
facility.

10. ADJOURNMENT
 
Note: Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in 
which, by law, a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the discretion in 
the determination of facts is vested in the City Council, shall be required to commence that court action 
within ninety (90) days following the date on which the decision becomes final as provided in Code of 
Civil Procedure §1094.6. Please refer to code of Civil Procedure §1094.6 to determine how to calculate 
when a decision becomes “final.” Please be advised that in most instances the decision become “final” 
upon the City Council’s announcement of its decision at the completion of the public hearing. Failure to 
comply with this 90-day rule will preclude any person from challenging the City Council decision in 
court.

Notice regarding City Council: The City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month 
at 7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.), in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 
Capitola Avenue, Capitola.



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
April 14, 2016

City of Capitola                                Page 4 Updated 4/18/2016 11:38 AM

Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials: The City Council Agenda and the complete Agenda Packet 
are available for review on the City’s website: www.cityofcapitola.org and at Capitola City Hall and at 
the Capitola Branch Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, prior to the meeting. Agendas are also 
available at the Capitola Post Office located at 826 Bay Avenue, Capitola. Need more information? 
Contact the City Clerk’s office at 831-475-7300.

Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet: Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet 
are available for public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
California, during normal business hours.

Americans with Disabilities Act: Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons 
with a disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990. Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting 
in the City Council Chambers. Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting 
due to a disability, please contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24-hours in advance of the meeting at 
831-475-7300. In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are 
requested to refrain from wearing perfumes and other scented products.

Televised Meetings: City Council meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter Communications Cable TV 
Channel 8 and are recorded to be rebroadcasted at 8:00 a.m. on the Wednesday following the 
meetings and at 1:00 p.m. on Saturday following the first rebroadcast on Community Television of 
Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25). Meetings are streamed “Live” on 
the City’s website at www.cityofcapitola.org by clicking on the Home Page link “Meeting Video.” 
Archived meetings can be viewed from the website at anytime.

http://www.cityofcapitola.org
http://www.cityofcapitola.org


CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF APRIL 14, 2016

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Introduction of Sergeant Mark Gonzalez and Senior Officer Sara Ryan 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: None.

DISCUSSION: Sergeant Mark Gonzalez and Senior Officer Sara Ryan will be introduced at the 
Council meeting.

Report Prepared By:  Susan Sneddon
City Clerk

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

2.A

Packet Pg. 5



AUUIIIUNAL MATERIAL - ITEM 9.B. 
4/14/16 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Sneddon, Su (ssneddon@ci.capitoJa.ca.us) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

James Salata <jsalata@GardenCityConst.com> 
Thursday, February 25,2016 11 :23 AM 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

Subject: FW: Item #10.0. regarding Appeal of Design Permit and Variance for a Garage Addition 
Located at 4980 Garnet Street. 

To The Members of the Planning Commission 

My wife and I reside at 1505 Lincoln Ave. in Capitola across directly from the above mentioned project. On 
several occasions we have gone to the City of Capitola for permits. Once for a fence and once to close in a 
porch on the second story. In both instances we were instructed that we need to stick to the rules and 
ordinances in effect. In fact they were adamantly applied. The proposed variance at 4980 throws off the 
rhythm of the street and it does not matter how good the architecture supposedly is as that has nothing 
whatsoever to do with it. If you look at the street you can see and feel how all the houses line up as per the 
ordinances in place. There should be no exception for this property and this opens up the possibility of 
everyone asking for a variance. The laws and rules should be applied equally to all as they have been to us 
and they are there to provide consistency to the block. 

Our neighborhood folks respect each other and try to be tolerant of each other but to encroach and throw 
the blocks architecture out of rhythm is flat wrong and sets a very poor precedent moving into the future. 

Please do NOT approve this variance. 

James A. Salata 

, . 
I . 

CONSTRUCTION 
PRLSl.P.. ;, ti 112 r" . WUlI G II£: rUTUR 

e N ' T U C 1 O !« • C Q r< • L ' I. to. • 0 ... ·L L 0 " t T 

.. -. (':- " '( ( ' .. 
,'1'1 .I.",~# . j ' " ",-ll 

James Salata, President 

618 S.First Street, San Jose, Ca 95113 
P 408-289-8807 F 408-289-8523 

www.gardencityconstruction.com 

CONFIDENTIALITY AND SECURITY NOTICE: This email and any attached files are confidential and 
intended solely for the intended recipient(s). If you are not the named recipient you should not read, distribute, 
copy or alter this email. Warning: Although precautions have been taken to make sure no viruses are present in 

1 

3.A

Packet Pg. 6

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 9

.B
. P

u
b

lic
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
s 

re
g

ar
d

in
g

 D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 f
o

r 
49

80
 G

ar
n

et
 S

tr
ee

t 
 (

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

)



ADDITIONAL MATERIAL -ITEM 9.B. 
4/14/16 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

March 3, 2016 

City Council 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola A venue 
Capitola, California 95010 

APR 13 20t5 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

Re: Appeal from issuance of Variance by the Capitola Planning Commission 
for 4980 Garnet Street 
#15-181 APN: 034-043-16 

Dear Capitola City Council: 

t 

/ I j 

On February 4, 2016, during its regularly scheduled meeting, the Capitola Planning Commission 
voted 4 to 0 in favor of granting our request for a Design Permit and Variance that included a garage 
addition to be located in the front setback area of our home at 4980 Garnet Street. The Planning 
Commission's decision was made following consideration of the Community Development Staff 
Report ("Staff Report") and its recommendation for approval, and written and public comments from 
undersigned property owners and appellant Jan Caldarella. This letter (a) supplements our letter to 
the Planning Commission, dated January 28, 2016 ("Support Letter") attached as Attachment 1 to 
this letter, supporting our request for a Design Permit and Variance, and (b) responds to certain 
matters raised by appellant Caldarella's letter to the City Council, dated February 14, 2016 ("Letter 
of Appeal"). 

Our family has lived in Santa Cruz county for the past 11 years, and we purchased our home at 4980 
Garnet Street in October 2015 to be our full time residence . As we worked to enhance the 
functionality of the home to fit our family ' s needs, we also tried to design a home that blended with 
the community. We believe the proposed additional 5 feet of length to our garage will create only 
minimal visual impact on the neighborhood, and that granting the requested Variance will not create 
special privileges for us in light of existing structures in the neighborhood. 

The Staff Report references 12 properties on two blocks of Garnet Street with less than 15 feet 
setbacks. We bel ieve that granting our Variance permitting an additional 5 feet of encroachment into 
the setback area will not constitute a special privilege in light of those 12 properties. Furthermore, 
we note that the Staff ,Report does not include homes that are bu ilt across the 20 feet setback but 
which have greater than 15 feet setbacks. For example, if a home had an 18 foot setback (still less 
than the 20 foot code requirement) , that home would not appear on the Staff Report but it would still 
violate the setback requirement. The Staff Report is focused on two blocks of Garnet Street, but 
there are also many properties in the Jewel Box on nearby streets that also do not comply. Below is a 
photograph showing three additional examples on Lincoln Avenue and Prospect Avenue of houses 
not on Garnet Street but in very close proxi mity. We would disagree with the contention that the 
setback requi rement applies only to the three houses at 5010 Garnet, 4980 Garnet, and 4960 Garnet. 
It applies to the entire neighborhood, so the entire neighborhood should be considered in evaluat ing 

d d) d 
~ I 

3.A

Packet Pg. 7

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 9

.B
. P

u
b

lic
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
s 

re
g

ar
d

in
g

 D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 f
o

r 
49

80
 G

ar
n

et
 S

tr
ee

t 
 (

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

)



whether the granting of our Variance request would constitute a special privilege. 

Appellants Mr. and Mrs. Caldarella have filed an appeal of the Planning Commission decision, and 
have been joined by certain other propelty owners in the neighborhood. We would like to 
respectfully address and clarify certain elements of that Letter of Appeal : 

• We currently have a 6 foot deck overhang at the front of our home. The requested Variance 
to increase the length of our garage by 5 feet applies on ly to the first floor of the structure, 
and sits entirely under an existing 6 foot deck overhang. In fact, our plans decrease the size 
overall mass of that second story deck, thereby minimizing the impact on visual site cOiTidor 
and light on adjoining parcels. Our new 5 feet of garage space will sit entirely under the 
existing deck overhang (see yellow shaded area below). Appellants do not object to the blue 
shaded area, but do object to the yellow shaded area. 

'!OWJP MiST flfVADO~ 

Before After 

3.A

Packet Pg. 8

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 9

.B
. P

u
b

lic
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
s 

re
g

ar
d

in
g

 D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 f
o

r 
49

80
 G

ar
n

et
 S

tr
ee

t 
 (

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

)



• Our house is already built 1 foot across the 20 foot setback. Currently, there exists 19 feet 
between the house and the propeliy line, and then there is an additional 12 feet of unutilized 
right of way between the propeliy line and the curb for a total of31 feet. Our Variance 
request seeks to increase the current encroachment by 25% (5 feet divided by 20 feet = 25%). 
The Letter of Appeal characterizes those facts differently, and says that we are requesting a 6 
foot encroachment that amounts to a 30% (notwithstanding the fact that the 1 foot 
encroachment currently exists). Numbers can be interpreted different ways. However, from 
a visual perspective, a person is unable to visually detect the location of property line. When 
viewed from the street, the 5 foot encroachment increase is a change of 16% from the 
existing house to the curb (5 feet divided by 31 feet = 16%). Even if you were to consider 
the total encroachment at 30%, we believe the additional 5 feet of first floor garage (built 
under the existing deck overhang) will only slightly modify the character of the 
neighborhood given the 12 foot unutilized right of way. 

• We believe Page 4 of the Letter of Appeal mischaracterizes what is "existing" versus what is 
"encroaching." The pink shaded area reflects what currently exists should also extend 1 foot 
into the yellow shaded area. The heading is misleading in that it suggests the 1 foot yellow 
strip shown below does not currently exist. We believe a more accurate description would 
show the 1 foot strip as both pink (existing) and also yellow (1 foot is the existing 
encroachment plus 5 feet under the requested Variance). Note, regardless of color, the entire 
5 foot garage extension will sit under the deck shown in the picture. 

5 0 10 

This 1 foot strip running the length of the garage currently exists. It 
shows the existing 1 foot encroachment (should be pink) 

G A RNET S TREET 

3.A

Packet Pg. 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 9

.B
. P

u
b

lic
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
s 

re
g

ar
d

in
g

 D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 f
o

r 
49

80
 G

ar
n

et
 S

tr
ee

t 
 (

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

)



• Page 3 of the Letter of Appeal includes an overhead picture from Google maps showing the 
"current alignment of houses in existing area." We believe this perfectly demonstrates our 
point. This "current alignment" view will not change, as the requested 5 feet of garage space 
will sit entirely under the existing deck overhang. With the Variance, a future Google map 
picture showing this same street will show no change to the a lignment. See the photo below 
from Page 3 of the Letter of Appeal: 

Im.g!!fY 0 2016 GoogIe. Map dala fn016 Google 20 It 

W\'1.~\ ~U &-r--l r{\ (::501 <'::>C ~\ .. V~~ b irJ 
:tf'<"~AG~!:> P·la.:t;;:~ 

• Appellants acknowledge in their Letter of Appeal that three properties on this block of Garnet 
Street do not meet the setback requirement, and suggest those properties should be 
disregarded. Nevertheless, these three properties do exist. They do not observe the 20 foot 
setback requirement. They do impact the overall look and feel of the neighborhood. Those 
facts on the ground cannot be disregarded, and those properties should not be discounted 
when considering whether our granting our Variance constitutes a special priv ilege. 

• The alternative recommended by the Letter of Appeal (add 5 feet of garage space in the 
opposite direction toward the back of the house) would require the demolition of the 
immediately adjacent downstairs bathroom, the immediately adjacent staircase to access the 
upstairs of the house, a portion of the two small first floor bedrooms, require an entire 
redesign of the upstairs to accommodate the relocated staircase, as well as impact numerous 
structural and load bearing walls. It is neither practical nor financially viable to tear down 
the structure to pursue this alternative. We like the layout of the house, and want to maintain 
its overall flow. Our goal has been to enhance the existing home lot to better suit our fami ly, 
while also complying with the city ' s code requirements and variance procedures. 

3.A

Packet Pg. 10

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 9

.B
. P

u
b

lic
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
s 

re
g

ar
d

in
g

 D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 f
o

r 
49

80
 G

ar
n

et
 S

tr
ee

t 
 (

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

)



The plans we submitted with our Design Permit and Variance are not about us requesting a bigger 
house, or just about the 5 foot Variance. Our designs also provide benefits to adjoining neighbors: 

We are removing the second story windows at the front of both sides ofthe house, which will 
. improve privacy and reduce noise for neighbors on the east and west adjoining parcels. Currently, 
these windows open directly into the neighbor' s side yards and look directly into similarly placed 
windows on both neighbors ' houses. 

We are removing the first floor window on the back bedroom on the west side of our house, 
which will also decrease noise and improve privacy for the west side adjoining neighbor. 

Our current front deck extends the length of the front of the house from the west to east side 
of the property, giving us a line of site view into our neighbor' s yards on both sides. We are 
decreasing the size ofthe front deck so that it does not extend to the outer edges of the property and 
thereby improve privacy for both east and west side neighbors. 

We are removing the large cement driveway in front of our house, and replacing it with a 
permeable material with significantly smaller footprint. This will reduce water runoff to the street 
and adjoining parcels. 

Our house to lot size ratio is currently 39.43%, which is greater than the maximum 30% ratio under 
the current code. Our designs will bring the house to lot ratio down to 29.5% (shrinking the size), 
and bringing it into conformance with current code requirements. We have made trade-offs and 
other significant reductions to bring the overall size of the house into compliance with code, even 
with the 5 foot garage extension. 

Based on the foregoing, we believe the Planning Commission was correct, and request that you 
affirm their decision by granting our request for a Design Permit and Variance. Thank you for your 
consideration. We are happy to answer questions or provide additional information about the 
proposed project. Attachment 1 and the Staff Report are incorporated herein by this reference. 

Very truly yours, 

David & Deb Aaron 

3.A

Packet Pg. 11

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 9

.B
. P

u
b

lic
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
s 

re
g

ar
d

in
g

 D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 f
o

r 
49

80
 G

ar
n

et
 S

tr
ee

t 
 (

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF APRIL 14, 2016

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Consider the March 24, 2016, Regular City Council Minutes 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Minutes.

DISCUSSION: Attached for City Council review and approval are the minutes of the subject 
meeting.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft March 24, 2016, City Council Minutes

Report Prepared By:  Susan Sneddon
City Clerk

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

8.A

Packet Pg. 12



City of Capitola                                Page 1                       Updated 4/4/2016 2:46 PM

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING ACTION MINUTES

THURSDAY, MARCH 24, 2016 

CLOSED SESSION – 6:30 PM
CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE

Mayor Bottorff called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM. He announced the item to be discussed 
in Closed Session, as follows:

CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR (Govt. Code §54956.8)
Property: 2091 Wharf Road, APN 034-241-05, Capitola, CA
City Negotiator: Jamie Goldstein, City Manager
Negotiating Parties: Joseph K. and Debbie A. Genge
Under Negotiation: Terms for potential purchase of property by City

Mayor Bottorff noted that there was no one in the audience; therefore, the City Council recessed 
at 6:30 p.m. to the Closed Session.

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - 7:00 PM

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Councilmember Dennis Norton: Present, Mayor Ed Bottorff: Present, Council Member 
Jacques Bertrand: Present, Vice Mayor Stephanie Harlan: Present, Council Member 
Michael Termini: Present.

City Treasurer Christine McBroom was present.

2. PRESENTATIONS

A. Proclamation in the Observance of American Red Cross Month 

Mayor Bottorff presented the proclamation to Council Member Termini, Chair of the 
Santa Cruz Chapter of the American Red Cross.

B. Presentation by Rosemary Menard, City of Santa Cruz Water Director, regarding the 
Santa Cruz Water Supply Advisory Committee’s Recommended Water Supply 
Augmentation Strategies 

Ms. Menard provided the presentation regarding water supply strategy 
recommendations.

Becky Steinbrenner, 3441 Redwood Drive, Aptos, spoke about the state of the aquifers.

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 M
ar

ch
 2

4,
 2

01
6,

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

12
99

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
March 24, 2016

City of Capitola                                Page 2 Updated 4/4/2016 2:46 PM

3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION

City Attorney Condotti stated that the Council discussed Conference with Real Property 
Negotiations regarding 2091 Wharf Road, APN 034-241-05, Capitola; there was no 
reportable action.

4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS

Deputy City Clerk Nichols stated that emails were received regarding the following items:

A. Item 10.C. Two emails from the Public regarding the Red Light at 41st Avenue and 
Clares Street.

B. Item 11.B. Two emails from the Public regarding the In-Lieu Parking Fee Program.

5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA (None provided)

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Lowell Webb, local resident, thanked the City Council for overruling the Planning 
Commission’s decision to allow the installation of a wireless telecommunications antenna at 
Begonia Plaza. In addition, he complimented the Red Cross for services they provide.

Dave Kraemer, Supervising Therapist with the County of Santa Cruz California Children’s 
Services Medical Therapy Program, announced that National Public Health Week will be 
April 4 – April 10, 2016.

Barbara Bush, local resident, stated concerns regarding wireless radiation and thanked the 
City Council for overruling the Planning Commission’s decision regarding the wireless 
telecommunications antenna at Begonia Plaza.

Becky Steinbrenner, 3441 Redwood Drive, Aptos, stated that Assembly Bill 57, effective 
January 1, 2016, restricts cell tower installation on fire stations.

7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS

Council Member Termini announced Capitola Village Easter Egg Hunt will be held on 
Saturday, March 26th; in addition he stated that the Capitola Branch Library 16th Birthday 
Party will be held on March 26th from 12 (Noon) to 2:00 p.m.

8. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS

A. Make Nominations for a City Council Representative and Alternate Representative to 
the Newly Formed "FAA Select Subcommittee on South Bay Arrivals" 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Nominate Council Representatives.

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 M
ar

ch
 2

4,
 2

01
6,

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

12
99

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
March 24, 2016

City of Capitola                                Page 3 Updated 4/4/2016 2:46 PM

RESULT: APPROVED THE NOMINATIONS OF MAYOR BOTTORFF AS THE 
CITY COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVE AND COUNCIL MEMBER 
NORTON AS THE ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVE TO THE NEWLY 
FORMED "FAA SELECT SUBCOMMITTEE ON SOUTH BAY 
ARRIVALS”.

MOVER: Jacques Bertrand, Council Member  
SECONDER: Stephanie Harlan, Council Member
AYES: Bottorff, Bertrand, Harlan, Norton, Termini

9. REPORT FROM CITY REPRESENTATIVES TO REGIONAL BOARDS / COMMISSIONS

Council Member Bertrand stated that he attended the following:
 A meeting that provided information about the history of agriculture in this area;
 The 13th Annual Water Conservation Showcase Climate Action Collaborative 

meeting;
 The Live Oak Boys and Girls Club grand opening;
 A dinner where the County storm water infrastructure planning was discussed;
 As the City’s Representative he attended a recent Santa Cruz County Hazardous 

Materials Advisory Commission at which time a presentation was made regarding 
the initiation of a medication and sharps recycling program;

 As the City’s Representative Santa Cruz County Children’s Network he attended a 
recent meeting where they voted unanimously to support the June 2016 Library 
Sales Tax Ballot.

Council Member Harlan encouraged the public to visit the Capitola Historical Museum. In 
addition, as the City’s Representative on the Santa Cruz County Sanitation District she 
toured the Santa Cruz Wastewater Treatment Plant.

Mayor Bottorff stated that today Vice Mayor Harlan and he attended the Congregate 
Dining Celebration at the Live Oak Senior Center, and helped serve 31 lunches to 
seniors; the financial support the City provides to Community Bridges and the Meals-on-
Wheels programs are funds well spent. As the City’s Representative on the Santa Cruz 
Metropolitan Transit District (Metro) he provided an update regarding the Metro’s 6.5 
million dollar deficit due to insufficient revenues coming from the gas tax.

City Manager Goldstein stated that he is the City’s Representative on the Santa Cruz 
Regional 911 Board (Board); he provided an update on the Board’s new CAD 
(Computer-aided design) system. As the City’s representative on the Santa Cruz County 
Library Facilities Financing Authority Joint Powers Board he provided an update on the 
County Library Director recruitment. In addition, he provided an update regarding the 
City’s workers compensation liability insurance carrier; the City will be seeing increases 
in liability premiums due to the phasing in of the costs of the Pacific Cove claims; the 
City’s worker compensation claims are looking relatively good.

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 M
ar

ch
 2

4,
 2

01
6,

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

12
99

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
March 24, 2016

City of Capitola                                Page 4 Updated 4/4/2016 2:46 PM

Public Works Director Jesberg provided an update regarding various Capital 
Improvement Program projects. 

10. CONSENT CALENDAR

RESULT: ADOPTED ITEMS NO. 10.A., 10.B., 10.C., AND 10.D. [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Stephanie Harlan, Council Member  
SECONDER: Michael Termini, Council Member 
AYES: Norton, Bertrand, Harlan, Termini, Bottorff

A. Consider the March 10, 2016, Regular City Council Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Minutes.

B. Approval of City Check Registers dated February 5, February 11, February 19, and 
February 26, 2016 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Check Register Reports.

C. Adoption of Resolution No. 4046 to Establish Hours That Would Prohibit a Right 
Hand Turn on a Red Light at the Intersection of 41st Avenue and Clares Street 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Consider a Resolution setting hours that would prohibit 
a right turn on a red light from 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. at Clares Street and 41st 
Avenue.

D. Accept the Capitola Avenue Storm Drain Project as Complete 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept the Capitola Avenue Storm Drain Repair Project 
constructed by Johnson & Company, Inc, as complete at a final cost of $110,567.40, 
and authorize the Director of Public Works to release the contract retention of 
$11,056.74 in 35 days following the recordation of the Notice of Completion.

11. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. Approve the Surfers Path Special Event Permit 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the new special event request for the Surfer’s 
Path Hang Ten and Hang Five event and to move the Surfer’s Path 10k/5k to 
February 26, 2017.

There was Council consensus to be cautious about bringing new events into the 
Village.

RESULT: APPROVED THE SURFERS PATH SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT 
[UNANIMOUS]

MOVER: Dennis Norton, Council Member  
SECONDER: Michael Termini, Council Member 
AYES: Norton, Bertrand, Harlan, Termini, Bottorff

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 M
ar

ch
 2

4,
 2

01
6,

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

12
99

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
March 24, 2016

City of Capitola                                Page 5 Updated 4/4/2016 2:46 PM

B. Review of In-Lieu Parking Fee Program 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive presentation and provide direction.

Nels Westman, City’s Traffic and Parking Commissioner, urged the City Council 
to not approve any revisions of the City’s In-lieu Parking Program.

Corrie Sid, local business owner, stated that she is opposed to revisions to the 
City’s In-lieu Parking Program.

RESULT: TO NOT REVISE THE CITY’S IN-LIEU PARKING FEE PROGRAM
MOVER: Dennis Norton, Council Member  
SECONDER: Ed Bottorff, Mayor
AYES: Norton, Bottorff
NAYS: Harlan, Bertrand and Termini

C. Authorize Further Expenditure for Engineering Staff Augmentation in the Public 
Works Department up to $100,000 within the Capital Improvement Program 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize Expenditure.

RESULT: AUTHORIZE FURTHER EXPENDITURE FOR ENGINEERING STAFF 
AUGMENTATION IN THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT UP TO 
$100,000 WITHIN THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
[UNANIMOUS]

MOVER: Stephanie Harlan, Council Member  
SECONDER: Michael Termini, Council Member 
AYES: Norton, Bertrand, Harlan, Termini, Bottorff

D. Zoning Code Update Progress Report 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Report.

RESULT: RECEIVED REPORT

12. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was closed at 9:28 PM

____________________
Ed Bottorff, Mayor

ATTEST: 

________________________
Liz Nichols, Deputy City Clerk

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 M
ar

ch
 2

4,
 2

01
6,

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

12
99

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF APRIL 14, 2016

FROM: Community Development

SUBJECT: Receive Planning Commission Action Minutes for the Special Meetings of March 
17 and March 31, 2016 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Minutes.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Planning Commission Special Hearing Minutes March 17, 2016
2. Planning Commission Special Hearing Minutes March 31, 2016

Report Prepared By:  Linda Fridy
Planning Commission Minutes Clerk

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

8.B

Packet Pg. 18



City of Capitola Page 1 Updated 3/18/2016 2:13 PM  

ACTION MINUTES 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

THURSDAY, MARCH 17, 2016 
6 P.M. – CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 

 
 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

A. Call to Order 

Commissioner Linda Smith: Present, Commissioner Gayle Ortiz: Present, Commissioner Edward 
Newman: Arrived 7 p.m., Chairperson TJ Welch: Present, Commissioner Susan Westman: Present. 

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 

B. Public Comments 

C. Commission Comments 

D. Staff Comments 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. Planning Commission Special Meeting of March 3, 2016  
 

RESULT: ACCEPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Susan Westman, Commissioner 

SECONDER: Gayle Ortiz, Commissioner 

AYES: Smith, Ortiz, Welch, Westman 

ABSENT: Newman 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. 429 Riverview Ave #16-025 APN: 035-121-34 
Modification to the height of a previously approved Design Permit, Conditional Use Permit, 
Coastal Development Permit and Variance for non-conforming structure and setback 
requirements for an addition to an existing historic residence in the R-1 (Single-Family 
Residential) zoning district. 
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit which is 
appealable to the California Coastal Commission after all possible appeals are exhausted 
through the City. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Mike and Cindy Reardon 
Representative: Derek Van Alstine, filed 2/28/16 

 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 S

p
ec

ia
l H

ea
ri

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
M

ar
ch

 1
7,

 2
01

6 
 (

13
51

 :
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 A

ct
io

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

3/
17

/1
6 

&
 3

/3
1/

16
)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – March 17, 2016 2 
 

 

RESULT: APPROVED AS AMENDED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Susan Westman, Commissioner 

SECONDER: Linda Smith, Commissioner 

AYES: Smith, Welch, Westman 

RECUSED: Ortiz 

ABSENT: Newman 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. 419 Capitola Avenue Conceptual Review #15-197 APN: 035-131-26 
Conceptual Review of development concepts for an existing duplex located in the CN 
(Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District. 
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development Permit for a 
conceptual review.  
Environmental Determination: Not applicable 
Property Owners: Daniel Gomez and Daniel Townsend, filed 12/16/2015 
 

RESULT: COMMENTS PROVIDED – NO VOTE 

 
B. Zoning Code Update  All Properties within Capitola 

Continuation of Comprehensive Update to the City of Capitola Zoning Code (Municipal Code 
Chapter 17) 
The Zoning Code serves as the Implementation Plan of the City’s Local Coastal Program 
and therefore must be certified by the Coastal Commission.   
Environmental Determination: Addendum to the General Plan Update EIR 
Property: The Zoning Code update affects all properties within the City of Capitola. 
Representative: Katie Cattan, Senior Planner, City of Capitola 

RESULT: CONTINUED [UNANIMOUS] Next: 4/18/2016 6:00 PM  

MOVER: Susan Westman, Commissioner 

SECONDER: Gayle Ortiz, Commissioner 

AYES: Smith, Ortiz, Newman, Welch, Westman 

6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 S

p
ec

ia
l H

ea
ri

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
M

ar
ch

 1
7,

 2
01

6 
 (

13
51

 :
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 A

ct
io

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

3/
17

/1
6 

&
 3

/3
1/

16
)



City of Capitola Page 1 Updated 4/1/2016 3:30 PM  

ACTION MINUTES 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

THURSDAY, MARCH 31, 2016 
6 P.M. – CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 

 
 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 

B. Public Comments 

C. Commission Comments 

D. Staff Comments 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Monterey Avenue Skate Park  #15-068 APN:  036-151-01 
Design Permit, Conditional Use Permit, and consideration of an Environmental Impact 
Report for an approximately 6,000 square-foot skate park at Monterey Park. 
The project is within the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit which is 
not appealable to the Coastal Commission.   
Environmental Determination: Environmental Impact Report 
Property Owner: City of Capitola 
Applicants:  Marie Martorella and Tricia Proctor 

 
Motion: Certify the Environmental Impact Report and Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Program 
 

RESULT: CERTIFIED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Edward Newman, Commissioner 

SECONDER: Susan Westman, Commissioner 

AYES: Smith, Ortiz, Newman, Welch, Westman 

 
 
Motion: Approve a Design Permit, Conditional Use Permit, and Coastal Development Permit 
based on the alternative one parameters from the Environmental Impact Report with additional 
conditions, including post-opening noise study with a bond for additional mitigation measures, 6-
month post-opening review of permit conditions, additional seating, prohibition of special events, 
preservation of existing redwood trees, requirement for replacement trees to be planted on-site 
(no in-lieu fees), irrigation for replacement trees, alternate fence design, indemnification 
agreement signed by applicant and standard conditional use language. 

RESULT: APPROVED AS AMENDED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Edward Newman, Commissioner 

SECONDER: Susan Westman, Commissioner 

AYES: Smith, Ortiz, Newman, Welch, Westman 

4. ADJOURNMENT 

8.B.2

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 S

p
ec

ia
l H

ea
ri

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

6 
 (

13
51

 :
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 A

ct
io

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

3/
17

/1
6 

&
 3

/3
1/

16
)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF APRIL 14, 2016

FROM: Public Works Department

SUBJECT: Award Construction Contract to Monterey Peninsula Engineering for the 
Rosedale Area Paving Project 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Award a contract to Monterey Peninsula Engineering for the 
Rosedale Area Paving Project with a bid in the amount of $228,676.50 for construction of the 
Rosedale Avenue Paving Project, and authorize the Public Works Director to add a section of 
Plum Street from Rosedale Avenue to the Brookvale Terrace Mobile Home Park into the project 
at an estimated cost of $12,000.

BACKGROUND: On April 6, 2016, the City received six bids for the Rosedale Area Paving 
Project. All bids have been checked and the low bidder is Monterey Peninsula Engineering with 
a bid in the amount of $228,676.50. A complete summary of the bids is included at Attachment 
1.

DISCUSSION: The bid amount is $1,976.50 (1%) over the engineer’s estimate. In addition to 
being slightly over the estimate, staff is requesting additional funds to add paving on Plum 
Street where it enters into Brookvale Terrace Mobile Home Park. This additional paving is 
estimated to cost $12,000. It is recommended that it be added to this project to complete the 
paving in this area. 

It is anticipated that construction will begin within six weeks of the award of contract and take 
four weeks to complete.

FISCAL IMPACT: The additional funding for this project in the amount of $13,976.50 is available 
within the Capital Improvement Program fund. It is recommended that these costs be 
transferred from the fund balance in the Capitola Avenue Storm Drain Project which has a fund 
balance of $14,821.60.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Rosedale Paving Bid Summary

Report Prepared By:  Steve Jesberg
Public Works 

Director Reviewed and Forwarded by:

8.C

Packet Pg. 22



Page 1 of 3

Bid Results
Project

Bid Opened: 

Item Description Unit Qty. Unit Price Total Unit Price Total
1 Mobilization LS 1 15,000.00$                 15,000.00$                $              5,500.00 5,500.00$                 
2 Traffic Control LS 1 16,000.00$                 16,000.00$                $            15,500.00 15,500.00$                
3 Changeable Message Signs EA 2 250.00$                      500.00$                      $                 770.00 1,540.00$                 
4 Remove Pavement Markers LS 1 500.00$                      500.00$                      $              1,700.00 1,700.00$                 
5 Reset Survey Nail and Painted Cross EA 1  $                      500.00 500.00$                      $              2,200.00 2,200.00$                 
6 Adjust Survey Monument Box to Grade EA 2  $                      500.00 1,000.00$                  $                 640.00 1,280.00$                 
7 Adjust Water Valve Box to Grade EA 6  $                      475.00 2,850.00$                  $                 460.00 2,760.00$                 
8 Adjust Blowoff Valve Box to Grade EA 1  $                      475.00 475.00$                      $                 460.00 460.00$                    
9 Adjust Gas Valve Box to Grade EA 1  $                      475.00 475.00$                      $                 460.00 460.00$                    
10 Adjust SSCO Frame & Cover to Grade EA 2  $                      475.00 950.00$                      $                 490.00 980.00$                    
11 Adjust SSMH Frame & Cover to Grade EA 8  $                      850.00 6,800.00$                  $                 980.00 7,840.00$                 
12 Adjust SDMH Frame & Cover to Grade EA 5  $                      850.00 4,250.00$                  $                 850.00 4,250.00$                 
13 Install Concrete Cross Gutter SF 140  $                        25.00 3,500.00$                  $                   36.00 5,040.00$                 
14 Subgrade Preparation SY 1,586  $                          8.00 12,688.00$                $                     5.00 7,930.00$                 
15 Over-Excavation CY 40  $                        25.00 1,000.00$                  $                   72.00 2,880.00$                 
16 Remove Surfacing and Base (4-Inch Depth) (F) SY 1,586  $                        10.00 15,860.00$                $                     8.00 12,688.00$                
17 Hot-Mix Asphalt Pavement Type A (1.5-Inch Overlay) TON 55  $                        85.00 4,675.00$                  $                 128.00 7,040.00$                 
18 Hot-Mix Asphalt Pavement Type A (2-Inch Overlay) TON 455  $                        85.00 38,675.00$                $                 127.00 57,785.00$                
19 Hot-Mix Asphalt Pavement Type A (4-Inch Overlay) TON 393  $                        85.00 33,405.00$                $                 132.00 51,876.00$                
20 Thermoplastic Traffic Striping - Detail 22 LF 100  $                          2.00 200.00$                      $                     7.50 750.00$                    
21 Thermoplastic 12" Crosswalk (White or Yellow) LF 89  $                          3.50 312.00$                      $                     9.50 845.50$                    
22 Thermoplastic 12" Limit Line (White or Yellow) LF 18  $                          3.50 63.00$                        $                     9.50 171.00$                    
23 Thermoplastic Pavement Markings (Arrows, Words and Numerals) SF 44  $                          4.00 176.00$                      $                     9.50 418.00$                    
24 Blue Fire Hydrant Pavement Marker EA 6  $                        30.00 180.00$                      $                   27.50 165.00$                    
25 Pavement Base Repair 4-Inch Depth SF 50  $                          6.00 300.00$                      $                   31.00 1,550.00$                 
26 Pavement Base Repair 6-Inch Depth SF 2,837  $                          5.00 14,185.00$                $                     4.00 11,348.00$                
27 Cold-Planing (Milling) Asphalt Concrete Pavement (2-Inch Depth) (F) SY 3,680  $                          4.25 15,640.00$                $                     4.00 14,720.00$                
28 Wedge Grind LF 250  $                          5.00 1,250.00$                  $                     5.00 1,250.00$                 
29 Conform Grind LF 35  $                        20.00 700.00$                      $                   30.00 1,050.00$                 
30 Crack Sealing LS 1  $                   5,000.00 5,000.00$                  $              4,500.00 4,500.00$                 
31 Temporary Water Pollutions Control and Esosion Control LS 1  $              2,200.00 2,200.00$                 

SUB-TOTAL 197,109.00$             Bid Amonut  228,676.50$              
15% contingency 29,566.35$               
Rounded  Total 226,700.00$             

Construction Estimate

Rosedale Area Paving
6-Apr-16

Monterey Peninsula Engineering

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

o
se

d
al

e 
P

av
in

g
 B

id
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 
 (

14
32

 :
 R

o
se

d
al

e 
A

re
a 

P
av

in
g

 A
w

ar
d

 o
f 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



Page 2 of 3

Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total
 $            16,500.00 16,500.00$                 $              8,200.00 8,200.00$                  $              5,000.00 5,000.00$                  $            17,000.00 17,000.00$                
 $              9,000.00 9,000.00$                  $              9,000.00 9,000.00$                  $              3,800.00 3,800.00$                  $              5,000.00 5,000.00$                 
 $              2,315.00 4,630.00$                  $              1,200.00 2,400.00$                  $              1,311.00 2,622.00$                  $              1,400.00 2,800.00$                 
 $                 422.00 422.00$                     $                 250.00 250.00$                     $                 900.00 900.00$                     $                 800.00 800.00$                    
 $                 600.00 600.00$                     $              2,800.00 2,800.00$                  $              1,542.00 1,542.00$                  $                 500.00 500.00$                    
 $                 600.00 1,200.00$                  $              1,000.00 2,000.00$                  $                 500.00 1,000.00$                  $                 500.00 1,000.00$                 
 $                 600.00 3,600.00$                  $              1,000.00 6,000.00$                  $                 500.00 3,000.00$                  $                 450.00 2,700.00$                 
 $                 600.00 600.00$                     $              1,000.00 1,000.00$                  $                 500.00 500.00$                     $                 450.00 450.00$                    
 $                 600.00 600.00$                     $              1,000.00 1,000.00$                  $                 500.00 500.00$                     $                 450.00 450.00$                    
 $                 922.00 1,844.00$                  $              1,000.00 2,000.00$                  $                 500.00 1,000.00$                  $                 600.00 1,200.00$                 
 $              1,200.00 9,600.00$                  $              1,000.00 8,000.00$                  $                 910.00 7,280.00$                  $                 800.00 6,400.00$                 
 $              1,200.00 6,000.00$                  $              1,000.00 5,000.00$                  $                 938.00 4,690.00$                  $                 800.00 4,000.00$                 
 $                   22.00 3,080.00$                  $                   90.00 12,600.00$                 $                   36.00 5,040.00$                  $                   38.00 5,320.00$                 
 $                     5.00 7,930.00$                  $                     2.00 3,172.00$                  $                     7.60 12,053.60$                 $                     4.00 6,344.00$                 
 $                   88.00 3,520.00$                  $                 280.00 11,200.00$                 $                 266.00 10,640.00$                 $                 120.00 4,800.00$                 
 $                   10.00 15,860.00$                 $                     7.00 11,102.00$                 $                   11.75 18,635.50$                 $                   10.00 15,860.00$                
 $                 154.00 8,470.00$                  $                 160.00 8,800.00$                  $                 131.00 7,205.00$                  $                 155.00 8,525.00$                 
 $                 168.00 76,440.00$                 $                 130.00 59,150.00$                 $                 143.00 65,065.00$                 $                 145.00 65,975.00$                
 $                 120.00 47,160.00$                 $                 135.00 53,055.00$                 $                 141.25 55,511.25$                 $                 155.00 60,915.00$                
 $                     3.50 350.00$                     $                     6.65 665.00$                     $                     8.00 800.00$                     $                     7.00 700.00$                    
 $                     4.00 356.00$                     $                     9.00 801.00$                     $                   10.00 890.00$                     $                     9.00 801.00$                    
 $                     4.00 72.00$                       $                     8.50 153.00$                     $                   10.00 180.00$                     $                     9.00 162.00$                    
 $                   10.00 440.00$                     $                     8.50 374.00$                     $                   10.00 440.00$                     $                     9.00 396.00$                    
 $                   10.00 60.00$                       $                   25.00 150.00$                     $                   30.00 180.00$                     $                   30.00 180.00$                    
 $                   17.00 850.00$                     $                   56.00 2,800.00$                  $                   23.00 1,150.00$                  $                   50.00 2,500.00$                 
 $                     3.00 8,511.00$                  $                     8.00 22,696.00$                 $                     8.30 23,547.10$                 $                   10.00 28,370.00$                
 $                     4.00 14,720.00$                 $                     4.50 16,560.00$                 $                     6.65 24,472.00$                 $                     6.50 23,920.00$                
 $                   10.00 2,500.00$                  $                     9.00 2,250.00$                  $                   13.00 3,250.00$                  $                     5.00 1,250.00$                 
 $                   27.00 945.00$                     $                   32.00 1,120.00$                  $                   65.00 2,275.00$                  $                   20.00 700.00$                    
 $              1,845.00 1,845.00$                  $              8,200.00 8,200.00$                  $              5,907.00 5,907.00$                  $              9,000.00 9,000.00$                 
 $              2,600.00 2,600.00$                  $              1,600.00 1,600.00$                  $              2,623.00 2,623.00$                  $              4,000.00 4,000.00$                 

250,305.00$              264,098.00$              271,698.45$              282,018.00$              

Granite Construction Lewis and Tibbitts Anderson PacificEarthworks Paving

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

o
se

d
al

e 
P

av
in

g
 B

id
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 
 (

14
32

 :
 R

o
se

d
al

e 
A

re
a 

P
av

in
g

 A
w

ar
d

 o
f 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



Page 3 of 3

Unit Price Total
 $              7,000.00 7,000.00$                 
 $            20,000.00 20,000.00$                
 $              3,800.00 7,600.00$                 
 $                     1.00 1.00$                        
 $                 750.00 750.00$                    
 $                 750.00 1,500.00$                 
 $                 800.00 4,800.00$                 
 $                 800.00 800.00$                    
 $                 800.00 800.00$                    
 $                 800.00 1,600.00$                 
 $                 800.00 6,400.00$                 
 $                 800.00 4,000.00$                 
 $                   45.00 6,300.00$                 
 $                     5.00 7,930.00$                 
 $                 280.00 11,200.00$                
 $                     8.50 13,481.00$                
 $                 140.00 7,700.00$                 
 $                 134.00 60,970.00$                
 $                 130.00 51,090.00$                
 $                     7.50 750.00$                    
 $                     9.00 801.00$                    
 $                     9.00 162.00$                    
 $                     9.00 396.00$                    
 $                   30.00 180.00$                    
 $                   13.00 650.00$                    
 $                   14.00 39,718.00$                
 $                     4.00 14,720.00$                
 $                     2.00 500.00$                    
 $                     6.00 210.00$                    
 $              8,000.00 8,000.00$                 
 $              2,500.00 2,500.00$                 

282,509.00$              

Don Chapin

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

o
se

d
al

e 
P

av
in

g
 B

id
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 
 (

14
32

 :
 R

o
se

d
al

e 
A

re
a 

P
av

in
g

 A
w

ar
d

 o
f 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF APRIL 14, 2016

FROM: Public Works Department

SUBJECT: Approve Contract Change Order No. 1 for the Stockton and Esplanade 
Improvement Project 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. Approve Contract Change Order No. 1 for the Stockton Avenue and Esplanade 

Intersection Improvements in the amount of $44,645 for the addition of sidewalk 
adjacent the David Lyng Real Estate office at the corner of Stockton Avenue and 
Capitola Avenue; and

2. Authorize and budget amendment receiving unanticipated revenue in the amount of 
$10,000 from David Lyng for this project; and

3. Authorize the transfer of $34,645 within the Capital Improvement Fund to cover the 
balance of this change order with funding coming from the Village Sidewalk Cooperative 
Project funding bank.

BACKGROUND: The scope of work for Stockton Avenue and Esplanade Intersection 
Improvement Project included the removal and replacement of the existing sidewalk in the 
immediate vicinity of the intersection. Upon completion of the project as designed, one section 
of old sidewalk would remain away that fronts the David Lyng Realty office at the corner of 
Stockton Avenue and Capitola Avenue.  

DISCUSSION: The approval of Contract Change Order No. 1 will complete all the sidewalk 
replacement work along Stockton Avenue between Capitola Avenue and the Esplanade. The 
contribution amount from David Lyng is consistent with the contributions received from 
restaurants along the Esplanade in 2014 and from the property owner of the property at 208 and 
210 Stockton Avenue. The cooperative agreements call for a cost share for the replacement of 
the sidewalk but do not cover curb ramps, conform paving, traffic control, and other ancillary 
costs.  

Anderson Pacific is currently scheduled to begin this phase of work on April 18th, and it will be 
completed by April 22nd.   

FISCAL IMPACT: The transfer of funding from the Village Sidewalk Cooperative Bank of 
$34,645 will reduce the fund balance in this account to $56,355. The next phase of sidewalk 
work is scheduled to be along the west side of Capitola Avenue in the 300 block area next to the 
Trestle Building and neighboring properties.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Stockton and Esplanade CCO No 1

8.D

Packet Pg. 26



Stockton and Esplanade Improvement Project CCO No. 1 
April 14, 2016

2. Budget Amendment

Report Prepared By:  Steve Jesberg
Public Works Director

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

8.D

Packet Pg. 27



 
 

                                                                                                                                1390 Norman Avenue 
          Santa Clara, CA 95054 
             Fax: 408/970-9975 
                408/970-9900 
                                                             Lic. No. 245215 

 
March 30, 2016 
 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 
 
Attn: Steven E. Jesberg 
Re: Stockton Avenue and Esplanade Intersection Improvements 
 
Mr. Jesberg: 
 
Per your request, we are providing a proposal to perform additional concrete improvements on the above 
referenced project.  This work will consist of removing and replacing existing concrete and asphalt 
pavement along the north side of Stockton Avenue between Capitola Avenue and Riverview Avenue.  A 
detailed cost breakdown is provided below. 
 
Proposed Change Order #02 
 

BID 
ITEM DESCRIPTION QNTY UNIT  U/C   TOTAL  

1 Mobilization (supervision & overhead) 1 LS  $    3,000.00   $      3,000.00  

2 
Traffic Control and Construction Area 
Signs 1 LS  $    4,000.00   $      4,000.00  

3 Demolition 1 LS  $    5,000.00   $      5,000.00  

5 
Temporary Water Pollution Control & 
Erosion Control 1 LS  $    1,000.00   $      1,000.00  

6 Subgrade Preparation 1,090 SF  $            2.00   $      2,180.00  
7 Roadway Excavation 21 CY  $          85.00   $      1,785.00  
8 Aggregate Base 25 TN  $          95.00   $      2,375.00  
9 Concrete Curb & Gutter (Detail S-1) 77 LF  $          50.00   $      3,850.00  

11 Concrete Sidewalk 680 SF  $          10.00   $      6,800.00  
12 Driveway Approach 76 SF  $          10.00   $          760.00  
14 Case G Curb Ramp 1 EA  $    1,700.00   $      1,700.00  
15 Brick Pavers 70 SF  $          48.00   $      3,360.00  
16 Asphalt Concrete 26 TN  $        325.00   $      8,450.00  
17 Asphalt Grinding 77 LF  $            5.00   $          385.00  

18 
Thermoplastic Traffic Stripes and 
Pavement Markers* 

 
LS  $                 -     $                   -    

      
    

 Total:   $    44,645.00**  
 

8.D.1

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

to
ck

to
n

 a
n

d
 E

sp
la

n
ad

e 
C

C
O

 N
o

 1
  (

14
25

 :
 S

to
ck

to
n

 a
n

d
 E

sp
la

n
ad

e 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

je
ct

 C
C

O
 N

o
. 1

)



 
 

                                                                                                                                1390 Norman Avenue 
          Santa Clara, CA 95054 
             Fax: 408/970-9975 
                408/970-9900 
                                                             Lic. No. 245215 

 
 
 
 
* Please note that no additional cost is currently provided for additional traffic stripes and pavement markers until 
further information is provided showing what is required at this location. 
 
** Also, a contingency of 10% of the original contract in the amount of approximately $22,500 and of PCO #02 in the 
amount of approximately $4,500 for a total of $27,000 should be added to account for unforeseen conditions 
encountered during the construction process. 
 
Please review the above cost summary and issue a contract change order for this work at your earliest 
convenience.  If you have any questions, regarding this matter, please contact me at (408) 318-0613. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Scott L. Schumacher 
Project Manager 

8.D.1

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

to
ck

to
n

 a
n

d
 E

sp
la

n
ad

e 
C

C
O

 N
o

 1
  (

14
25

 :
 S

to
ck

to
n

 a
n

d
 E

sp
la

n
ad

e 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

je
ct

 C
C

O
 N

o
. 1

)



Date 4/14/2016

Requesting Department Public Works

Administrative 
Council x Item # 8.D.

Council Date 4/14/2016
Council Approval

Account Description Increase/Decrease

Other revenue other grants, donations, contrib 10,000 

Total 10,000 

Account Description Increase/Decrease

Construction service Project constr 10,000$                          

10,000 

Net Impact - 

Purpose: Receive David Lyng contribution to Stockton and Esplandade Improvement Project

Finance Department Approval

City Manager Approval

City of Capitola Budget Adjustment Form

Revenues

Department Head Approval

Account #

1200-00-00-000-3700.001

Account #

1200-00-00-000-4390.400

Expenditures

Total

4/18/201611:38 AM 1730.xlsxGeneral Fund

8.D.2

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
 (

14
25

 :
 S

to
ck

to
n

 a
n

d
 E

sp
la

n
ad

e 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

je
ct

 C
C

O
 N

o
. 1

)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF APRIL 14, 2016

FROM: Community Development

SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement with Ben Noble: Urban and Regional Planning 
for the Zoning Code Update 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Ben 
Noble Urban and Regional Planning in the amount of $26,110 for completion of the Zoning 
Code Update.  

BACKGROUND: The City Council approved a contract with Placeworks (formerly Design, 
Community, and Environment) in 2010 to prepare the General Plan Update, Climate Action 
Plan, Zoning Code Update, Environmental Impact Report (EIR), and supporting technical 
studies and reports. Work has been completed on the General Plan Update, Climate Action 
Plan, and EIR. A Draft Zoning Code has also been released; however, substantial work remains 
including several additional public hearings with the Planning Commission and City Council. The 
original Placeworks contract has less than $9,000 remaining and will not be sufficient to 
complete the Zoning Code Update.  

DISCUSSION: In 2015, Ben Noble began an independent planning firm, Ben Noble Urban and 
Regional Planning. Mr. Noble continued in his role managing the Capitola Zoning Code Update 
as a contract employee for PlaceWorks. Due to the consultant’s satisfactory work on the 
General Plan Update, the Zoning Code Update, and his acquired extensive background and 
working knowledge of the project, staff is recommending Mr. Noble be contracted for the 
completion of Zoning Code Update consistent with the sole source purchase policy within 
Administrative Policy III-4.  

The proposal by Ben Noble Urban and Regional Planning to complete of the Zoning Code 
Update includes a contract amount of $26,110 (Attachment 1). The funds for the new contract 
are available from the General Plan Maintenance Fund. The total cost includes all items outlined 
in the scope of work, as well as administrative and travel expenses associated with the project.  

FISCAL IMPACT: Staff recommends $26,110 be allocated from the General Plan Maintenance 
Fund to contract Ben Noble Urban and Regional Planning to complete the Zoning Code Update.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Ben Noble Urban and Regional Planning Proposal
2. Standard Agreement Form - Zoning Code Update
3. Sole Source Purchase Memo

Report Prepared By:  Katie Cattan
Senior Planner

8.E

Packet Pg. 31



Zoning Code Update Professional Service Agreement Contract 
April 14, 2016

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

8.E

Packet Pg. 32



BEN NOBLE 
City and Regional Planning 

510.529.8820 | bnoble@bnplanning.com 
 

  www.bnplanning.com    

 
 
 
April 5, 2016 
 
Richard Grunow, Community Development Director 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Ave 
Capitola, California 95010 
 
Re: Zoning Code Update Proposal 
 
 
Dear Rich, 

Thank you for inviting me to submit a proposal to provide continued assistance to the City of Capitola to 
complete the Zoning Code Update.  Below is additional information on my qualifications, a proposed 
scope of work, and a cost estimate for this scope of work.   

 
QUALIFICATIONS 

As you know, I have been working with the City of Capitola since 2010 on the General Plan Update, 

Zoning Code Update, and other tasks associated with that effort.  I originally began working with the City 

as an employee of PlaceWorks (formerly DC&E), where I was an Associate Principal in charge of the 

company’s zoning practice.  In 2014 I left PlaceWorks and began my own city planning consulting 

practice which continues to specialize in zoning code updates as well as other comprehensive planning 

projects.   Attached to this proposal is my resume which identifies the full extent of my experience 

relevant to Capitola’s Zoning Code Update.  I believe I am well qualified to assist the City complete the 

Zoning Code Update and look forward to continuing to work with you on this effort. 

 
SCOPE OF WORK 

Below is my proposed scope of work to assist the City of Capitola complete the Zoning Code Update. As 

a sole proprietor consultant, all work will be completed by me. 

Task 1. Public Review Draft Zoning Code Meetings 

a. Planning Commission Meetings (8) 
I will attend eight Planning Commission meetings to receive feedback on the Public Review Draft Zoning 
Code.  These eight meetings include the two Planning Commission meetings I have already attended in 
March of this year. Costs to attend these meetings assumes that City staff will assume the lead role in 
preparing meeting materials. 

b. City Council Meetings (2) 
I will attend two City Council meetings to receive feedback on the Public Review Draft Zoning Code. 

8.E.1

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

en
 N

o
b

le
 U

rb
an

 a
n

d
 R

eg
io

n
al

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(1
42

2 
: 

Z
o

n
in

g
 C

o
d

e 
U

p
d

at
e 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



2 
 

  www.bnplanning.com    

Task 2.  Redline Zoning Code 

a. Administrative Draft Redline Zoning Code 
Based on input from the Planning Commission and City Council, I will prepare an Administrative Redline 
Zoning Code for review by City staff.  This Zoning Code will show all changes made to the Public Review 
Draft Zoning Code in underline strikethrough text.  I will also make changes to the Zoning Code graphics 
and Zoning Map as needed. 

b. Screencheck Draft Redline Zoning Code 
I will prepare a Screencheck Draft Redline Zoning Code for review by City staff that addresses City staff 
comments on the Administrative Redline Zoning Code. 

c. Final Redline Zoning Code 
I will prepare a Final Redline Zoning Code for public review that addresses City staff comments on the 
Screencheck Draft Redline Zoning Code.   

d. Planning Commission Meetings (2) 
I will attend two Planning Commission meetings to receive comments on the Redline Zoning Code. 

e. City Council Meetings (2) 
I will attend two City Council meeting to receive comments on the Redline Zoning Code. 

Task 3.  Final Zoning Code 

a. Draft Final Zoning Code 
Based on input from the Planning Commission and City Council, I will prepare a Draft Final Zoning Code 
for review by City staff and the Planning Commission and City Council if needed.  I will also make 
changes to the Zoning Code graphics and Zoning Map as needed. 

b. Final Zoning Code 
I will prepare a Final Zoning Code that addresses any final revisions to reflect the Zoning Code as 
adopted by the City Council.  

 
BUDGET 
 
As shown in Table 1 on the following page, I can complete the scope of work described above for a total 
cost of $26,110. These costs assume a billing rate if $135 per hour and include mileage expenses for 14 
meetings. 
  

8.E.1

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

en
 N

o
b

le
 U

rb
an

 a
n

d
 R

eg
io

n
al

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(1
42

2 
: 

Z
o

n
in

g
 C

o
d

e 
U

p
d

at
e 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



3 
 

  www.bnplanning.com    

Table 1: Budget 
 

Task Hours Cost 

1. Public Review Draft Zoning Code Meetings   

a.  Planning Commission Meetings (8) 56 $7,560 

b.  City Council Meetings (2) 14 $1,890 

2.  Redline Zoning Code   

a.  Administrative Draft Redline Zoning Code 40 $5,400 

b.  Screencheck Draft Redline Zoning Code 12 $1,620 

c.  Final Redline Zoning Code 8 $1,080 

d.  Planning Commission Meetings (2) 14 $1,890 

e.  City Council Meeting (2) 14 $1,890 

3.  Final Zoning Code   

a.  Draft Final Zoning Code 18 $2,430 

b.  Final Zoning Code 8 $1,080 

   

Labor Cost  $24,840 

   

Expenses   

Travel (14 trips, 168 miles each, $0.54 per mile)  $1,270 

   

TOTAL  $26,110 

 
 
 
Please do not hesitate to contact me with any additional questions.  I look forward to continuing to work 
with you on the Zoning Code Update. 
 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 

Ben Noble 

Urban and Regional Planning  

 
Attachments: 

Resume 

 

8.E.1

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

en
 N

o
b

le
 U

rb
an

 a
n

d
 R

eg
io

n
al

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(1
42

2 
: 

Z
o

n
in

g
 C

o
d

e 
U

p
d

at
e 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



 

BEN NOBLE 
City and Regional Planning 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

PROJECT EXPERIENCE 
All projects are within California unless otherwise noted. 

Development Codes 
̄ Morgan Hill Residence Development Control System and 

Zoning Ordinance 

̄ Concord Subdivision Ordinance 

̄ Sonoma County Development Code 

̄ Moraga Hillsides and Ridgelines Regulations 

̄ Corcoran Zoning Code  

̄ Milpitas Housing Element Code Amendments 

̄ Upland Zoning Code  

̄ Butte County Zoning Ordinance 

̄ Butte County Alternative Energy Overlay 

̄ Morgan Hill Zoning Code and Residential Growth Control 
System  

̄ Oroville Development Code Update and Sustainable 
Code Amendments 

̄ Capitola Zoning Code 

̄ Merced Zoning Code  

̄ Chino Zoning Code and Subdivision Ordinance  

̄ Tulare Subdivision Ordinance  

̄ Westminster Sign Code  

̄ National City Land Use Code  

̄ San Bruno Zoning Code  

̄ San Luis Obispo County Infill Design Standards 

̄ San Bernardino Transit-Oriented Development Overlay 
Zone  

̄ Madera Zoning Code  

̄ Tracy Zoning Code  

̄ Hughson Subdivision and Zoning Ordinances  

̄ Yuba City Zoning Code  

̄ Morro Bay Zoning Code  

̄ El Cerrito Zoning Code  

̄ Manteca Zoning Code  

Transfer of Development Rights 
̄ Transfer of Development Rights  

Implementation Plan, Beaufort, South Carolina 

̄ Transfer of Developments Rights Program, Daufuskie 
Island, South Carolina 

 

General Plans 
̄ Capitola General Plan  

̄ Larkspur General Plan Update Facilitation Services  

̄ San Carlos General Plan  

̄ Monte Sereno General Plan  

̄ Novato General Plan  

̄ Concord General Plan  

Housing Elements 
̄ San Carlos Housing Element  

̄ Windsor Housing Element  

̄ Monte Sereno Housing Element  

̄ Yolo County Housing Element  

̄ Sausalito Housing Element  

Area Plans 
̄ Santa Cruz Ocean Street Area Plan 

̄ Upper Wisconsin Avenue Transit-Oriented Development 
Specific Plan, Washington, D.C. 

̄ Dell Avenue Precise Plan Implementation Program, City of 
Campbell 

Regional and Countywide Planning 
̄ Sustainable Santa Cruz County Plan 

̄ Sustainable Communities Strategy - Phase 1, Association 
of Monterey Bay Area Governments 

̄ Sustainable Communities Strategy Implementation 
Project, Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments 

̄ Smart Valley Places Cities COMPACT Cities Executive 
Committee Coordination 

̄ San Luis Obispo County Complete Communities Survey 

̄ Contra Costa Transportation Authority Countywide 
Transportation Plan 

 

Ben Noble has over a decade of experience preparing zoning codes, general plans, and 
other planning documents for communities throughout California.  Over his career Ben 
has worked in a diversity of settings, including urban centers, small towns, and rural 
counties.  To each project Ben brings creative problem-solving instincts, strong project 
management skills, and a collaborative work style.  Ben is particularly passionate about 
preparing zoning codes and development regulations that are carefully tailored to each 
client’s unique needs.  Ben is a leader in the development of evidence-based “smart 
regulation” that aims to maximize public benefits while minimizing private costs.  
 

8.E.1

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

en
 N

o
b

le
 U

rb
an

 a
n

d
 R

eg
io

n
al

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(1
42

2 
: 

Z
o

n
in

g
 C

o
d

e 
U

p
d

at
e 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



 

 

 

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 

PlaceWorks (formerly The Planning Center | DC&E) 
̄ Associate Principal, 2012-2014 

̄ Senior Associate, 2008-2012 

̄ Associate, 2006-2008 

City of Sausalito 
̄ Associate Planner, 2004-2006 

Dyett & Bhatia 
̄ Planner, 2002-2004 

District of Columbia Office of Planning 
̄ Intern, 2001 

 

EDUCATION 
̄ Masters in City and Regional Planning, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill 

̄ BA, History and Southeast Asian Studies, University of Wisconsin, Madison 

 

SPEAKING ENGAGEMENTS 
̄ Going Downtown: New Centers for Suburban Communities, 2015 American Planning Association California Chapter State 

Conference 

̄ Public Engagement Strategies in an Adversarial Environment, 2014 California League of Cities Planning Commissioners 
Academy 

̄ Implementing Sustainability: General Plans in the Central Valley, 2013 American Planning Association California Chapter 
State Conference 

̄ Planning in an Adversarial Environment, 2013 American Planning Association California Chapter State Conference 

̄ Smart Valley Places: A Model of Regional Collaboration in the Central Valley, 2012 San Joaquin Valley Fall Policy 
Conference 

̄ Preparing Successful Grant Applications, 2012 American Planning Association California Chapter State Conference  

̄ Plan Implementation Tools, 2010 and 2011 University of California Extension Land Use and Environmental Planning 
Certificate Program   

̄ Youth Make the Call: Including Younger People in the Community Planning Process, 2010 American Planning Association 
California Chapter State Conference  

̄ Form-Based Codes in the Real World, 2009 American Planning Association California Chapter State Conference 

 

ARTICLES & PUBLICATIONS 
̄ Going Downtown:  Suburban Communities Creating New Centers, Planning Magazine, forthcoming 

̄ Zoning Codes in Plain English, American Planning Association Zoning Practice, January 2015 

̄ Governor Expected to Sign SB 375, American Planning Association Northern California Section Northern News, October 
2008 

 

AWARDS 
̄ 2013 American Planning Association Northern California Section Award of Merit for Outstanding Urban Design Category, 

Ocean Street Area Plan, Santa Cruz CA 

̄ 2010 American Planning Association Northern California Section Award of Merit for Outstanding Planning, 
Comprehensive Planning Small Jurisdiction Category, San Carlos General Plan, San Carlos CA 

 
 
 

8.E.1

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

en
 N

o
b

le
 U

rb
an

 a
n

d
 R

eg
io

n
al

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(1
42

2 
: 

Z
o

n
in

g
 C

o
d

e 
U

p
d

at
e 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



 

CITY OF CAPITOLA
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

Zoning Code Update
Ben Noble Urban and Regional Planning

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into on April 14, 2016, by and between the City of Capitola, a 
Municipal Corporation, hereinafter called "City" and Ben Noble Urban and Regional Planning, hereinafter 
called "Consultant".

WHEREAS, City desires certain services described in Appendix One and Consultant is capable 
of providing and desires to provide these services;

NOW, THEREFORE, City and Consultant for the consideration and upon the terms and 
conditions hereinafter specified agree as follows:

SECTION 1
Scope of Services

The services to be performed under this Agreement are for Completion of the Capitola Zoning 
Code Update and further detailed in Appendix One.

SECTION 2
Duties of Consultant

All work performed by Consultant, or under its direction, shall be sufficient to satisfy the City's 
objectives for entering into this Agreement and shall be rendered in accordance with the generally 
accepted practices, and to the standards of, Consultant's profession.

Consultant shall not undertake any work beyond the scope of work set forth in Appendix One 
unless such additional work is approved in advance and in writing by City.  The cost of such additional 
work shall be reimbursed to Consultant by City on the same basis as provided for in Section 4.

If, in the prosecution of the work, it is necessary to conduct field operations, security and safety of 
the job site will be the Consultant's responsibility excluding, nevertheless, the security and safety of any 
facility of City within the job site which is not under the Consultant's control.

Consultant shall meet with the Community Development Director, called “Director," or other City
personnel, or third parties as necessary, on all matters connected with carrying out of Consultant's 
services described in Appendix One.  Such meetings shall be held at the request of either party hereto.  
Review and City approval of completed work shall be obtained monthly, or at such intervals as may be 
mutually agreed upon, during the course of this work.

SECTION 3
Duties of the City

City shall make available to Consultant all data and information in the City's possession which 
City deems necessary to the preparation and execution of the work, and City shall actively aid and assist 
Consultant in obtaining such information from other agencies and individuals as necessary.

The Director may authorize a staff person to serve as his or her representative for conferring with 
Consultant relative to Consultant's services.  The work in progress hereunder shall be reviewed from time 
to time by City at the discretion of City or upon the request of Consultant.  If the work is satisfactory, it will 
be approved.  If the work is not satisfactory, City will inform Consultant of the changes or revisions 
necessary to secure approval.

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
F

o
rm

 -
 Z

o
n

in
g

 C
o

d
e 

U
p

d
at

e 
 (

14
22

 :
 Z

o
n

in
g

 C
o

d
e 

U
p

d
at

e 
P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



Professional Services Agreement April 14, 2016
Zoning Code Update 
Ben Noble Urban and Regional Planning
Page 2

SECTION 4
Fees and Payment

Payment for the Consultant's services shall be made upon a schedule and within the limit, or 
limits shown, upon Appendix Two. Such payment shall be considered the full compensation for all 
personnel, materials, supplies, and equipment used by Consultant in carrying out the work.  If Consultant 
is compensated on an hourly basis, Consultant shall track the number of hours Consultant, and each of 
Consultant’s employees, has worked under this Agreement during each fiscal year (July 1 through June 
30) and Consultant shall immediately notify City when the number of hours worked during any fiscal year 
by any of Consultant’s employees reaches 900 hours.  In addition each invoice submitted by Consultant 
to City shall specify the number of hours to date Consultant, and each of Consultant’s employees, has 
worked under this Agreement during the current fiscal year.

SECTION 5
Changes in Work

City may order major changes in scope or character of the work, either decreasing or increasing 
the scope of Consultant's services.  No changes in the Scope of Work as described in Appendix One 
shall be made without the City's written approval.  Any change requiring compensation in excess of the 
sum specified in Appendix Two shall be approved in advance in writing by the City.

SECTION 6
Time of Beginning and Schedule for Completion

This Agreement will become effective when signed by both parties and will terminate on the 
earlier of:

l The date Consultant completes the services required by this Agreement, as agreed by the City; or

l The date either party terminates the Agreement as provided below.

Work shall begin on or about April 15, 2016.

In the event that major changes are ordered or Consultant is delayed in performance of its 
services by circumstances beyond its control, the City will grant Consultant a reasonable adjustment in 
the schedule for completion provided that to do so would not frustrate the City's objective for entering into 
this Agreement.  Consultant must submit all claims for adjustments to City within thirty calendar days of 
the time of occurrence of circumstances necessitating the adjustment.

SECTION 7
Termination

City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at any time upon giving ten days written 
notice to Consultant.  Consultant may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to City should the 
City fail to fulfill its duties as set forth in this Agreement.  In the event of termination, City shall pay the 
Consultant for all services performed and accepted under this Agreement up to the date of termination.

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
F

o
rm

 -
 Z

o
n

in
g

 C
o

d
e 

U
p

d
at

e 
 (

14
22

 :
 Z

o
n

in
g

 C
o

d
e 

U
p

d
at

e 
P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



Professional Services Agreement April 14, 2016
Zoning Code Update 
Ben Noble Urban and Regional Planning
Page 3

SECTION 8
Insurance

Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract, insurance against claims 
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, his agents, representatives, or employees. 

Minimum Scope of Insurance

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage
(Occurrence Form CG 0001).

2. Insurance Services office Form Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, 
Code 1 (any auto).

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, and Employer’s 
Liability Insurance.

4. Professional (Errors and Omissions) Liability insurance appropriate to the consultant’s 
profession.  Architects’ and engineers’ coverage shall include contractual liability.

Minimum Limits of Insurance

Consultant shall maintain limits no less than:

1. General Liability:
(including operations, 
products and completed 
operations)

$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 in 
aggregate (including operations, for bodily injury, 
personal and property damage.

2. Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and 
property damage.

3.

4.  

Employer’s Liability Insurance

Errors and Omissions 
Liability: 
Limits

$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and 
property damage.

$1,000,000 per claim and $2,000,000 in the 
aggregate.

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
F

o
rm

 -
 Z

o
n

in
g

 C
o

d
e 

U
p

d
at

e 
 (

14
22

 :
 Z

o
n

in
g

 C
o

d
e 

U
p

d
at

e 
P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



Professional Services Agreement April 14, 2016
Zoning Code Update 
Ben Noble Urban and Regional Planning
Page 4

Other Insurance Provisions

The commercial general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, 
the following provisions:

1. The City of Capitola, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to be covered 
as additional insured’s as respects:  liability arising out of work or operations performed 
by or on behalf of the Consultant and automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by 
the Consultant.

2. For any claims related to this project, the Consultant’s insurance coverage shall be 
primary insurance as respects the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers.  
Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its officers, officials, employees 
or volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute 
with it.

3. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage 
shall not be canceled except after prior written notice has been given to the City.

Acceptability of Insurers

Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless 
otherwise acceptable to the City.

Waiver of Subrogation 

Contractor hereby agrees to waive rights of subrogation which any insurer of Contractor may acquire 
from Contractor by virtue of the payment of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that 
may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation. The Workers’ Compensation policy shall be 
endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of the City of Capitola for all work performed by the 
Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors.

Verification of Coverage

Consultant shall furnish the City with original certificates and amendatory endorsements affecting 
coverage by this clause.  The endorsements should be on forms provided by the City or on other than the 
City’s forms provided those endorsements conform to City requirements.  All certificates and 
endorsements are to be received and approved by the City before work commences.  The City reserves 
the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements 
affecting the coverage required by these specifications at any time. 

SECTION 9
Indemnification

Consultant shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify City and its officers, officials, employees, agents, 
and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses including attorney fees 
arising out of the performance of the work described herein, caused in whole or in part by any negligent 
act or omission of the Consultant, Consultant’s employees, agents or subcontractors, except where 
caused by the active negligence, sole negligence, or willful misconduct of the City.

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
F

o
rm

 -
 Z

o
n

in
g

 C
o

d
e 

U
p

d
at

e 
 (

14
22

 :
 Z

o
n

in
g

 C
o

d
e 

U
p

d
at

e 
P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



Professional Services Agreement April 14, 2016
Zoning Code Update 
Ben Noble Urban and Regional Planning
Page 5

SECTION 10
Civil Rights Compliance/Equal Opportunity Assurance

Every supplier of materials and services and all consultants doing business with the City of 
Capitola shall be in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990, and shall be an equal opportunity employer as defined by Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
and including the California Fair Employment and Housing Act of 1980.  As such, consultant shall not 
discriminate against any person on the basis of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, 
disability, medical condition, marital status, age or sex with respect to hiring, application for employment, 
tenure or terms and conditions of employment.  Consultant agrees to abide by all of the foregoing 
statutes and regulations.

SECTION 11
Legal Action/Attorneys' Fees

If any action at law or in equity is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, 
the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees in addition to any other relief to which 
he or she may be entitled.  The laws of the State of California shall govern all matters relating to the 
validity, interpretation, and effect of this Agreement and any authorized or alleged changes, the 
performance of any of its terms, as well as the rights and obligations of Consultant and the City.

SECTION 12
Assignment

This Agreement shall not be assigned without first obtaining the express written consent of the 
Director after approval of the City Council.

SECTION 13
Amendments

This Agreement may not be amended in any respect except by way of a written instrument which 
expressly references and identifies this particular Agreement, which expressly states that its purpose is to 
amend this particular Agreement, and which is duly executed by the City and Consultant.  Consultant 
acknowledges that no such amendment shall be effective until approved and authorized by the City
Council, or an officer of the City when the City Council may from time to time empower an officer of the 
City to approve and authorize such amendments.  No representative of the City is authorized to obligate 
the City to pay the cost or value of services beyond the scope of services set forth in Appendix Two.  
Such authority is retained solely by the City Council.  Unless expressly authorized by the City Council, 
Consultant's compensation shall be limited to that set forth in Appendix Two.

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
F

o
rm

 -
 Z

o
n

in
g

 C
o

d
e 

U
p

d
at

e 
 (

14
22

 :
 Z

o
n

in
g

 C
o

d
e 

U
p

d
at

e 
P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



Professional Services Agreement April 14, 2016
Zoning Code Update 
Ben Noble Urban and Regional Planning
Page 6

SECTION 14
Miscellaneous Provisions

1. Project Manager.  Director reserves the right to approve the project manager assigned by 
Consultant to said work.  No change in assignment may occur without prior written approval of the City.

2. Consultant Service.  Consultant is employed to render professional services only and any 
payments made to Consultant are compensation solely for such professional services.

3. Licensure.  Consultant warrants that he or she has complied with any and all applicable 
governmental licensing requirements.

4. Other Agreements.  This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements, either oral 
or in writing, between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter, and no other agreement, 
statement or promise related to the subject matter of this Agreement which is not contained in this 
Agreement shall be valid or binding.

5. City Property.  Upon payment for the work performed, or portion thereof, all drawings, 
specifications, records, or other documents generated by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement are, and 
shall remain, the property of the City whether the project for which they are made is executed or not.  The 
Consultant shall be permitted to retain copies, including reproducible copies, of drawings and 
specifications for information and reference in connection with the City's use and/or occupancy of the 
project.  The drawings, specifications, records, documents, and Consultant's other work product shall not 
be used by the Consultant on other projects, except by agreement in writing and with appropriate 
compensation to the City.

6. Consultant's Records.  Consultant shall maintain accurate accounting records and other 
written documentation pertaining to the costs incurred for this project.  Such records and documentation 
shall be kept available at Consultant's office during the period of this Agreement, and after the term of this 
Agreement for a period of three years from the date of the final City payment for Consultant's services.

7. Independent Contractor.  In the performance of its work, it is expressly understood that 
Consultant, including Consultant's agents, servants, employees, and subcontractors, is an independent 
contractor solely responsible for its acts and omissions, and Consultant shall not be considered an 
employee of the City for any purpose.

8. Conflicts of Interest.  Consultant stipulates that corporately or individually, its firm, its 
employees and subcontractors have no financial interest in either the success or failure of any project 
which is, or may be, dependent on the results of the Consultant's work product prepared pursuant to this 
Agreement.

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
F

o
rm

 -
 Z

o
n

in
g

 C
o

d
e 

U
p

d
at

e 
 (

14
22

 :
 Z

o
n

in
g

 C
o

d
e 

U
p

d
at

e 
P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



Professional Services Agreement April 14, 2016
Zoning Code Update 
Ben Noble Urban and Regional Planning
Page 7

9. Notices.  All notices herein provided to be given, or which may be given by either party 
to the other, shall be deemed to have been fully given and fully received when made in writing and 
deposited in the United States mail, certified and postage prepaid, and addressed to the respective 
parties as follows:

CITY CONSULTANT
CITY OF CAPITOLA
420 Capitola Avenue
Capitola, CA 95010

831-475-7300

Ben Noble City and Regional Planning
733 Carmel Avenue
Albany, CA 94706

510-529-8820

By:__________________________________
 Benjamin Goldstein, City Manager

By:__________________________________
 Ben Noble, Consultant

Dated:________________________________ Dated:_______________________________

Approved as to Form:

_______________________________
Anthony Condotti, City Counsel

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
F

o
rm

 -
 Z

o
n

in
g

 C
o

d
e 

U
p

d
at

e 
 (

14
22

 :
 Z

o
n

in
g

 C
o

d
e 

U
p

d
at

e 
P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



Professional Services Agreement April 14, 2016
Zoning Code Update 
Ben Noble Urban and Regional Planning
Page 8

APPENDIX ONE
Scope of Services

Task 1. Public Review Draft Zoning Code Meetings

a. Planning Commission Meetings (8)
Consultant will attend eight Planning Commission meetings to receive feedback on the Public Review 
Draft Zoning Code.  These eight meetings include the two Planning Commission meetings consultant 
has already attended in March of this year. Costs to attend these meetings assumes that City staff will 
assume the lead role in preparing meeting materials.

b. City Council Meetings (2)
Consultant will attend two City Council meeting to receive feedback on the Public Review Draft Zoning 
Code.

Task 2.  Redline Zoning Code

a. Administrative Draft Redline Zoning Code
Based on input from the Planning Commission and City Council, consultant will prepare an 
Administrative Redline Zoning Code for review by City staff.  This Zoning Code will show all changes 
made to the Public Review Draft Zoning Code in underline strikethrough text.  Consultant will also 
make changes to the Zoning Code graphics and Zoning Map as needed.

b. Screencheck Draft Redline Zoning Code
Consultant will prepare a Screencheck Draft Redline Zoning Code for review by City staff that 
addresses City staff comments on the Administrative Redline Zoning Code.

c. Final Redline Zoning Code
Consultant will prepare a Final Redline Zoning Code for public review that addresses City staff 
comments on the Screencheck Draft Redline Zoning Code.  

d. Planning Commission Meetings (2)
Consultant will attend two Planning Commission meetings to receive comments on the Redline 
Zoning Code.

e. City Council Meeting (2)
Consultant will attend two City Council meeting to receive comments on the Redline Zoning Code.

Task 3.  Final Zoning Code

a. Draft Final Zoning Code
Based on input from the Planning Commission and City Council, consultant will prepare a Draft Final 
Zoning Code for review by City staff and the Planning Commission and City Council if needed.  
Consultant will also make changes to the Zoning Code graphics and Zoning Map as needed.

b. Final Zoning Code
Consultant will prepare a Final Zoning Code that addresses any final revisions to reflect the Zoning 
Code as adopted by the City Council. 

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
F

o
rm

 -
 Z

o
n

in
g

 C
o

d
e 

U
p

d
at

e 
 (

14
22

 :
 Z

o
n

in
g

 C
o

d
e 

U
p

d
at

e 
P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



Professional Services Agreement April 14, 2016
Zoning Code Update 
Ben Noble Urban and Regional Planning
Page 9

APPENDIX TWO
Fees and Payments

For the services performed, City will pay consultant on a time-charge plus expense basis, 
monthly as charges accrue, the sum of consultant’s salary expenses and non-salary expenses. 

Salary expenses include the actual direct pay of personnel assigned to the project (except for 
routine secretarial and account services) plus payroll taxes, insurance, sick leave, holidays, vacation, 
and other fringe benefits.  The percentage of compensation attributable to salary expenses includes 
all of Consultant’s indirect overhead costs and fees.  For purposes of this Agreement, Consultant’s 
salary expenses and non-salary expenses will be compensated at the rates set forth in the fee 
schedule attached to this appendix and in accordance with the terms set forth therein. Non-salary 
expenses include travel, meals and lodging while traveling, materials other than normal office 
supplies, reproduction and printing costs, equipment rental, computer services, service of 
subconsultants or subcontractors, and other identifiable job expenses.  The use of Consultant’s 
vehicles for travel shall be paid at the current Internal Revenue Service published mileage rate.

Salary payment for personnel time will be made at the rates set forth in the attached fee 
schedule for all time charged to the project.  Normal payroll rates are for 40 hours per week.  
Consultant shall not charge the City for personnel overtime salary at rates higher than those set forth 
in the attached fee schedule without the City’s prior written authorization.

In no event shall the total fee charged for the scope of work set forth in Appendix One exceed 
the total budget of $26,110.00 (Twenty-six Thousand One Hundred Ten dollars and Zero Cents), 
without specific, written advance authorization from the City.

Payments shall be made monthly by the City, based on itemized invoices from the Consultant 
which list actual costs and expenses. Such payments shall be for the invoice amount. The monthly 
statements shall contain the following affidavit signed by a principal of the Consultant’s firm:

"I hereby certify as principal of the firm of Ben Noble Urban and Regional Planning, that the 
charge of $26,110.00 as summarized above and shown in detail on the attachments is fair and 
reasonable, is in accordance with the terms of the Agreement dated April 14, 2016, and has not been 
previously paid."

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
F

o
rm

 -
 Z

o
n

in
g

 C
o

d
e 

U
p

d
at

e 
 (

14
22

 :
 Z

o
n

in
g

 C
o

d
e 

U
p

d
at

e 
P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



Professional Services Agreement April 14, 2016
Zoning Code Update 
Ben Noble Urban and Regional Planning
Page 10

APPENDIX THREE
Fee Schedule from Ben Noble Urban and Regional Planning Proposal

FEE SCHEDULE/BUDGET

The following costs assume a billing rate if $135 per hour and include mileage expenses for twelve meetings.

Table 1: Budget

R:\Contracts Adm\Current Contract Forms\City Contract Form_Revised 6-16-11.docx

Task Hours Cost

1. Public Review Draft Zoning Code Meetings

a.  Planning Commission Meetings (8) 56 $7,560

b.  City Council Meetings (2) 14 $1,890

2.  Redline Zoning Code

a.  Administrative Draft Redline Zoning Code 40 $5,400

b.  Screencheck Draft Redline Zoning Code 12 $1,620

c.  Final Redline Zoning Code 8 $1,080

d.  Planning Commission Meetings (2) 14 $1,890

e.  City Council Meeting (2) 2 $1,890

3.  Final Zoning Code

a.  Draft Final Zoning Code 18 $2,430

b.  Final Zoning Code 8 $1,080

Labor Cost $28,840

Expenses

Travel (12 trips, 168 miles each, $0.54 per mile) $1,279

TOTAL $26,110

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
F

o
rm

 -
 Z

o
n

in
g

 C
o

d
e 

U
p

d
at

e 
 (

14
22

 :
 Z

o
n

in
g

 C
o

d
e 

U
p

d
at

e 
P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
g

re
em

en
t 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



P:\ADVANCE PLANNING\ZO Update\Contract\Sole Source Purchase Memo.doc

Date: April 14, 2016

To:  City Council
From: Richard Grunow, Community Development Director

Re:       Sole Source Purchases Determination – Ben Noble Urban and Regional Planning, 
$26,110.00, April 14, 2016

BACKGROUND:  The City of Capitola Purchasing and Procurement policy (Administrative Policy III-4), 
Section II B and C requires telephone quotes for purchases up to $5,000, and requires a formal RFP bid 
procedure for purchases over $5,000.  The policy also includes Sole Source exemption, as follows:

B. Sole Source 
1. Materials, Supplies & Equipment: 

a. Definition. Sole source purchases are used where no secondary source is reasonably 
available precluding the use of a competitive process. 

2. Consultant or General Services: 
a. In the case where a consulting firm has satisfactorily performed the previous stage of a 

project (e.g. a pre-design), or has acquired extensive background and working 
knowledge, the firm may be selected for follow- up work without solicitations from 
other firm upon written justification and recommendation of the department head and 
approval by the City Manager or designee.

b. If a firm is a highly recognized authority in a field or specialty, or has unique specific 
knowledge regarding the project, then the firm may be selected without other 
solicitations for contracts and upon written justification and recommendation of the 
department head and approval by the City Manager or designee.

c. Upon those infrequent occasions when confidence in the consultant and quality of 
service are important.

3. Documentation:  It is the responsibility of the requesting department to maintain in their files a 
complete, written justification of the sole source purchase approved by the City Manager. 

4. Authorization & Reporting: All sole source purchases of more than $25,000 are authorized by the 
City Council and fully disclosed in the staff agenda report. Sole source purchases between $5,000 
and $25,000 are authorized by the City Manager.  Sole source purchases less than $5,000 are 
authorized by the Department Heads.

DISCUSSION:  The contract with Ben Noble Urban and Regional Planning, in the amount of  
$26,110.00, dated April 16, 2016 has been determined to be a Sole Source because the consulting firm 
has performed previous stages of the project to the City’s satisfactory and the firm has extensive 
background and working knowledge of the zoning code update project.  

__________________________________________   ______________________________________
Dept Head Date  City Manager Date

CITY OF CAPITOLA
MEMO

8.E.3

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

o
le

 S
o

u
rc

e 
P

u
rc

h
as

e 
M

em
o

  (
14

22
 :

 Z
o

n
in

g
 C

o
d

e 
U

p
d

at
e 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF APRIL 14, 2016

FROM: Public Works Department

SUBJECT: Accept Report on the Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Wharf 
Resiliency Study (Study) and Provide Direction to Staff 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept the Study and provide direction to staff on a 10-year plan of 
improvements for the Capitola Wharf.

BACKGROUND: In November 2015 the City Council authorized a contract with Moffatt and 
Nichol for preparation of a condition assessment of the Capitola Wharf and the development of 
options for strengthening the wharf to be more resilient to storm damage and deterioration from 
the marine environment. The report has been completed and is included as Attachment 1. A 
draft copy of the report was presented to the Wharf Working Group on February 22, 2016, at 
which time the group discussed the long term needs of the wharf. The group recommended that 
the City look at a 10 year window and determine what improvements and repairs should be 
made in this timeframe to ensure the wharf can be sustained in to the future. 

DISCUSSION: The Wharf is comprised of three distinct sections, the base area over the beach, 
the trestle area in the middle, and the head where the buildings are located. Of these three 
areas the trestle is the most susceptible to failure due to the fact that each discrete section is 
dependent on three piles and the loss of any one of the three piles could potentially require 
closing the wharf. At the base and head of the wharf, where it is wider and multiple pilings 
support the structure, loss of a single pile, while not insignificant, can usually be mitigated on a 
temporary basis without closing down the wharf. Of course, catastrophic loss of multiple piles 
and other structural elements can certainly occur in large storms and result in heavy damage 
and long term closures. 

As detailed in the report, Capitola Wharf is generally in fair to good condition and should remain 
in service with ongoing maintenance and repairs, consisting primarily of pile repair and 
replacement. It is recommended that in the near future three wooden piles and twelve steel piles 
at the end of the wharf be replaced or strengthened.

Section 4 of the report discusses strategies for improving the resiliency of the wharf caused by 
storms. Heavy storm damage may result in non-structural damage to such things as the wharf 
decking and hand rails, to significant structural damage from the loss of pilings or damage to 
exposed utility lines.  

To try to minimize the impacts and damage to the wharf Moffatt and Nichol have developed 
three potential strategies for strengthening the structure so that critical elements of the wharf, 
such as the stingers which run parallel to the wharf and support the loads placed on the 
structure, are less reliant on individual elements (piles) and therefore stronger as a unit. These 
strategies include:

9.A

Packet Pg. 49



Wharf Condition Report 
April 14, 2016

1. Strengthening existing piles
2. Adding redundant piles
3. Strengthening the stringers

The costs for these improvements vary on the scope of effort. For example, the piles on the 
western side of the wharf, which are more exposed to storms and debris, could be strengthened 
or all of the outside piles strengthened. The costs for the various improvement strategies range 
in cost from $200,000 to $4,000,000 and are detailed in the report.

At the Wharf Group meeting an idea was discussed about widening the wharf through the trestle 
area. This strategy would strengthen the wharf by providing piling redundancy in this area. 
Analysis of this approach, including cost estimates, was beyond the scope of Moffatt and 
Nichol’s original contract. They have provided a proposal to complete this analysis as an 
addendum to the report at a cost of $6,300 which is included as Attachment 2.

Mr. Brad Porter from Moffatt and Nichol will present the report findings to the City Council and 
answer any questions. As proposed by the Wharf Group, it is recommended that the City 
Council provide direction on the scope of work for a 10 year improvement plan. If widening the 
trestle section is to be considered further, approval of a contract amendment to analyze this 
strategy further is recommended. Once project description is developed and approved, 
financing plans and schedules will be developed. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Sufficient funding is available for the widening analysis within the Wharf Fund. 
Based on the direction provided by the Council a project description and detailed estimate will 
be prepared and then grant funding will be sought through the CDBG program, Coastal 
Conservancy, Wildlife Conservation Board, Department of Boating and Waterways, and other 
agencies yet to be identified.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Resilency Study
2. Wharf Widening Study Proposal

Report Prepared By:  Steve Jesberg
Public Works Director

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

9.A

Packet Pg. 50



 

2185 N. California Blvd., Suite 500 
Walnut Creek, CA 94596 
 
(925) 944-5411    Fax: (925) 944-4732 
www.moffattnichol.com 

 

Memorandum 

To: Mr. Steve Jesberg, Public Works Director, City of Capitola 

From: Brad Porter, PE 

Date: April 6, 2016 

Subject: Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Wharf Resiliency Study 

Project: Capitola Wharf Engineering Services (MN # 9154) 

CC:  

 

1.0 SUMMARY 

The purpose of this memo is to describe the observations of the structural condition of the 
Capitola Wharf (“the Wharf”, shown in Photograph 1), present concepts to increase the resiliency 
of the Wharf, and concept costs as input to planning.  The wharf is generally in fair to good 
condition and may remain in service with ongoing maintenance and repairs, consisting primarily 
of pile repair or replacement.  Approximately 3 timber piles need replacement at an estimated 
cost of $70k-$100k; the steel piles at the south Wharf end need replacement at an estimated cost 
of $150-$250k. Alternatives to increase Wharf resiliency to wave damage include adding or 
strengthening piles on the Wharf outside edge and increasing the span length of the stringers.  
Costs for these alternatives range from $150k to $4.4 mil. 
 

 

Photograph 1. Capitola Wharf (looking east) 

 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 City of Capitola 
  Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Resiliency Study 

April 6, 2016 

Page 2 of 27 
 

1.1 Background 

The Wharf is an existing timber structure used primarily for recreation activities and contains a 
bait shop, boat rentals, boat launch, restaurant, restroom facilities, and fish cleaning stations. 
Limited motor vehicle access is permitted and a floating dock with access onto the Wharf is 
available in the summer.  
 
The Wharf has been inspected and repaired over its life.  Available records go back to the early 
1980s that include a soils report (Soil Investigation, Capitola Municipal Wharf, Harding Lawson, 
April, 1980) a dive inspection (Underwater Inspection Report, Marine Interface, January 1981) 
and repair drawings (Storm Damage Repairs, HV Anderson Engineers, April 1983) for major repairs 
to the south end of Wharf from storm damage in 1983. More recently, condition assessments 
have been performed by Moffatt & Nichol: 1996 Inspection and Renovation Report, 2008 
Inspection Report after damage from a large wave event as well as other small investigations 
during this period. 
 
Previous assessments have concluded that the elevation (20 ft MLLW) of the Wharf’s deck 
structure is below the crest elevation of attacking waves in large events. Therefore, the Wharf is 
at risk of being damaged by relatively frequent storms. 

1.2 Scope and Purpose 

The purpose of this inspection is to identify deterioration in members, identify members in need 
of replacement, and make recommendations for repair and costs. 

2.0 WHARF CONDITION ASSESMENT 

2.1 Description of Wharf 

The Wharf is approximately 866 feet long from the shore to the wharf face, and can be divided 
into two sections: the trestle and Wharf Head, See Figure 1. The Wharf trestle is typically 
approximately 20 feet wide and 543 feet long. The trestle connects the shore to the larger wharf 
head, which is approximately 323 feet long and 60 feet wide. The resturaunt, boat rentals, boat 
launch, summer dock, and restroom facilities are located on the Wharf head. 

Figure 1 Wharf Plan and Pile Grid (Bent, Row ) 

 

Shore                                                            Trestle                                                                          Head 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 City of Capitola 
  Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Resiliency Study 

April 6, 2016 

Page 3 of 27 
 

The Wharf is constructed of timber structural elements similar in configuration to other ocean 
piers (a “pier” is perpendicular to the shore, as is Capitola Wharf, where as a “wharf” is parallel to 
shore, although these terms are often used interchangeably). The piles are 12 - 14 inch diameter 
creosote treated timbers aligned in rows (“bents”) perpendicular to the Wharf centerline at 12 ft 
nominal spacing. The piles support timber cap (10 x 12) beams (pile caps) that span across the 
bent.  The caps support stringers (6 x 12) that supports the Wharf decking (3 x 12).  Photograph 2 
shows the structural framing configuration.  The stringers are lapped at bents, but typically only 
span between adjacent bents--are “simply supported”. This provides no redundancy if there is 
loss of support from one of the pile bents. Alternatively, if they were extended past the cap to the 
next cap that would form a “continuous beam” and would provide some redundant support if one 
pile cap support is lost (see section 4 for further discussion). 
 

 

Photograph 2. Typical Structural Framing  

The trestle includes the structure from Bent 0 to Bent 46 with bents typically support by a three-
pile arrangement, shown in Photograph  3. 
 
The wharf head is located at the seaward end of the wharf and includes the restaurant and bait 
shop buildings. The framing at this portion is typically six piles wide with some additional irregular 
piles. The remaining wharf deck structure is similar to the trestle.  Photograph 5 and 5 show the 
wharf head structure and framing configuration; additional photos are shown in Appendix A. 

Pile 

 

Stringer 

Decking 

Pile Cap 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 City of Capitola 
  Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Resiliency Study 

April 6, 2016 

Page 4 of 27 
 

Photograph 3. Capitola Wharf Trestle Underside 

 

Photograph 4. Capitola Wharf Head Platform Underside  

The Wharf Head also includes twelve steel piles (six plumb and six batter) at the face (see 
Photograph 6).  These piles were installed in 1983 after storm waves overtopped the Wharf and 
did significant damage to the south end of the Wharf that faces the incoming waves.  These 
steel piles, with batter (slanted) piles were installed to increase the stiffness of the Wharf end to 
resist wave forces and resulting deflection.  

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 City of Capitola 
  Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Resiliency Study 

April 6, 2016 

Page 5 of 27 
 

Fi
gu

re
 2

-W
h

ar
f 

St
ru

ct
u

re
 C

o
n

fi
gu

ra
ti

o
n

 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 City of Capitola 
  Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Resiliency Study 

April 6, 2016 

Page 6 of 27 
 

 

Photograph 5. Structural Framing at Wharf Head 

  
Photograph 6. Steel Piles at Wharf Head 
 

Stringer 

Decking 

Pile Cap 

Timber Pile 

Steel Pile 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 City of Capitola 
  Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Resiliency Study 

April 6, 2016 

Page 7 of 27 
 

2.2 Structure Condition  

The structural inspection was conducted above water observing the condition of the Wharf deck 
from above and underside from a boat at low tide. The inspection was performed on November 
23, 2015 (tide, -0.3 MLLW at 2 pm) and on the December 10, 2015 (tide, -0.5 feet MLLW at 4 pm). 
An underwater inspection (dive) was not included in the scope of this investigation. 
 
The horizontal framing of the Wharf (decking, stringers, caps) are in overall fair condition. The 
decking has been replaced periodically as needed.  
 
The timber piles throughout the structure are generally in fair condition above the splash zone. 
Piles previously noted to require repair have been replaced and the replacements are performing 
adequately.  One pile at 72-F has been lost, damage likely occurring from debris propelled during 
a large wave event. At 72-F emergency stabilization shoring beams (“strong back”) have been 
installed--as has been used successfully in the past at the Wharf--and the pile should be replaced 
as soon as possible.  A second pile at 68-A has experienced deterioration in the splash zone. This 
pile was observed from a boat at low tide with significant section loss (the pile core has completely 
degraded leaving a void). This pile should be replaced or repaired. 
 
All twelve steel piles at the Wharf Head have advanced corrosion and section loss. Several piles 
have wall areas that are gone with large holes (shown below in Photograph 7).  
 

 
Photograph 7. Steel Plumb and Batter Pile at 75-B  
 
Even with severe section loss, these piles continue to support the light loads from the timber 
wharf structure and pedestrian access. However, these piles likely have little capacity to carry 
larger lateral loads, for which the steel batter piles (installed in 1983) were likely installed to resist.  
But even without the batter piles, the Wharf deck will distribute the load to the other Wharf 
vertical piles as a wave passes under the Wharf, as it did for the 80+ years prior to the steel pile 
installation.  The vertical piles resist the lateral wave force by bending, which results in deflection 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 City of Capitola 
  Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Resiliency Study 

April 6, 2016 

Page 8 of 27 
 

or “sway” in the Wharf.  This is often unsettling to people if they are on the Wharf during a large 
wave event, but the Wharf structure is able to resist these forces 
 

2.3 Structural Damage since Observation 

Since the structural inspection in late 2015, described above, the Capitola Wharf has endured 
several large storm events during the “El Nino” 2015/16 winter.  Photograph 8 shows the wave 
climate during a recent storm with waves cresting near the top of the Wharf deck.  On January 
26, 2016 such a large storm event broke pile 17-B on the trestle.   Since this is a middle pile, the 
cap can still span to adjacent outside piles, and the trestle can support light pedestrian loads.  This 
pile should be replaced as soon as practical because any further damage at Bent 17 from a 
subsequent storm event would risk collapse of Bent 17 and would require Wharf closure. 

  

Photograph.8- Large Waves at Capitola Wharf (January, 2016) 

3.0 CONCLUSIONS/RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 Discussion/costs 

Timber Piles—the damaged timber piles (at 98-A, 72-F, and 17-B) should be replaced soon. 
Installing new timber piles would likely require crane matting to support the crane weight to 
access the end from the deck, as has been done in the past.   Alternatively, a barge mounted crane 
from the water could be used, but mobilization costs for the barge would be considerable.  
 
Estimated Replacement Cost 3 Piles:  $70-$100K 
 
Steel Piles— if the steel piles at the Wharf Head continue to degrade, they will eventually fail. At 
this time, an underwater inspection of the piles in question has not been completed. Assuming 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 City of Capitola 
  Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Resiliency Study 

April 6, 2016 

Page 9 of 27 
 

that the corrosion damage is limited to the areas observed (i.e. within the splash zone), there may 
be an option to repair or replace the steel piles. 
 
A repair option may include a splice of a competent pile section.  An option to this would be to 
install a fiberglass jacket and fill the existing section with grout to regain lost capacity (Information 
on a commercially available jacket system is contained in Appendix B). 
 
Estimated Repair Cost:   $150-250K 

3.2 Recommendations 

1. Replace missing and damaged timber piles. 
2. Repair or replace damaged steel piles. 

 
 

4.0 WHARF RESILIENCY IMPROVEMENTS 

4.1 Background 

As described in the previous section, Capitola Wharf is a pile supported timber pier structure 
located on the California coastline in Monterey Bay.  Historic evidence indicates a wharf has 
existed at the site since the late 1800’s, and has been damaged and renovated many times.  Its 
location within Monterey Bay, east of Soquel Pt and orientation towards the south/southwest 
provides partial protection from the predominantly northwest winds and swells but is exposed to 
waves from the south and southwest.  Damages due to storm waves have occurred frequently in 
the winter months.   
 
Detailed information regarding storm damages is limited to recent years.  Significant storm events 
in the early and mid 1980’s required that repairs and improvements be made to the structure.  In 
mid-1981, approximately sixty of the timber piles, mainly at the northern (inshore) end, as well 
as a large number of timber framing members and decking were repaired and/or replaced.  In 
approximately 1983, additional repairs were undertaken, mainly at the southern (offshore) end 
of the structure, to repair storm damage incurred that year.  Damage has occurred in the winters 
of 1994/95, 1997/98, 2002/03, 2008/09 and 2015/2016. Winter storms in Feb 1998 and 
December 2002 developed waves that exceeded the deck height (20 ft above MLLW) and 
damaged the wharf deck structure and many piles. In addition to wave damage, the timber piles 
are subject to damage caused by marine boring organisms. Periodic maintenance has occurred 
over the life of the Wharf, however detailed information is limited to more recent years.  Figure 
3 summarizes the damage and repair work performed during the past 35 years on the Wharf and 
Figure 4 shows the recent history of pile damage and replacement. 
 
 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 City of Capitola 
  Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Resiliency Study 

April 6, 2016 

Page 10 of 27 
 

 
Figure 3-Timeline of Recent Major Wharf Damage and Repairs. 
 

 
Figure 4- Pile Damage/Replacements, Since Late 1990s 
 
 

4.2 Damage Characterization 

As noted above, there are two primary sources of damage to the Capitola Wharf:  
 

1. Deterioration from age 
2. Storm wave damage. 
 

Timber wharves in a coastal environment are subject to deterioration, over time, due to marine 
borers in the submerged zone (piles) and fungal rot in the upper members in the deck structure 
which is caused by wetting and drying of the timber, often from a leaking water pipe. A timber 
structure in this area would be expected to have a service life of around 30-50 years, with only 
minimal maintenance. The service life can be increased with regular or periodic maintenance.  
With regular maintenance comprised of continual replacement of deteriorated members, 
including the timber piles, the service life can be extended to more than 100 years.  This requires 
a full time maintenance crew with the capabilities to construct the large beams (stringers and 
caps) and install piles. Periodic maintenance can be performed as an alternative to regular 
maintenance and would be performed at intervals of about 10-15 years. Capitola Wharf has 
limited regular maintenance performed and has had periodic maintenance of the major structural 
components as described in the previous section. 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 City of Capitola 
  Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Resiliency Study 

April 6, 2016 

Page 11 of 27 
 

 
Capitola Wharf has experienced considerable damage from storm waves over its life.  The primary 
damage that has been observed are: 
  

1. Deck and railing 
2. Under deck utilities 
3. Pile breakage 

 
The primary cause of damage for items 1) and 2) are wave overtopping of the Wharf.  The Wharf 
deck elevation is 20 ft above mean lower low water (MLLW), which is below the crest height of 
waves that would be expected to occur every few years at this location. Photograph 9 shows 
typical damage of this type that occurred on the south end of the Wharf in 2002. The cause of 
item 3) is usually due to flotsam (large logs) hurled against the piles by the large waves.  
Photograph 10 shows a critical example of this where 3 piles that support one pile bent (row of 
piles that supports the beam, or cap). 
 
There is little that can be done to mitigate the wave forces the Wharf is exposed to. If the Wharf 
deck were elevated 3-4 feet higher than it is, above the highest waves, this would mitigate damage 
to the deck and utilities.  It is impractical to raise the entire deck structure due as it would require 
extending the length of the piles, and to do that would require removing the entire deck structure 
and all it supports. 
 

 
Photograph 9- Wave Damage at South End of Wharf (2002) 
 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 City of Capitola 
  Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Resiliency Study 

April 6, 2016 

Page 12 of 27 
 

 

Photograph 10-All Piles Broken at Bent 12 (2002) 

4.3 Structural Response to Damage 

The vertical timber piles support the bottom structure of the Wharf deck, the pile caps.  The pile 
caps are continuous in that they span across multiple piles.  If one pile is lost, the cap still has 
support from the other piles and has diminished capacity but not total loss of support.  The worst 
case is when the outside pile of the bent is lost that increases the free unsupported length 
(“cantilever”) of the cap. The stringers are the critical member of the structure in that they are 
simply supported by the caps, as described in section 2.1.  If there is a loss of support from a cap 
beam to either end of the stringer, the stringer and decking it supports could collapse as the 
stringers do not extend beyond to the next cap.  This loss of support below of the pile cap has 
occurred at the Wharf and to remedy this in the short term, a long beam (“strong back”) can be 
placed above deck that spans over to the adjacent caps and a cable slung below to support the 
cap with loss of pile support below.  Photograph 11 shows this arrangement that was constructed 
during the storm waves in 2002.  That season of waves had scoured the sand on the beach to one 
of the lowest levels observed in recent history (see photograph 13).  

4.4 Potential improvements 

It is desirable to make modifications to the wharf that would increase the resiliency of the wharf 
to the inevitable storm damage it is exposed to.  As noted above, the critical element of the 
structure are the simply supported stringers.  To achieve this there are 2 general strategies that 
were studied: Increase pile strength, provide “continuous beam” stringers. 

 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 City of Capitola 
  Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Resiliency Study 

April 6, 2016 

Page 13 of 27 
 

 
Photograph 11-Strong-back Beam Support Cap at Bent 12 (2002) 

 
Photograph 13-Scoured Beach at Wharf North End (2002) 
 
To achieve these goals 3 primary options were developed; 
 

1. Strengthen Existing Piles 
2. Provide redundant, added pile  
3. Provide continuous stringers 

4.4.1 Pile Improvements 

The loss of multiple piles, or the end pile, results in loss of the cap support to the stingers.  As seen 
in Figure 4, it is often the outside piles, on the west side, that occurs during storms where they 
are most exposed to floating logs. Various schemes have been considered to strengthen or replace 
these end piles: 
 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 City of Capitola 
  Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Resiliency Study 

April 6, 2016 

Page 14 of 27 
 

Option 1- Fiber Reinforced Plastic (FRP) Pile Jacket on Existing Piles 
Option 2- Added Pile 
  

4.4.2 Stringer Improvements 

Constructing stringers that can span across multiple caps will provide redundancy support in the 
event the cap below has lost support.  The capacity of the stringer would be reduced in this event, 
but collapse would be avoided and would allow that area of the wharf to remain in limited use 
until support from the cap can be repaired. The follow alternative concepts would provide this: 
 

Option 3a-Continous New Stringers 
Option 3b-Splice Plates on Existing Stringers 
 

Appendix B contains figures of these conceptual options for resilience improvements. 
 

4.5 Planning Considerations 

In planning the extents of resiliency options balancing risk and costs are primary 
consideration.  Based upon the past damage, the outside edge of the Wharf has sustained 
the most damage, and the west side has sustained more damage than the east.  Some 
damage to piles, from waves, has occurred on the interior but much less.   

4.5.1 Costs 

The cost to provide reinforcement throughout the wharf would not be cost effective. 
Consider that to jacket all of the approximately 300 piles on the wharf would cost over $5 
million (300 piles at $15,000 to $20,000 per pile). Therefore reinforcements would be 
planned in areas of most likely damage.  

Costs have been developed for a range of reinforcement/resiliency alternatives.  These 
costs are conceptual and are intended for planning to assess the cost/benefit of 
performing preventative repair in order to minimize emergency repairs after damage has 
occurred. The following Table 1 presents these alternatives (corresponding figures are 
presented in Appendix C).   

 

 

 

 

 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 City of Capitola 
  Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Resiliency Study 

April 6, 2016 

Page 15 of 27 
 

 

Alternative Total 

No. 
Description  Low  High 

1 .1 Pile jacket on outside pile, west side only $1,200,000 $2,100,000 

1 .2 Pile jacket on outside pile, entire wharf Edge $1,900,000 $4,400,000 

2 .1 Added pile on outside on west side only $900,000 $1,200,000 

2 .2 Added Pile on outside, entire Wharf edge $1,900,000 $2,500,000 

3a .1 Added Stringer on 1 line, west side only $150,000 $200,000 

3a .2 
Added Stringer on 1 line, entire wharf perimeter from 
bent 10 $400,000 $500,000 

3b .1 
Install Splice plate at each lap on outside stringer on 
west side $200,000 $200,000 

3b .2 
Install Splice plate at each lap on outside stringer on 
entire perimeter from bent 10 $300,000 $400,000 

3b .3 
Install Splice Plate on each lap of 2 outside lines of 
stringers along entire wharf perimeter from bent 10 $600,000 $800,000 

Table 1- Resiliency Alternative Concept Costs 

The following concept level unit costs (cost for each individual pile jacket, pile, stinger or 
splice plate) were developed to prepare the alternative costs for the options described 
above. 

Option     Unit Cost 

1 Pile Jacket    $20-35K 

2 Added Pile    $15-20k 

3a Continuous New Stringer   $5-7k (spans 2 bents) 

3b Splice Plate on Stringer  $2-3k 

 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 City of Capitola 
  Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Resiliency Study 

April 6, 2016 

Page 16 of 27 
 

4.6 Recommendations/Discussion 

There are a number considerations in developing an appropriate plan for wharf structure 
maintenance and added resiliency. It is intended for this draft report to provide 
background and basis for discussion with City staff and their stakeholders to develop a 
viable plan for the Wharf. 

It is recommended to meet with City staff, to gather input on risk and benefit that will 
guide recommendations for structural resiliency. 

 
 

  

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 
Appendix A-Additional Photographs 

  

 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix-A 
Additional Photographs  

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 
Appendix A-Additional Photographs 

  

 

2 
 

 
 

 

Photograph 9. Piles 74-F (left) 75-E (center) 

 

Photograph 10. Piles 76-D (left) and 76-C (right) 

 
 
  

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 
Appendix A-Additional Photographs 

  

 

3 
 

 
 
 

 

Photograph 11. Piles 76-C (left), 75-B’ (center), and 74-A’ (right) 

 

Photograph 12. Bents 46-48 shown 

 
 
  

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 
Appendix A-Additional Photographs 

  

 

4 
 

 
 
 

 

Photograph 13. Bents 49-51 shown 

 

 

Photograph 14. Bents 52-53 shown 

 
 
  

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 
Appendix A-Additional Photographs 

  

 

5 
 

 
 
 

 

Photograph 15. Bents 54-55 shown 

 

 

Photograph 16. Bents 56-57 shown 

 
 
  

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 
Appendix A-Additional Photographs 

  

 

6 
 

 
 
 

 

Photograph 17. Bents 58-60 shown 

 

 

Photograph 18. Bents 61-64 shown 

 
 
  

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 
Appendix A-Additional Photographs 

  

 

7 
 

 
 
 

 

Photograph 19. Bents 65-67 shown 

 

 

Photograph 20. Bents 68-69 shown 

 
 
  

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 
Appendix A-Additional Photographs 

  

 

8 
 

 
 
 

 

Photograph 21. Bent 70 shown 

 

 

Photograph 22. Bent 71 shown 

 
 
  

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 
Appendix A-Additional Photographs 

  

 

9 
 

 
 
 

 

Photograph 23. Bents 72-76 shown 

 
 
 

 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 Appendix B 
Product Information 

Appendix-B 
 Product Information

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



Pilecap® Systems
Structural and Corrosion Repair

Marine Piling  
Restoration Systems

Most trusted to provide the total solution .
1-800-336-7900 

FiveStarProducts.com
1-800-248-2206 

FiveStarProducts.com

Specifications subject to change.

PILECAP, PILECOAT and PILEBOND are  
registered trademarks of PILECAP, Inc.
© 2015 Five Star Products, Inc.
12084 Rev. C • 110215

Most trusted to provide the total solution .

WARRANTY: “FIVE STAR PRODUCTS, INC. (FSP) PRODUCTS ARE MANUFACTURED TO BE FREE OF MANUFACTURING DEFECTS AND TO MEET FSP’S CURRENT PUB-
LISHED PHYSICAL PROPERTIES WHEN APPLIED IN ACCORDANCE WITH FSP’S DIRECTIONS AND TESTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM AND FSP STANDARDS. HOW-
EVER, SHOULD THERE BE DEFECTS OF MANUFACTURING OF ANY KIND, THE SOLE RIGHT OF THE USER WILL BE TO RETURN ALL MATERIALS ALLEGED TO BE DEFEC-
TIVE, FREIGHT PREPAID TO FSP, FOR REPLACEMENT. THERE ARE NO OTHER WARRANTIES BY FSP OF ANY NATURE WHATSOEVER, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING 
ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS PRODUCT. FSP SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR DAMAGES 
OF ANY SORT, INCLUDING PUNITIVE, ACTUAL, REMOTE, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, RESULTING FROM ANY CLAIMS OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, BREACH OF ANY 
WARRANTY, WHETHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR FROM ANY OTHER 
CAUSE WHATSOEVER. FSP SHALL ALSO NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR USE OF THIS PRODUCT IN A MANNER TO INFRINGE ON ANY PATENT HELD BY OTHERS.”

FIVE STAR PRODUCTS, INC.

About Five Star Marine Products

FIVE STAR PRODUCTS, INC.
60 Parrott Drive
Shelton, CT 06484-4733 U.S.A.
Phone: +1 203-336-7900
Toll-Free: 1-800-243-2206 (U.S.)
Fax: +1 203-336-7913
FiveStarProducts.com

Five Star Products, Inc. is the industry leader in the development of systems and products designed 
for the rehabilitation and stabilization of marine facilities and underwater structures. All of our 
products are designed and field-tested by experienced commercial divers and engineers with an 
emphasis on ease of installation, reliability, safety and consistency.

From preventive measures to full structural rehabilitation, Five Star's comprehensive range of prod-
ucts and services has the solution you need for today’s harsh marine environments. With an out-
standing track record of customer satisfaction, our staff of committed, experienced personnel is 
available for job site assistance whenever you need it.

Five Star Products, Inc. has been a top-tier supplier of high-performance cement and epoxy-based 
products for the industrial, infrastructure, commercial and marine markets since 1955.

For worldwide availability, additional product information and technical support, contact your local 
Five Star® local sales representative, or call Five Star Products' Engineering and Technical Service 
Center at 1-800-243-2206. 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



Pilecap® Marine Piling Restoration Systems cover repairs from simple corrosion protection to the 
capability to completely reload a damaged pile to 100% structural, load bearing integrity. 

All Pilecap® Systems are designed with the client’s individual  
needs in mind with many applications requiring no downtime  
or interruption to the normal business activity.

Marine Piling Restoration Systems

Commercial structures such as piers, docks, and bridges, 
rely on the incredible strength of their substructure. Pilecap® 
Marine Piling Restoration Systems address the constant threat 
of corrosion and erosion. Combined with the patented friction 
coupler system, these systems offer the longest life expectancy 
in the marine industry today. All Pilecap® systems have been 
tested and proven in the field and by the manufacturer to 
withstand the harshest of marine environments. 

H-Pile System
Fully restore the load bearing integrity to an 
existing pile by removing the damaged portion 
and replacing it with a new portion. The new 
section of piling is connected to the existing.   

Steel System
Designed to repair severely corroded or damaged steel pil-
ing. The structural jacket becomes a permanent form for 
strength and durability by bearing the pile’s intended load 
while eliminating corrosion and preventing further damage 
to the pile. 

Concrete System
A 100% structural jacket designed to repair severely 
spalled and damaged sections back to full structural 
integrity. These structural jackets can also be injected 
with Five Star® Grout or Five Star® Epoxy to fill voids 
and damaged areas. Existing steel, reinforcing mesh, 
or rebar rods remain internal and require minimal 
preparation and thus less time and hardware for 
installation. 

Timber System
Extends the life of existing wood 
piles by removing a portion of 
damaged or deteriorated piling 
and installing new sections with-
out adding additional weight 
or causing further stress to the 
wood pile. The wood piling is 
brought back to 100% structural 
integrity. 

POWERFUL ADVANTAGES

■
Cost effective alternative to 

driving new piles

■
 Patented friction coupler 
system is the only system able to 
fully restore structural integrity to 

an existing pile

■
Provides an excellent barrier to 

corrosive marine elements

■
Adds less weight to the piling

PROFESSIONAL SUPPORT
Five Star® professional support 
engineers will help you consider 
a number of design elements for 

the perfect custom solution. 

Call for a free consultation:  
1-800-243-2206

PILECOAT Spray Coating
Forms one solid membrane 
adhering and encapsulating your 
piling structures, regardless of 
the material.

This environmentally friendly 
multi-surface elastomer spray 
coating is a cost effective 
method of coating pile in the 
splash zone and above the wa-
terline at docks or commercial 
and industrial structures. 

Further extend  
piling life.

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



FX-70®

 

In the Specs – On the Job – At Your Service™

Inert Corrosion-Free  
Structural Repair and 
Protection System 

(800) 999-5099
www.strongtie.com

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



FX-70 ® Inert Corrosion-Free Structural Repair and Protection System

4
Install external bracing. Ratchet straps 
shown for round pile bracing.

1 2
Install a bead of FX-763 Hydro-Ester®  
Low-Modulus Trowel Grade Epoxy into the 
locking groove of the jacket and place  
FX-70 jacket around the pile to be repaired.

5
Install a stainless steel, self-tapping  
machine screw every 6" o.c. to secure the 
tongue-and-groove joint.

“Close” the jacket by inserting the tongue  
into the locking groove of the jacket.  
Position the jacket so there is 18–24" of 
undamaged pile inside the jacket above  
and below the damaged area.

3
Install temporary bottom seal at base  
of jacket. Seal may be installed prior  
to placing jacket. 

For piles with ≤ 25% section loss, fill 
remaining void in jacket with FX-70-6 MP. For 
piles with > 25% section loss fill void with 
FX-225 Non-Shrink Non-Metallic Underwater 
Grout, leaving 4" open at head of jacket. 
Allow repair grout to cure overnight. For 
FX-225 repairs, fill remaining 4" void with 
FX- 70- 6 MP, and allow grout to cure overnight.

Remove ratchet straps. Repair complete.

97
Install FX-763 Hydro-Ester® Low-Modulus 
Trowel Grade Epoxy at the head of the jacket 
and finish to a 45° tapered bevel, creating a 
water- and chemical-resistant barrier to the 
repair system.

8

Installation (Round pile shown; other applications similar)

evaluation
On-site evaluation should be conducted by a licensed inspector  
before initiating any repair protocol. This evaluation is critical  
when planning any marine repair to develop the most effective  
repair solution for each situation, and should include:

•	 Column type, shape, diameter
•	 Overall length of affected area
•	 Estimated % section 

loss of affected area

•	 Water temperature range
•	 Tidal zone range
•	 Notation of environmental 

factors potentially 
contributing to damage

Site Preparation
Areas of application must be free of marine growth, laitance, grease, 
oil, and debris that could inhibit bond. For best results, prepare 
surface to be treated with water or sand blasting. Blow or brush clean 
to remove remaining debris.

FX-70 Jacket Spacers
Spacers to ensure a consistent annular void surrounding the area to be 
repaired may be installed during jacket fabrication, or in the field. Field 
installation is advisable for large jobs to maximize shipping efficiency. 
See pg. 9 for recommended annular void recommendations.

Installation Procedures

6"

6
Install 6" of properly mixed FX-70-6 Hydro-Ester® 
Multi-Purpose Marine Epoxy Grout to create 
bottom seal; allow grout to cure overnight.

=6"

8

©
 2

01
3 

SI
M

PS
ON

 S
TR

ON
G-

TI
E 

CO
M

PA
NY

 IN
C.

  F
-R

-F
X7

01
3

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



FX-70 ® Inert Corrosion-Free Structural Repair and Protection System

CROSS-SeCTION OF  
TONGue-ANd-GROOVe JOINT

Self-tapping stainless steel screw

FX-763 Hydro-Ester® Low-Modulus Trowel Grade Epoxy 

Repair Options Based on Section Loss

MOdeL ONe MOdeL TWO MOdeL THRee MOdeL FOuR

Spacer

Jacket size =  
Pile column size + 4"

Pile column size Spacer

2"

Spacer

Annular 
Void

Jacket diameter =  
Pile column diameter + 4"

Pile column 
diameter

Pile column 
size

Annular 
Void

Section Loss ≤ 25%

•	 FX-70-6 Hydro-Ester® Multi-Purpose Marine Epoxy 
Grout used for bottom seal and repair

•	 Typical annular void of 1⁄2" 
•	  3⁄4" annular void for H-piles

Section Loss ≤ 25%

Jacket diameter

Ja
ck

et
 h

ei
gh

t

18
"–

24
"

18
"–

24
"

FX
-7

0-
9®

 H
yd

ro
-

Es
te

r®
 C

oa
tin

g 
(o

pt
io

na
l)

Pile columns

Beveled top seal 
of FX-763  
Hydro-Ester® 
Low-Modulus 
Trowel Grade 
Epoxy 

D
am

ag
ed

 re
gi

on

1⁄2" Annular Void

Pile column diameter

FX-70-6  
Hydro-Ester® 
Multi-Purpose 
Marine Epoxy 
Grout

FX-70®  
Fiberglass Jacket

Spacer

Spacer

Bottom seal

6" layer of FX-70-6 
Hydro-Ester®  
Multi-Purpose Marine 
Epoxy Grout

High water level

Section Loss > 25%

•	 FX-70-6 Hydro-Ester® Multi-Purpose Marine 
Epoxy Grout used for top and bottom seal

•	 FX-225 Non-Shrink Non-Metallic Underwater Grout used for repair
•	 Typical annular void of 2"

Section Loss > 25%

Jacket diameter

Spacer

Spacer

Ja
ck

et
 h

ei
gh

t

18
"–

24
"

18
"–

24
"

18
"–

24
"

FX
-7

0-
9®

 H
yd

ro
-

Es
te

r®
 C

oa
tin

g 
(o

pt
io

na
l)

Pile columns

D
am

ag
ed

 re
gi

on

2" Annular Void

Pile column diameter

Beveled top seal of 
FX-763 Hydro-Ester® 
Low-Modulus Trowel 
Grade Epoxy 

Bottom seal

FX-225 Non-Shrink 
Non-Metallic 
Underwater Grout

FX-70®  
Fiberglass Jacket

Reinforcing steel 
(optional)

6" layer of FX-70-6 
Hydro-Ester® Multi-Purpose 
Marine Epoxy Grout

4" layer of FX-70-6 
Hydro-Ester®  
Multi-Purpose Marine 
Epoxy Grout

High water level

9

©
 2

01
3 

SI
M

PS
ON

 S
TR

ON
G-

TI
E 

CO
M

PA
NY

 IN
C.

  F
-R

-F
X7

01
3

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



FX-70 ® Inert Corrosion-Free Structural Repair and Protection System

Wooden Pile Repair

The FX-70® Inert Corrosion-Free Structural 
Repair and Protection System is an effective 
repair solution in instances of full-section  
loss of wooden piles. After removing the 
damaged or rotten wood, the two sections are 
connected with steel reinforcement. Using  
FX-70-6 Multi-Purpose Marine Epoxy Grout and 
FX-225 Non-Shrink Non-Metallic Underwater 
Grout inside an FX-70 Jacket can restore 
capacity of the wooden pile.

Pile

FX-70 jacket

FX-225

Repair extends 
beyond the 

damaged area

Tidal zone

FX-70-6 MP

Reinforcing 
specified by 
Engineer of 
Record

6" bottom seal of 
FX-70-6 MP

New Pier Reinforcement

11

©
 2

01
3 

SI
M

PS
ON

 S
TR

ON
G-

TI
E 

CO
M

PA
NY

 IN
C.

  F
-R

-F
X7

01
3

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



FX-70 ® Inert Corrosion-Free Structural Repair and Protection System

Case Studies – Concrete Pile Repair

30 Years Later

FX-70-6 grout mixed in work boat

3
Example of pile “scour”

Workboat and divers preparing piling 
for installation of FX-70® System

1
FX-70® System in place and ready 
for FX-70-6 MP grout

2

View of piles repaired with FX-70® System on western shore approach Close up of FX-70® repair to Bent #1A; in service 30 years

FX-70-6 MP grout  placed in 
jacket without dewatering

4

Chesapeake Bay Bridge-Raymond Hollow
•	 Repaired and protected over 300 piles
•	 Exhibited cracks that allowed 

moisture and salt to penetrate pile
•	 Exposed to temperatures 

from 0°F to 100°F
•	 If untreated, structure was in danger

•	 Jackets measured: 55" diameter x 1⁄8" 
thick x 8' long, with a 1⁄2" annular void
•	 Placed in splash zone
•	 Filled with FX-70-6 Hydro-Ester® 

Multi-Purpose Marine Epoxy Grout 
•	 No dewatering required

12

©
 2

01
3 

SI
M

PS
ON

 S
TR

ON
G-

TI
E 

CO
M

PA
NY

 IN
C.

  F
-R

-F
X7

01
3

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



FX-70 ® Inert Corrosion-Free Structural Repair and Protection System

Installation Images

Before After

14

©
 2

01
3 

SI
M

PS
ON

 S
TR

ON
G-

TI
E 

CO
M

PA
NY

 IN
C.

  F
-R

-F
X7

01
3

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 Appendix C 

Appendix C 
Resiliency Figures 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

9.A.1

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d
 R

es
ile

n
cy

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
14

17
 :

 W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



9.
A

.1

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
9

Attachment: Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Resilency Study  (1417 : Wharf Condition Report)



9.
A

.1

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
0

Attachment: Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Resilency Study  (1417 : Wharf Condition Report)



9.
A

.1

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
1

Attachment: Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Resilency Study  (1417 : Wharf Condition Report)



9.
A

.1

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
2

Attachment: Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Resilency Study  (1417 : Wharf Condition Report)



 
 

2185 N. California Blvd., Suite 500 
Walnut Creek, CA  94596-3500 
 
(925) 944-5411  Fax (925) 944-4732 
www.moffattnichol.com 

 

 

April 6, 2016 

 

Mr. Steve Jesberg, Public Works Director 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA  95010 
 
Subject: Proposal to Provide Engineering Services Capitola Wharf Trestle Widening  

M&N Project No.  PWCGEN-55 

Dear Steve, 

We are writing to describe the engineering services we propose to provide to the City of 
Capitola (the City) for engineering services to study the widening of the trestle portion of the 
Wharf.  These services are an addition to the condition assessment/planning studies we are 
currently performing (see proposal of October 14, 2015) and were identified during discussion 
at our site meeting on February 22, 2016 with the Wharf Committee.  To accomplish this, the 
City has requested the following services: 

1. Develop Concept Drawings for Trestle Widening 
2. Develop Associated  Concept costs  

To assist the City in this evaluation we propose to provide the following services. 

Scope of Services 

Trestle Widening 

We will develop a concept level drawing of a widened trestle, using 5-6 piles per bent (add 2-3 
piles).  The widening will be on the west side of the Wharf extending from the widened portion 
at the shore at Bent 8, out to the main Wharf at bent 46.  

We will prepare a plan and section to depict the widening, along with dimensions and square 
footage.  These figures will be at a level of detail that could be used to conduct preliminary 
applications to permit agencies and associated discussion of feasibility. 

We will provide an estimate range of costs within which the probable cost of construction 
would fall.  The intent of this estimate would be to allow planning of such a potential widening 
to the Wharf. 

9.A.2

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
W

id
en

in
g

 S
tu

d
y 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(1
41

7 
: 

W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



Steve Jesberg M&N PWCGEN-55 
City of Capitola 
April 6, 2016 
  
  

  2 
 

 

Fee 

We propose to provide these services to the City on a time and material basis per our standard 
hourly rates and estimate that our fee for this task will not exceed $6,300.  

If this is acceptable we assume that you will issue a contract modification authorizing us to 
proceed with these services.  

We look forward to being of further assistance to the City of Capitola and the Capitol Wharf. 
Please feel free to call me with any questions you may have regarding our proposal.  

 

Sincerely, 

MOFFATT & NICHOL 

 

Brad Porter, PE 

Project Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.A.2

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
W

id
en

in
g

 S
tu

d
y 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(1
41

7 
: 

W
h

ar
f 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF APRIL 14, 2016

FROM: Community Development

SUBJECT: Appeal of a Planning Commission Approval of a Design Permit and Variance for 
a Garage Addition to a Single-family Home Located at 4980 Garnet Street 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Uphold the Planning Commission’s decision to approve the project 
as conditioned.

BACKGROUND: The Planning Commission considered an application on February 4, 2016, for 
a Design Permit and variance for a garage addition to an existing single-family home at 4980 
Garnet Street. The existing home is located in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning 
district. The proposed home addition includes converting the existing two-car carport into a 
garage, replacing the existing decks with smaller decks, and creating a new entryway along the 
front elevation. The applicant is seeking a variance to extend the proposed garage six feet into 
the required 20 foot front yard setback. The remodel also includes modifications to window and 
door placement to create increased privacy along the side elevations and an updated 
appearance of the front elevation (Attachment 3).  

The existing carport is non-conforming in that it does not meet the front yard setback 
requirement of 20 feet and is not large enough to contain a legal, 20 foot deep covered parking 
space. The existing carport is setback 19 feet from the property line and the interior is only 15 
feet in depth. In order to enclose the existing carport and create the two conforming, covered 
parking spaces, the applicant is requesting a variance from the front yard setback requirements 
to further extend the non-conforming covered parking area an additional five feet into the 
required front yard setback. The finished garage would have a 14 foot front yard setback, 
however there are 12 feet of unutilized right-of-way between the property line and the curb in 
this sidewalk exempt neighborhood. As proposed, the garage would be located 26 feet from the 
curb, which allows for two full-sized uncovered parking spaces in the front yard.

The existing home also contains a non-conforming second story deck in the front that is setback 
13 feet from the front property line. The applicant proposes to reduce the size of the deck from 
156 to 104 square feet, but continue the non-conforming setback at 13 feet. The variance for the 
garage addition will allow the front wall of the garage to encroach within 14 feet of the front 
property line, thus the garage will be setback further than the existing second story deck. Prior 
to the Planning Commission hearing, the applicant submitted additional material to represent 
the massing proposed in the front setback areas relative to neighboring properties (Attachment 
6).

From a cursory review of the neighborhood, staff found that there are other properties within this 
neighborhood that do not meet the front yard setback requirements, and that the existing home 
at 4980 Garnet Street is the only home within this block of Garnet that has a carport instead of 
an enclosed garage (Attachment 7). 

9.B

Packet Pg. 95



4980 Garnet St Design Permit and Variance Appeal 
April 14, 2016

After considering the staff report and testimony from the applicant and members of the public, 
the Planning Commission voted unanimously to approve the Design Permit and Variance 
request (Attachment 1). The Planning Commission based their decision on the fact that the 
project will have minimal impacts on the neighborhood due to the non-conforming setbacks of 
neighboring properties, and that the subject property will be able to utilize the sidewalk exempt 
right-of-way in front of their property for uncovered parking. The Planning Commission felt that 
the impact on the neighborhood was minimal, and that the project would enhance the existing 
character of the neighborhood by enclosing the existing carport. An appeal of the Planning 
Commission decision was received on February 16, 2016. 

DISCUSSION: On February 16, 2016, the City received an appeal of the Planning Commission 
decision (Attachment 8). The appeal cites concerns with the impact to community character as it 
relates to the uniformity of the surrounding neighborhood and that the garage variance would 
constitute the granting of a special privilege. 

Community Character: The appellants identified concerns that the proposed garage enclosure 
and front yard setback encroachment would have a negative effect on the character and 
“uniformity” of the existing neighborhood. Specifically, “this variance reflects a 30% 
encroachment of the front yard setback, which is unprecedented in the 4900 block of Garnet 
Street. Currently the homes on this block line up visually as a result of the setback ordinance.” 

Staff conducted a survey on the Garnet Street neighborhood (Attachment 7). The survey 
identifies 12 other properties in the area that do not meet front yard setback requirements along 
the entirety of Garnet Street, and three that do not conform within the specific 4900 block of 
Garnet. The appellant claims that these three homes (5005, 4955, and 5080 Garnet St) are not 
comparable. 

The property at 5005 Garnet Street received a variance in 1999 to reduce parking requirements 
on a property that did not meet setback standards. 4955 Garnet Street is an existing, non-
conforming property that was remodeled in 2000. 5080 Garnet Street is an existing apartment 
complex that, in 1987, apparently met all setback requirements. However, the plans submitted 
did not accurately represent the property setbacks, and after construction, staff realized the 
error. Staff required the applicant to resubmit for a variance in 1988 for the deck encroachment, 
which was approved. Although the three properties are not identical in nature to the subject 
property at 4980 Garnet St, they similarly benefit from reduced setback requirements. 

Staff also observed that the home at 4980 Garnet Street is the only home within 4900 block that 
has a carport rather than a garage. The proposed remodel would update the property with a 
more compatible aesthetic to the existing homes within the block. 

Variance Findings: The appellants identified concerns that the variance approval constitutes a 
granting of a special privilege as the existing parcel contains sufficient space to incorporate the 
new garage within allowable setbacks by pushing the home further into the rear yard. 

During the Planning Commission review, it was noted that there is adequate room on the lot to 
accommodate a single-family home which complies with front yard setback requirements. 
However, to do so, the applicant would need to remove the existing stairwell located behind the 
back wall of the garage, which would require the applicant to demolish and rebuild much of the 
existing lower and upper floors of the home.  

9.B

Packet Pg. 96



4980 Garnet St Design Permit and Variance Appeal 
April 14, 2016

Although there are no special circumstances applicable to the subject property in terms of size, 
shape, or configuration, several other properties in the vicinity and under identical zoning enjoy 
privileges of decreased front yard setbacks. 

Staff recommends that the City Council uphold the Planning Commission approval of the 
variance due to the existing non-conforming setbacks throughout Garnet Street, the presence of 
12 additional feet of unutilized right of way between the property line and the curb, and because 
the garage enclosure will complement the existing character of the neighborhood.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Planning Commission 2-4-16 minutes
2. Planning Commission 2-4-16 Staff Report
3. Project Plans
4. Permissible Structural Alterations Calculation
5. Applicant's Variance Request
6. Applicant Presentation 2-4-16 Planning Commission Hearing
7. Neighborhood Setback Survey
8. Appeal Letter

Report Prepared By:  Ryan Safty
Assistant Planner

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

9.B

Packet Pg. 97



City of Capitola Page 1 Updated 2/11/2016 8:45 AM

FINAL MINUTES
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 4, 2016
7 P.M. – CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

C. 4980 Garnet St #15-181 APN: 034-043-16
Design Permit and Variance request for a garage addition to be located in the front yard 
setback area of an existing residence in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District. 
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption
Property Owner: David Aaron 
Representative: Chris Sandman, filed 11/4/15

Commissioner Smith recused herself since she owns property within 500 feet of the project 
and left the dais.

Assistant Planner Safty presented the staff report. He noted the project includes a reduction 
in the size of a nonconforming deck and that existing parking in the carport is nonconforming. 
The proposal creates two full-size covered spaces in exchange for additional encroachment 
into the front yard setback. The subject property has no special circumstances, but other 
properties in the area have a similar encroachment.

Dave Aaron, applicant, spoke on behalf of the project and offered images showing the impact 
of the additional encroachment. 

Commissioner Ortiz confirmed that garbage cans will be screened behind the stairway. 

Commissioner Newman confirmed the project will have four parking spaces with use of the 
right-of-way in the sidewalk exempt area.

Jan Caldarella, neighbor, noted that the original application notice did not include a variance. 
She does not feel that in the immediate neighborhood properties with encroachments are 
comparable and her family and others have remodeled subject to the required setback.

Commissioner Ortiz said this is a difficult application. When she considers a variance, she 
asks is it moderate and does it enhance the neighborhood? She also suggested if there are 
many nonconforming properties in this neighborhood, perhaps an ordinance change is 
appropriate. Commissioner Westman agreed and noted the large second-story rear deck is 
being reduced. 

Commissioner Newman said he feels the project is positive, but has technical concerns about 
meeting variance standards. Properties two blocks away with encroachments are not in the 
immediate neighborhood.

Chairperson Welch said he looks at the impact on the neighborhood. In this case, he feels 
there has been compromise and the benefits outweigh the concerns.

Motion: Approve a Design Permit and Variance with the following conditions and findings:

CONDITIONS
1. The project approval consists of a garage enclosure, deck remodel, and variance to front 

yard setback requirements to an existing single-family home. The maximum Floor Area 
Ratio for the 3,200 square foot property is 57% (1,824 square feet).  The total FAR of the 
project is 56.6% with a total of 1,813 square feet, compliant with the maximum FAR 

9.B.1

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 2

-4
-1

6 
m

in
u

te
s 

 (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 a

n
d

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 A

p
p

ea
l)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – February 4, 2016 2

within the zone. The proposed project is approved as indicated on the final plans 
reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on February 4, 2016, except as 
modified through conditions imposed by the Planning Commission during the hearing.

2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 
modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be 
consistent with the plans approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction and 
site improvements shall be completed according to the approved plans

3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be 
printed in full on the cover sheet of the construction plans. 

4. At the time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail Storm 
Water Best Management Practices (STRM-BMP) shall be printed in full and incorporated 
as a sheet into the construction plans. All construction shall be done in accordance with 
Public Works Standard Detail Storm Water Best Management Practices (STRM-BMP).  

5. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically 
requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any 
significant changes to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require 
Planning Commission approval.  

6. Prior to issuance of building permit, a final landscape plan shall be submitted and 
approved by the Community Development Department.  Landscape plans shall reflect 
the Planning Commission approval and shall identify type, size, and location of species 
and details of irrigation systems.  

7. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #15-181 
shall be paid in full.

8. Prior to issuance of building permit, Affordable housing in-lieu fees shall be paid as 
required to assure compliance with the City of Capitola Affordable (Inclusionary) Housing 
Ordinance.  

9. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel 
Creek Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.  

10. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion 
control plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works.  The plans 
shall be in compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code 
Chapter 13.16 Storm Water Pollution Prevention and Protection.

11. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater 
management plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements 
all applicable Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard 
Details, including all standards relating to low impact development (LID).

12. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading 
official to verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan. 
Erosion and sediment control shall be installed prior to the commencement of 
construction and maintained throughout the duration of the construction project. 

9.B.1

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 2

-4
-1

6 
m

in
u

te
s 

 (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 a

n
d

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 A

p
p

ea
l)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – February 4, 2016 3

13. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired 
by the contractor performing the work.  No material or equipment storage may be placed 
in the road right-of-way.

14. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise 
curfew, except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  
Construction noise shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty 
a.m. on weekdays. Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the 
exception of Saturday work between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work 
approved by the building official. §9.12.010B

15. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or 
sidewalk shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction 
of the Public Works Department.  All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or 
sidewalk shall meet current Accessibility Standards.

16. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of 
approval shall be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director.  Upon evidence of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable 
municipal code provisions, the applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the 
satisfaction of the Community Development Director or shall file an application for a 
permit amendment for Planning Commission consideration. Failure to remedy a non-
compliance in a timely manner may result in permit revocation.

17. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance. The applicant shall have 
an approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent 
permit expiration.   Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to 
expiration pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160.

18. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the 
applicant to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the 
site on which the approval was granted.

19. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be 
placed out of public view on non-collection days. 

FINDINGS

A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, secures the purpose of the 
Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan.
The proposed garage addition at 4980 Garnet would not comply with the setback 
standards of the Zoning Ordinance, but special circumstances exist in relation with
reduced front yard setbacks enjoyed by many surrounding properties, the presence of 
an additional 12 feet of unused right-of-way which provides additional separation from 
the street, and the predominance of enclosed garages in the neighborhood.

B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.
The proposed garage addition and enclosure will slightly modify the character of the 
neighborhood by bringing the garage closer to the street. However, the conversion from 
a carport to a garage will better complement the existing character and form of the 
neighborhood by eliminating the presence of carports within this block of Garnet Street. 

9.B.1

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 2

-4
-1

6 
m

in
u

te
s 

 (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 a

n
d

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 A

p
p

ea
l)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – February 4, 2016 4

C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301-E of the California    
Environmental Quality Act and is subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations.
This project involves the addition to an existing single-family residence and a garage 
enclosure in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District. Section 15301-E of the 
CEQA Guidelines exempts additions to existing homes in a residential zone.

D. Special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including size, shape, 
topography, location or surroundings, exist on the site and the strict application 
of this title is found to deprive subject property of privileges enjoyed by other 
properties in the vicinity and under identical zone classification;
There are special circumstances applicable to the property in relation with reduced front 
yard setbacks enjoyed by many surrounding properties, the presence of an additional 
12-feet of unused right-of-way which provides additional separation from the street, and 
the predominance of enclosed garages in the neighborhood.

E. The grant of a variance would not constitute a grant of a special privilege 
inconsistent with the limitation upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in 
which subject property is situated.
The grant of a variance permit to front setbacks would not constitute the grant of a 
special privilege. There are at least 12 other properties on Garnet Street that similarly 
do not meet current front-yard setback requirements. 

RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0]

MOVER: Gayle Ortiz, Commissioner

SECONDER: Susan Westman, Commissioner

AYES: Ortiz, Newman, Welch, Westman

RECUSED: Smith

9.B.1

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 2

-4
-1

6 
m

in
u

te
s 

 (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 a

n
d

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 A

p
p

ea
l)



S T A F F  R E P O R T 

TO: PLANNING COMMISSION

FROM: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

DATE: FEBRUARY 4, 2016

SUBJECT: 4980 Garnet St #15-181 APN: 034-043-16

Design Permit and Variance request for a garage addition to be located in the front yard setback 
area of an existing residence in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District. 
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption
Property Owner: David Aaron 
Representative: Chris Sandman, filed 11/4/15

APPLICANT PROPOSAL
The application is for a remodel at 4980 Garnet Street. The existing two-story home is located in 
the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District. The existing home is not listed on Capitola’s 
2005 Historic Structures List. The remodel includes converting the existing two car carport into 
a garage, replacing the existing decks with smaller decks, and creating a new entryway along 
the front elevation (Attachment 1). The applicant is seeking a variance to extend the proposed 
garage six feet into the required 20 feet front yard setback.  The remodel also includes
modifications to window and door placement to create increased privacy along the side 
elevations and an updated appearance of the front elevation. 

BACKGROUND
The above matter was reviewed by the Architectural and Site Review Committee on November 
18th, 2015.  The following direction was provided to the applicant in regards to the original 
proposal: 

• City Public Works representative, Danielle Uharriet, requested that the applicant submit 
storm water calculations, clarify the type and location of impervious materials, obtain a 
Revocable Encroachment Permit for landscaping in the right-of-way, and disconnect 
downspouts. 

• City Building Official, Brian Van Son, explained that egress rules must be met on the 
window on the north side of the second story bedroom and that the eastern second-story 
wall will need to be fire-rated. 

• City Architect Representative, Frank Phanton, recommended that the applicant move the 
new entrance area behind the garage.  

• City Landscape Architect Representative, Craig Walsh, had no comments.

• City Planner, Ryan Safty, explained that the driveway approach proposal is 20 feet wide 
and the maximum allowed is 40% of property width (16 feet), the shed on the first floor 
should be labeled “existing” on the site plan, the application requires a an 80% non-

9.B.2

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 2

-4
-1

6 
S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 a

n
d

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 A

p
p

ea
l)



conforming calculation, the proposed extension of the front deck does not comply with 
code, and the new entry wall must be 15 feet back from the property line to comply with 
the front yard setback.  

Following the Architectural and Site Review meeting, the applicant submitted storm water 
calculations and obtained a revocable encroachment permit for landscape work in the right-of-
way from the Public Works Department. The applicant submitted a “Construction Cost 
Breakdown” sheet to the Building Department, ensuring that the addition will not result in greater 
than an 80% increase to the structures value (Attachment 2). The applicant revised the site plan 
to clarify the type and location of impervious materials, reduced the driveway approach width to 
16 feet, labeled the first floor shed “existing”, reduced the front deck, and relocated the entryway 
to comply with the 15 foot front yard setback. 

ZONING SUMMARY
The following table outlines the zoning code requirements for development in the R-1(Single 
Family Residential) Zoning District relative to the application.  

R-1 (Single Family Residential) Zoning District

Development Standards

Building Height R-1 Regulation Existing Proposed

25'-0" 22’-11” 22’-11”

Floor Area Ratio (FAR)

Lot Size 3,200 sq. ft.

Maximum Floor Area Ratio 57% (Max 1,824 sq. ft.)

First Story Floor Area 468 sq. ft. 507  sq. ft.

Carport/ Garage Area 390 sq. ft. 440 sq. ft.

Second Story Floor Area 858 sq. ft. 858 sq. ft.

Second Story Decks
(first 150 sq.ft. of second story decks do not count towards FAR)

386 sq. ft.
(-150sq. ft.)
= 236 sq. ft. 

158 sq. ft. 
(-150 sq. ft.)  

= 8 sq. ft.

 TOTAL FAR 1,952 sq. ft. 1,813 sq. ft.

Yards (setbacks are measured from the edge of the public right-of-way)

R-1 Regulation Existing Proposed

Front Yard 1st Story 15 ft. 19 ft. 15.6 ft.

Front Yard  Garage 20 ft. 19 ft.  
Existing Non-
Conforming

14 ft. 
Variance 

Requested

Front Yard  2nd Story 20 ft. 19 ft.           
Existing Non-
Conforming

19 ft.
Existing Non-
Conforming

Front Yard  2nd Story Deck 20 ft. 13 ft.
Existing Non-
Conforming

13 ft.
Existing Non-
Conforming

Side Yard 1st Story 10% lot 
width

Lot width 40
4 ft. min.

4.6 ft.  (Right)

5.5 ft  (Left)

4.6 ft.  (Right)

5.5 ft  (Left)

Side Yard 2nd Story 15% of 
width

Lot width 40      
6 ft. min

4.6ft.  (Right)

Ex. non-conforming

9 ft. (Left)

4.6 ft. (Right)

Ex. non-conforming

9 ft. (Left)

Rear Yard 1st Story 20% of lot Lot depth 80 27.6 ft 27.6 ft 

9.B.2

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 2

-4
-1

6 
S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 a

n
d

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 A

p
p

ea
l)



depth 16 ft. min.

Rear Yard 2nd Story 20% of lot 
depth

Lot depth 80     
16 ft. min

28 ft. 28 ft. 

Rear Yard 2nd Story                           
-Stairs-

10 ft. 28 ft. 15 ft.

Encroachments: Water Heater Shed 
(side yard)

Encroaches 2 ft.
Existing Non-
Conforming

Encroaches 2 ft.
Existing Non-
Conforming

2nd Story Deck into front 
yard

Encroaches 6 ft. 
Existing Non-
conforming

Encroaches 6 ft. 
Existing Non-
conforming

Parking

Required Existing Proposed

Residential (from 1,501 
up to 2,000 sq. ft.)

2 spaces total:
1 covered 
1 uncovered

2 uncovered 2 covered

Underground Utilities: required with 25% increase 
in area

N/A 

DISCUSSION
The applicant is proposing to convert an existing carport into a two-car garage. The existing 
carport is only 15 feet deep when the code requires 20, and is thus undersized. The applicant is 
proposing to extend the garage five feet forward, converting the undersized carport into a full-
sized two-car garage.  A variance is required to extend the garage into the required front yard 
setback. 

Adjacent to the garage, the applicant is proposing an entryway leading to the side patio area.  
The entry wall contains a front door, vertical “fir” siding, stone pillars, and a gable roof design to 
match the existing home and give the appearance of an enclosed front entrance. Additionally
the remodel includes modifications to window and door placement to create increased privacy 
along the side elevations and an updated look on the front elevation.  

Lastly, the applicant is proposing to modify the design of the exterior stairways and second-story 
deck space. The front yard second-story deck is currently non-conforming, in that it is only 
setback 13 feet when 20 are required (§17.15.130). The applicant is proposing to reduce the 
size of the deck from 156 to 104 square feet, but continue the non-conforming setback at 13 
feet. The rear yard deck will be reduced from 230 to 54 square feet.  In total, the second-story 
deck space would be reduced by 228 square feet. 

Parking
The existing setbacks and parking at 4980 Garnet Street are non-conforming pursuant to 
section 17.15.130 of the Capitola Municipal Code. The existing 1,813 square foot home is 
required to have two parking spaces, one of which must be covered. Currently, the applicant 
has room for two full-size 18 feet by 10 feet uncovered parking spaces in the 19 foot deep 
driveway. Since the home is located in a sidewalk exempt area, the required length for 
uncovered parking spaces is reduced from 20 feet to 18. However, the existing 15 foot deep 
carport is undersized and therefore the applicant currently has no compliant covered parking 
spaces on-site. Additionally, front yard setbacks to garages are required to have 20 feet. The 
existing carport is located 19 feet from the property line and is non-conforming.

9.B.2

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 2

-4
-1

6 
S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 a

n
d

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 A

p
p

ea
l)



The applicant is proposing two covered parking spaces within the garage by extending the front 
elevation of the first story five feet forward.  The additional five feet decreases the existing front 
yard from 19 feet to 14 feet.  Although the plan would create two full sized covered parking 
spaces, the new garage would increase the existing non-conforming front yard setback.  The 
uncovered parking spaces in the front of the home will decrease from 19 feet to 14 feet in depth.  
It should be noted that there is an additional 12 feet of unutilized right of way between the 
property line and the curb.  As proposed, the garage will be located 26 feet from the curb. 

The Municipal Code requires minimum parking requirements be met with an increase of 10% to 
the existing floor area of the home. In total, the applicant is proposing to remove 139 square feet 
of floor area on the property and is therefore not required to meet minimum parking as a part of 
this remodel. However, the application as proposed will bring the site into compliance with two 
onsite covered parking spaces.  

Variance
The applicant is requesting a variance to allow the new garage to further encroach into the front 
yard setback area.  Pursuant to §17.66.090, the Planning Commission may grant a variance 
permit when it finds:

A. There are special circumstances applicable to subject property, including size, 
shape, topography, location or surroundings, the strict application of this title is found to 
deprive subject property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity and 
under identical zone classification.

B. That the grant of a variance permit would not constitute a grant of special privilege 
inconsistent with the limitation upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in which 
subject property is situated.  

The property at 4980 Garnet Street is a regular-shaped, flat lot.  Properties within the block are 
generally of similar size. There are no special circumstances applicable to the lot related to the 
size, shape, or topography. 

The applicant is requesting a variance due to the current built conditions within the property.  
The applicant considered extending the interior wall of the carport four feet into the existing 
home but found this alternative would cause major changes to the internal layout of the home 
due to the staircase location behind the wall of the carport.  The bedrooms on the bottom and 
top floor would be impacted.  The proposed minor remodel would become a major remodel if 
they were required to relocate the internal staircase. The applicant is requesting the variance to 
maintain the staircase location and the existing internal layout of the home. 

The Planning Commission could find that the grant of a variance permit would not constitute a 
special privilege inconsistent with the limitations upon other properties in the vicinity.   From a 
cursory review, staff found that there are other properties within this neighborhood that do not 
meet the front yard setback requirements (Attachment 3). Staff was able to locate 12 properties 
along Garnet Street that do not meet the required front yard setbacks. Staff also observed that 
the home at 4980 Garnett Street is the only home within this block that has a carport rather than 
a garage.  The proposed remodel would update the property with a more compatible aesthetic 
form to the existing homes within the block. 

Although there are not special circumstances applicable to the subject property, other properties 
in the vicinity and under identical zoning do enjoy privileges of decreased front yard setbacks.  If 

9.B.2

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 2

-4
-1

6 
S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 a

n
d

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 A

p
p

ea
l)



a variance were granted by the Planning Commission, the analysis would support that this is not 
a grant of special privileges.  Staff recommends Planning Commission approve of the variance 
due to the existing non-conforming setbacks throughout Garnet Street, the presence of 12 
additional feet of unutilized right of way between the property line and the curb, and because the 
garage enclose will complement the existing character of the neighborhood. 

CEQA REVIEW
Section 15301(e) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts additions to existing structures. This project 
involves the enclosure of a garage in the front-setback area of an existing home in the R-1 
(Single-Family Residential) Zoning District. No adverse environmental impacts were discovered 
during review of the proposed project. 

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve application #15-181 and associated 
variance request, based on the following Conditions and Findings for Approval. 

CONDITIONS

1. The project approval consists of a garage enclosure, deck remodel, and variance to front 
yard setback requirements to an existing single-family home. The maximum Floor Area 
Ratio for the 3,200 square foot property is 57% (1,824 square feet).  The total FAR of the 
project is 56.6% with a total of 1,813 square feet, compliant with the maximum FAR 
within the zone. The proposed project is approved as indicated on the final plans 
reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on February 4th, 2016, except as 
modified through conditions imposed by the Planning Commission during the hearing.

2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 
modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be 
consistent with the plans approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction and 
site improvements shall be completed according to the approved plans

3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be 
printed in full on the cover sheet of the construction plans. 

4. At the time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail Storm 
Water Best Management Practices (STRM-BMP) shall be printed in full and incorporated 
as a sheet into the construction plans. All construction shall be done in accordance with 
Public Works Standard Detail Storm Water Best Management Practices (STRM-BMP).  

5. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically 
requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any 
significant changes to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require 
Planning Commission approval.  

6. Prior to issuance of building permit, a final landscape plan shall be submitted and 
approved by the Community Development Department.  Landscape plans shall reflect 
the Planning Commission approval and shall identify type, size, and location of species 
and details of irrigation systems.  

7. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit # 15-181 
shall be paid in full.

9.B.2

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 2

-4
-1

6 
S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 a

n
d

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 A

p
p

ea
l)



8. Prior to issuance of building permit, Affordable housing in-lieu fees shall be paid as 
required to assure compliance with the City of Capitola Affordable (Inclusionary) Housing 
Ordinance.  

9. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel 
Creek Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.  

10. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion 
control plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works.  The plans 
shall be in compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code 
Chapter 13.16 Storm Water Pollution Prevention and Protection.

11. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater 
management plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements 
all applicable Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard 
Details, including all standards relating to low impact development (LID).

12. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading 
official to verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan. 
Erosion and sediment control shall be installed prior to the commencement of 
construction and maintained throughout the duration of the construction project. 

13. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired 
by the contractor performing the work.  No material or equipment storage may be placed 
in the road right-of-way.

14. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise 
curfew, except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  
Construction noise shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty 
a.m. on weekdays. Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the 
exception of Saturday work between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work 
approved by the building official. §9.12.010B

15. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or 
sidewalk shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction 
of the Public Works Department.  All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or 
sidewalk shall meet current Accessibility Standards.

16. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of 
approval shall be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director.  Upon evidence of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable 
municipal code provisions, the applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the 
satisfaction of the Community Development Director or shall file an application for a 
permit amendment for Planning Commission consideration. Failure to remedy a non-
compliance in a timely manner may result in permit revocation.

17. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance. The applicant shall have 
an approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent 
permit expiration.   Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to 
expiration pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160.

9.B.2

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 2

-4
-1

6 
S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 a

n
d

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 A

p
p

ea
l)



18. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the 
applicant to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the 
site on which the approval was granted.

19. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be 
placed out of public view on non-collection days. 

FINDINGS

A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, secures the purpose of the 
Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan.
The proposed garage addition at 4980 Garnet would not comply with the setback standards 
of the Zoning Ordinance, but special circumstances exist in relation with reduced front yard 
setbacks enjoyed by many surrounding properties, the presence of an additional 12-feet of 
unused right-of-way which provides additional separation from the street, and the 
predominance of enclosed garages in the neighborhood.

B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.
The proposed garage addition and enclosure will slightly modify the character of the 
neighborhood by bringing the garage closer to the street. However, the conversion from a 
carport to a garage will better complement the existing character and form of the 
neighborhood by eliminating the presence of carports within this block of Garnet Street. 

C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301-E of the California    
Environmental Quality Act and is subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California 
Code of Regulations.
This project involves the addition to an existing single-family residence and a garage 
enclosure in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District. Section 15301-E of the 
CEQA Guidelines exempts additions to existing homes in a residential zone.

D. Special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including size, shape, 
topography, location or surroundings, exist on the site and the strict application of 
this title is found to deprive subject property of privileges enjoyed by other 
properties in the vicinity and under identical zone classification;
There are special circumstances applicable to the property in relation with reduced front 
yard setbacks enjoyed by many surrounding properties, the presence of an additional 12-
feet of unused right-of-way which provides additional separation from the street, and the 
predominance of enclosed garages in the neighborhood.

E. The grant of a variance would not constitute a grant of a special privilege 
inconsistent with the limitation upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in 
which subject property is situated.
The grant of a variance permit to front setbacks would not constitute the grant of a special 
privilege. There are at least 12 other properties on Garnet Street that similarly do not meet 
current front yard setback requirements. 

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Project Plans
2. Permissable Structural Alterations

9.B.2

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 2

-4
-1

6 
S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 a

n
d

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 A

p
p

ea
l)



3. Neighborhood Setback Survey
4. Variance Request

Prepared By: Ryan Safty
Assistant Planner

9.B.2

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 2

-4
-1

6 
S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 a

n
d

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 A

p
p

ea
l)



4040 4040

2
6
1
6

WH
UP

UP

UP

1
4

'-
1

"

5'-0"

4'-8"

3
1

'-
5

"1
5

'-
7

1
/4

"

3
0

'-
0

"
1

9
'-
1

"

G A R N E T S T R E E T
60' R/W

C

Ô×ÒÛ ÑÚ øÛ÷ ïÍÌ
ÚÔÎ ÙßÎßÙÛ

ÉßÔÔ ú îÒÜ ÚÔÎ
ÉßÔÔ ßÞÑÊÛ

(E) CURB
& GUTTER

(E
)

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

CONCRETE FILL
INDICATES (P) 267
SQFT PERMEABLE
PAVER STAMPED
CONCRETE

ÍòÞò

ÍòÞò

øÛ
÷

Ú
òÇ

òÍ
òÞ

ò

øÐ
÷

Ú
òÇ

òÍ
òÞ

òÌ
Ñ

Ù
ß

Ì
Û

øÛ
÷

ê
Ú

Ñ
Ñ

Ì
Î

Ü
É

Ü
Ú

Û
Ò

Ý
Û

øÛ
÷

ê
Ú

Ñ
Ñ

Ì
Î

Ü
É

Ü
Ú

Û
Ò

Ý
Û

øÛ
÷

ê
Ú

Ñ
Ñ

Ì
Î

Ü
É

Ü
Ú

Û
Ò

Ý
Û

øÛ÷ ê ÚÑÑÌ ÎÜÉÜ ÚÛÒÝÛ

è
ð

ù
Ð

òÔ
ò

ìðù ÐòÔò

ìðù ÐòÔò

è
ð

ù
Ð

òÔ
ò

ß
Ü

Ü
×Ì

×Ñ
Ò

Û
È

×ÍÌ
×Ò

Ù

øÐ÷ ÛÒÌÎÇ
ÉßÔÔ

øÛ÷ ÐÑÉÛÎ
ÐÑÔÛ

R
/W

ÒÑÌÛæ øÛ÷
ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ ÌÑ

ÎÛÓß×Ò

ÝÑÒÝÎÛÌÛ Ú×ÔÔ
×ÒÜ×ÝßÌÛÍ îìë ÍÏÚÌ

×ÓÐÛÎÊ×ÑËÍ øÛ÷
ÝÑÒÝÎÛÌÛ ÌÑ ÎÛÓß×Ò

øÛ÷ ÎÑÝÕ
ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ

Ô×ÒÛ ÑÚ øÐ÷
ÔßÒÜ×ÒÙ

ßÞÑÊÛ

ØÑÎ×ÆÑÒÌßÔ ØßÌÝØ
×ÒÜ×ÝßÌÛÍ øÐ÷ ÐÛÎÓÛßÞÔÛ ìîç
ÍÏÚÌ ÜÛÝÕ ä íðþ ßÞÑÊÛ ÙÎßÜÛ

(E) MONUMENT

Î
òÇ

òÍ
òÞ

ò

Ô×ÒÛ ×ÒÜ×ÝßÌÛÍ
ßÜÖßÝÛÒÌ ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ

ÚÑÑÌÐÎ×ÒÌ

Ô×ÒÛ ×ÒÜ×ÝßÌÛÍ
ßÜÖßÝÛÒÌ ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ

ÚÑÑÌÐÎ×ÒÌ

øÛ÷ ÍÌÑÎßÙÛ
ÌÑ ÞÛ

ÜÛÓÑÔ×ÍØÛÜ

ANGL HATCH INDICATES
IMPERVIOUS (E) 200
SQFT CONCRETE.

REPLACE w/ LANDSCAPE

øÛ÷

øÐ÷ Í×ÔÊÛÎ
ÞËÍØ

øÐ÷ ÓÛÈ
ÍßÙÛ

øÐ÷ ×ÒÝÎÛßÍÛ É×ÜÌØ ÑÚ
ÜñÉ ßÐÐÎÑßÝØ ÌÑ ïêù

ÎÛÓÑÊÛ øÛ÷ ïìù É×ÜÌØ
ÑÚ ÜñÉ ßÐÐÎÑßÝØ

ßÜÖßÝÛÒÌ øÛ÷ ïìù É×ÜÛ
ÜñÉ ßÐÐÎÑßÝØ

ßÜÖßÝÛÒÌ øÛ÷ îðù
É×ÜÛ ÜñÉ ßÐÐÎÑßÝØ

øÛ÷ ÉßÌÛÎ
ØÛßÌÛÎ ÎÑÑÓ

ÌÑ ÎÛÓß×Ò

ÙßÌÛ

øÐ÷ ìÈê
ßÎÞÑÎ

øÛ÷

øÛ÷

øÛ÷

øÛ÷

øÛ÷

øÛ÷

ÒÑÌÛæ øÛ÷
ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ ÌÑ

ÎÛÓß×Ò

CROSS BOX
INDICATES (E) 60
SQFT LANDSCAPE
TO BE REMOVED

øÛ
÷

Ú
Ç

ÍÞ

øÐ
÷

Ú
òÇ

òÍ
òÞ

ò
Ì

Ñ
Ù

ß
Î

ß
Ù

Û

Ô×ÒÛ ÑÚ øÛ÷
îÒÜ ÚÔÎ ÜÛÝÕ
ÝßÒÌ×ÔÛÊÛÎ

øÐ÷ êù
ÉÑÑÜ
ÚÛÒÝÛ

Ô×ÒÛ ÑÚ øÐ÷
îÒÜ ÚÔÎ ÜÛÝÕ
ÝßÒÌ×ÔÛÊÛÎ

BUILDING OCCUPANCY GROUP:

R-3/U

TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION:

TYPE VB

STORIES: TWO

TOTAL FLOOR AREA:

ENERGY METHOD: N/A

SPRINKLER SYSTEM: NON-SPRINKLERED

FIRE RET. ROOFING: CLASS B

GEOTECH REPORT: N/A

CODE EDITION:

2013 CA BUILDING CODE of REGULATIONS TITLE 24

2013 CA BUILDING 1 & 2 CODE

2013 CA RESIDENTIAL CODE

2013 CA MECHANICAL CODE

2013 CA ELECTRICAL CODE

2013 CA PLUMBING CODE

2013 CA FIRE CODE

2013 CA GREEN BUILDING STANDARDS CODE

2013 CA ENERGY CODE

ÎÛÚÛÎÛÒÝÛÜ ÍÌßÒÜßÎÜÍ

ßÔÔ ×ÒÚÑÎÓßÌ×ÑÒ ÎÛÔßÌ×ÒÙ ÌÑ ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ
ÝÑÒÍÌÎËÝÌ×ÑÒ ×Í Ù×ÊÛÒ ßÍ ÞÛ×ÒÙ ÌØÛ ÞÛÍÌ
×ÒÚÑÎÓßÌ×ÑÒ ßÊß×ÔßÞÔÛò ÌØÛ ÝÑÒÌÎßÝÌÑÎ
ÍØßÔÔ ÊÛÎ×ÚÇ ßÔÔ ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ÝÑÒÜ×Ì×ÑÒÍô
Ü×ÓÛÒÍ×ÑÒÍ ßÒÜ ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ ÜßÌËÓÍ ßÌ ÌØÛ ÖÑÞ
Í×ÌÛò ßÒÇ Ü×ÍÝÎÛÐßÒÝ×ÛÍ ÎÛÏË×Î×ÒÙ
ÓÑÜ×Ú×ÝßÌ×ÑÒÍ ÌÑ ÌØÛ ÝÑÒÍÌÎËÝÌ×ÑÒ
ÜÑÝËÓÛÒÌÍ ÍØßÔÔ ÞÛ ÎÛÐÑÎÌÛÜ ÌÑ ÌØÛ ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ
ÜÛÍ×ÙÒÛÎ ×ÓÓÛÜ×ßÌÛÔÇò ÒÑ ÓÑÜ×Ú×ÝßÌ×ÑÒÍ ÍØßÔÔ
ÞÛ ÓßÜÛ ÞÇ ÌØÛ ÝÑÒÌÎßÝÌÑÎ É×ÌØÑËÌ
ßÐÐÎÑÊßÔ ÞÇ ÌØÛ ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ ÜÛÍ×ÙÒÛÎò

ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ÝÑÒÜ×Ì×ÑÒÍ

ëðè ÍßÒÌß ÓßÎÙËßÎ×Ìß ÜÎ×ÊÛ
ßÐÌÑÍô Ýß çëððí ÝÑÒÌßÝÌæ

ÐØÑÒÛ èíïóíìëóêèçî ÑÎ ÛÓß×Ôæ
ÝßÜØÑÓÛÍàÒÛÌÍÝßÐÛòÝÑÓ

ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ ÜÛÍ×ÙÒ
Ý ß Ü Ø Ñ Ó Û Í

ëðè ÍßÒÌß ÓßÎÙËßÎ×Ìß ÜÎ×ÊÛ
ßÐÌÑÍô ÝßÔ×ÚÑÎÒ×ß çëððí
ÐØÑÒÛ èíïó íìëóêèçî
ÛÓß×Ôæ ÝßÜØÑÓÛÍàÒÛÌÍÝßÐÛòÝÑÓ

ÝØÎ×ÍÌÑÐØÛÎ ÍßÒÜÓßÒ

CONSULTANTS:

ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ ÜÛÍ×ÙÒÛÎæ

TOTALS

FLOOR AREA RATIO

PARCEL SIZE

GARAGE / CARPORT

EXISTING PROPOSED

RESIDENCE @ 1ST LEVEL

ßÎÛß ÝßÔÝËÔßÌ×ÑÒÍ

A.P.N.

APPLICANT

LOT AREA

ALLOWABLE LOT COVERAGE

LOT COVERAGE

COVERED PATIO / PORCH

UNHEATED STORAGE

CANTILVER >18" ABOVE GRADE

DECKS >18" ABOVE GRADE

TOTAL LOT COVERAGE

TOTAL LOT COVERAGE IN %

CONVERT (UNHEATED) (E)

WORKSHOP TO LIVING RM

1ST FLOOR (ENCLOSED)

FLOOR AREA (UNHEATED)

GARAGE AREA (-225 SQFT)

PORCH AREA (MINUS 1ST

140 SQFT+ 1/2 OF ALL

COVERED PORCH)

FLOOR AREA RATIO

2ND FLOOR (ENCLOSED)

TOTALS

4
9

8
0

G
A

R
N

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

P
IT

O
L
A

,
C

A
9
5

0
1
0

ÍÝßÔÛ ïñèþã ïùóðþ

ïîóðéóïë

A A R O N R E S I D E N C E

4980 GARNET STREET CAPITOLA, CALIFORNIA 95010

SHEET NUMBER

ÐÔßÒ ÜßÌÛæ

Ü
ß

Ê
×Ü

ß
Ò

Ü
Ü

Û
Þ

ß
ß

Î
Ñ

Ò

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
E

M
O

D
E

L
:

ßï

A.P.N. 034-043-16

ÐÎÑÖÛÝÌ ÜÛÍÝÎ×ÐÌ×ÑÒæ

Ê×Ý×Ò×ÌÇ ÓßÐ

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

DEMOLISH (E) WEST STORAGE

ÒòÌòÍò

óïï ÍÏÚÌ

SUB TOTAL

ÝßÜØÑÓÛÍ ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ ÜÛÍ×ÙÒ

(E) WEST STORAGE é ÍÏÚÌ

ïè ÍÏÚÌ

ðíìóðìíóïê

ÍØÛÛÌ ×ÒÜÛÈ
ßï÷ ÝÑÊÛÎ ÍØÛÛÌô Í×ÌÛ ÐÔßÒô Ê×Ý×Ò×ÌÇ ÓßÐ

ßÎÛß ÝßÔÝËÔßÌ×ÑÒÍ

ßî÷ øÛ÷ ú øÐ÷ ïÍÌ ÚÔÑÑÎ ÐÔßÒ

ßí÷ øÛ÷ ú øÐ÷ îÒÜ ÚÔÑÑÎ ÐÔßÒ

ßì÷ øÛ÷ ú øÐ÷ ÛÔÛÊßÌ×ÑÒÍ

ßë÷ øÛ÷ ú øÐ÷ ÛÔÛÊßÌ×ÑÒÍ

ßê÷ ÜÎß×ÒßÙÛ ÐÔßÒ

ßé÷ ÐÎÑÐÑÍÛÜ í ÜùÍñÝÑÔÑÎ ÞÑßÎÜ

óïï ÍÏÚÌ

íîðð ÍÏÚÌ

ÐÎÑÖÛÝÌ ÜßÌßæ

ÐÎÑÖÛÝÌ ßÜÜÎÛÍÍæ
ìçèð ÙßÎÒÛÌ ÍÌÎÛÛÌ
ÝßÐ×ÌÑÔßô Ýß çëðïð

ßÍÍÛÍÍÑÎùÍ ÐßÎÝÛÔ ÒËÓÞÛÎæ
ðíìóðìíóïê

ÑÉÒÛÎ ÝÑÒÌßÝÌ ×ÒÚÑÎÓßÌ×ÑÒæ
ÜßÊ×Ê ú ÜÛÞ ßßÎÑÒ
ìçèð ÙßÎÒÛÌ ÍÌÎÛÛÌ
ìðèóíçêóïêíï
æ

ÐÎÑÖÛÝÌ
ÔÑÝßÌ×ÑÒ

ìêè ÍÏÚÌ

íçð ÍÏÚÌ ëð ÍÏÚÌ

íð ÍÏÚÌ

ïîêî ÍÏÚÌ óíïè ÍÏÚÌ

çìì ÍÏÚÌ

îçòëðû

íîðð ÍÏÚÌ

ìêè ÍÏÚÌ íð ÍÏÚÌ

>30"

èëè ÍÏÚÌ

DECK: (E) 386 SQFT- 228 SQFT= (P) 158 SQFT- 150 SQFT CREDIT= 8 SQFT

íçð ÍÏÚÌ

ÉòÝò ÎÑÑÓ

çé ÍÏÚÌïéîí ÍÏÚÌ

GARAGE

îð ÍÏÚÌ

ïèîð ÍÏÚÌ

ëêòèéû

íèê ÍÏÚÌ óîîè ÍÏÚÌ

ëð ÍÏÚÌ

ÙÎÙ ÍÌÑÎßÙÛ

ÐÎÑÐÑÍßÔ ÌÑ ÑÞÌß×Ò ß ÊßÎ×ßÒÝÛ ÌÑ ßÜÜ
ëù¨îîù ÑÒÌÑ ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ÝßÎÐÑÎÌ
ßÐÐÎÑÈ×ÓßÌÛÔÇ ê ÚÛÛÌ ×ÒÌÑ ÚÎÑÒÌ ÇßÎÜ
ÍÛÌÞßÝÕ ÎÛÍËÔÌ×ÒÙ ×Ò ß ììð ÍÏÚÌ îóÝßÎ
ÙßÎßÙÛò ÍÝÑÐÛ ÑÚ ÉÑÎÕ ÌÑ ×ÒÝÔËÜÛ ß
Õ×ÌÝØÛÒ ÎÛÓÑÜÛÔô ÔÑÉÛÎ ÞßÌØ
ÎÛÓÑÜÛÔñßÜÜ×Ì×ÑÒ ú ßÜÜ ÝÔÑÍÛÌ ×Ò ïÍÌ
ÚÔÑÑÎ ÍÑËÌØÉÛÍÌ ÞÛÜÎÑÑÓ

ÐÎÑÖÛÝÌ ÜÛÍÝÎ×ÐÌ×ÑÒæ

ÐÎÑÐÑÍßÔ ÌÑ ÑÞÌß×Ò ß ÊßÎ×ßÒÝÛ ÌÑ ßÜÜ
ëù¨îîù ÑÒÌÑ ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ÝßÎÐÑÎÌ
ßÐÐÎÑÈ×ÓßÌÛÔÇ ê ÚÛÛÌ ×ÒÌÑ ÚÎÑÒÌ ÇßÎÜ
ÍÛÌÞßÝÕ ÎÛÍËÔÌ×ÒÙ ×Ò ß ììð ÍÏÚÌ îóÝßÎ
ÙßÎßÙÛò ÍÝÑÐÛ ÑÚ ÉÑÎÕ ÌÑ ×ÒÝÔËÜÛ ß
Õ×ÌÝØÛÒ ÎÛÓÑÜÛÔô ÔÑÉÛÎ ÞßÌØ
ÎÛÓÑÜÛÔñßÜÜ×Ì×ÑÒ ú ßÜÜ ÝÔÑÍÛÌ ×Ò ïÍÌ
ÚÔÑÑÎ ÍÑËÌØÉÛÍÌ ÞÛÜÎÑÑÓ

Í×ÌÛ ÐÔßÒ

9.B.3

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
je

ct
 P

la
n

s 
 (

14
01

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



4040 4040

2
6

1
6

WH
UP

UP

UP

ëîð ¯ º¬

4
'-
6

"
7

'-
6

"

33'-0"

1
3

'-
0

"

2'-11"

4'-0"

3
'-

5
3

/4
"

2
0

'-
0

"

22'-0"

12'-9 1/2"

1
2

'-
7

1
/2

"

10'-0"

1
8

'-
0

"

ÙßÎßÙÛ

ØßÔÔ

ÎÛÓÑÊÛ øÛ÷
É×ÒÜÑÉ

ÝÔÑÍÛÌ

ÞÛÜÎÑÑÓ

ÞßÌØ

Ô×ÒÛ ÑÚ øÛ÷ ÙßÎßÙÛ
ÉßÔÔ ú ÉßÔÔ ßÞÑÊÛ

ËÌ×Ô×ÌÇ

ØßÔÔ

ÍÌ
Ñ

Î
ß

Ù
Û

ÝÔÑÍÛÌ

ÞÛÜÎÑÑÓ

ÜÛÝÕ

øÐ÷ ÜÛÝÕ ä íðþ ßÞÑÊÛ ÙÎßÜÛ

øÐ
÷

Ì
Î

Û
ÔÔ

×Í

ÍÌÑÎßÙÛ

øÛ÷ ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ

Ô×ÒÛ ÑÚ øÐ÷
ÜÛÝÕ ßÞÑÊÛ

ÍÌÑÎßÙÛ

Ô×Ê×ÒÙ ßÎÛß

ÜÛÝÕ

ÜÛÝÕ

UP

8
0

'-
0

"

40'-0"

8
0

'-
0

"

40'-0"

UP

ìêì ¯ º¬

7
'-
1

1
/4

"

1
4

'-
6

1
/2

"

10'-4"

1
0

'-
1

0
3

/4
"

26'-0"

1
8

'-
0

"

1
5

'-
0

"

12'-8 1/2"

3
3

'-
0

"

Ô×Ê×ÒÙ ßÎÛß

ÙßÎßÙÛ

ÝÔÑÍÛÌ

ÞÛÜÎÑÑÓ

ÎÛÓÑÊÛ øÛ÷
É×ÒÜÑÉ

øÛ÷ É×ÒÜÑÉá

ÝÔÑÍÛÌÞÛÜÎÑÑÓ

ÞßÌØ ØßÔÔ

ØßÔÔ

ÐÎÑÐÑÍÛÜ ÉßÔÔÍ

ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ÉßÔÔÍ

ßÔÌÛÎÛÜ ÉßÔÔÍ

ÉßÔÔ ÔÛÙÛÒÜ

ÌÑ ÞÛ ÎÛÓÑÊÛÜ

ëðè ÍßÒÌß ÓßÎÙËßÎ×Ìß ÜÎ×ÊÛ
ßÐÌÑÍô Ýß çëððí ÝÑÒÌßÝÌæ

ÐØÑÒÛ èíïóíìëóêèçî ÑÎ ÛÓß×Ôæ
ÝßÜØÑÓÛÍàÒÛÌÍÝßÐÛòÝÑÓ

ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ ÜÛÍ×ÙÒ
Ý ß Ü Ø Ñ Ó Û Í

4
9

8
0

G
A

R
N

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

P
IT

O
L
A

,
C

A
9
5

0
1
0

ïîóðéóïë

ßî

SHEET NUMBER

ÐÔßÒ ÜßÌÛæ

Ü
ß

Ê
×Ü

ß
Ò

Ü
Ü

Û
Þ

ß
ß

Î
Ñ

Ò

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
E

M
O

D
E

L
:

LINE OF

DECK ABOVE

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

REMOVE (E) 340 SQFT CONCRETE

SLAB & ADD (P) DECK

REMOVE (E)

STORAGE SQFT

scale 1/4"= 1'- 0"

ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ïÍÌ ÚÔÑÑÎ ÐÔßÒ
scale 1/4"= 1'- 0"

ÐÎÑÐÑÍÛÜ ïÍÌ ÚÔÑÑÎ ÐÔßÒ

9.B.3

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
je

ct
 P

la
n

s 
 (

14
01

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



DN

REF.

8
0
'-

0
"

40'-0"

8
0
'-

0
"

40'-0"

èïî ¯ º¬

26'-0"

6
'-
0

"

1
0

'-
0

"

23'-1 7/16"

9
'-

0
"

1
0

'-
0

"

ÑÐÛÒ ÞÛÔÑÉ

ÎÛÓÑÊÛ øÛ÷
É×ÒÜÑÉ

ÜÛÝÕ

ÎÛÓÑÊÛ øÛ÷
É×ÒÜÑÉ

Õ×ÌÝØÛÒ

ØßÔÔ

ÚßÓ×ÔÇ

ÞÛÜÎÑÑÓ

ÝÔÑÍÛÌ

ÞßÌØ

ÔßËÒÜÎÇ
ÎÛÓÑÊÛ øÛ÷

É×ÒÜÑÉ

ÜÛÝÕ

Ô×Ê×ÒÙ ßÎÛß

DN

3
0
3

0
3

0
3

0

4040

R
E

F
.

D
/W

èïî ¯ º¬

9'-4"

1
3

'-
0

"
1

4
'-
1

1
"

1
9

'-
1

"

4'-8"

18'-0"

5
'-
0

"

4'-0" 4'-0"

3
'-
4

"

10'-3 1/2"

16'-0"

1
0

'-
0

"

ÑÐÛÒ ÞÛÔÑÉ

ÎÛÓÑÊÛ øÛ÷
É×ÒÜÑÉ

ÎÛÓÑÊÛ øÛ÷ êù¨ìù

Õ×ÌÝØÛÒ

ØßÔÔ

ÞÛÜÎÑÑÓ

ÝÔÑÍÛÌ

ÞßÌØ

ÔßËÒÜÎÇ

ÎÛÓÑÊÛ øÛ÷
É×ÒÜÑÉ

Ô×ÒÛ ÑÚ ÜÛÝÕ ÞÛÔÑÉ

ÝÔÑÍÛÌÞßÌØ

ÚßÓ×ÔÇ

ÜÛÝÕ

ÐßÒÌÎÇ

ÜÛÝÕ

ÍÕÇÔÌ ÍÕÇÔÌ

ÍÕÇÔÌÍÕÇÔÌ

ÍÕÇÔÌ

Ô×Ê×ÒÙ ßÎÛß

ÐÎÑÐÑÍÛÜ ÉßÔÔÍ

ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ÉßÔÔÍ

ßÔÌÛÎÛÜ ÉßÔÔÍ

ÉßÔÔ ÔÛÙÛÒÜ

ÌÑ ÞÛ ÎÛÓÑÊÛÜ

ÒÑÌÛæ ÎÛÏË×ÎÛÜ Ó×Ò×ÓËÓ É×ÒÜÑÉ Í×ÆÛ ú
ÛÓÛÎÙÛÒÝÇ ÛÍÝßÐÛò îðïð ÝÎÝ Í»½¬·±² Îíïð
ÞßÍÛÓÛÒÌô ØßÞ×ÌßÞÔÛ ßÌÌ×ÝÍ ßÒÜ ÛÊÛÎÇ ÍÔÛÛÐ×ÒÙ ÎÑÑÓ
ÍØßÔÔ ØßÊÛ ßÌ ÔÛßÍÌ ÑÒÛ ÑÐÛÎßÞÔÛ É×ÒÜÑÉ ÑÎ ÜÑÑÎ
ßÐÐÎÑÊÛÜ ÚÑÎ ÛÓÛÎÙÛÒÝÇ ÛÍÝßÐÛ ÑÎ ÎÛÍÝËÛ ÌØßÌ ÍØßÔÔ
ÑÐÛÒ Ü×ÛÝÌÔÇ ×ÒÌÑ ß ÐËÞÔ×Ý ÍÌÎÛÛÌô ÐËÞÔ×Ý ßÔÔÛÇô ÇßÎÜ ÑÎ
ÛÈ×Ì ÝÑËÎÌò ÌØÛ ÛÓÛÎÙÛÒÝÇ ÜÑÑÎ ÑÎ É×ÒÜÑÉ ÍØßÔÔ ÞÛ
ÑÐÛÎßÞÔÛ ÚÎÑÓ ÌØÛ ×ÒÍ×ÜÛ ÌÑ ÐÎÑÊ×ÜÛ ß ÚËÔÔô ÝÔÛßÎ
ÑÐÛÒ×ÒÙ É×ÌØÑËÌ ÌØÛ ËÍÛ ÑÚ ÍÛÐßÎßÌÛ ÌÑÑÔÍò

¢ ÛÍÝßÐÛ ÑÎ ÎÛÍÝËÛ É×ÒÜÑÉÍ ÍØßÔÔ ØßÊÛ ß Ó×Ò×ÓËÓ ÒÛÌ
ÝÔÛßÎ ÑÐÛÒßÞÔÛ ßÎÛß ÑÚ ëòé ÍÏÚÌò

ø ÛÈÝÛÐÌ ßÌ ÙÎßÜÛ ÚÔÑÑÎô ÍØßÔÔ ØßÊÛ ß Ó×Ò×ÓËÓ ÒÛÌ
ÝÔÛßÎ ÑÐÛÒ×ÒÙ ÑÚ ë ÍÏÚÌ÷
¢ ÌØÛ Ó×Ò×ÓËÓ ÒÛÌ ÝÔÛßÎ ÑÐÛÒßÞÔÛ ØÛ×ÙØÌ Ü×ÓÛÒÍ×ÑÒ
ÍØßÔÔ ÞÛ îì ×ÒÝØÛÍò
¢ ÌØÛ Ó×Ò×ÓËÓ ÒÛÌ ÝÔÛßÎ ÑÐÛÒßÞÔÛ É×ÜÌØ Ü×ÓÛÒÍ×ÑÒ
ÍØßÔÔ ÞÛ îð ×ÒÝØÛÍò
¢ Ú×Ò×ÍØÛÜ Í×ÔÔ ØÛ×ÙØÌ ÍØßÔÔ ÒÑÌ ÞÛ ÓÑÎÛ ÌØßÒ ìì ×ÒÝØÛÍ
ßÞÑÊÛ ÌØÛ ÚÔÑÑÎò

ëðè ÍßÒÌß ÓßÎÙËßÎ×Ìß ÜÎ×ÊÛ
ßÐÌÑÍô Ýß çëððí ÝÑÒÌßÝÌæ

ÐØÑÒÛ èíïóíìëóêèçî ÑÎ ÛÓß×Ôæ
ÝßÜØÑÓÛÍàÒÛÌÍÝßÐÛòÝÑÓ

ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ ÜÛÍ×ÙÒ
Ý ß Ü Ø Ñ Ó Û Í

4
9

8
0

G
A

R
N

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

P
IT

O
L
A

,
C

A
9
5

0
1
0

ïîóðéóïë

scale 1/4"= 1'- 0"

ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ îÒÜ ÚÔÑÑÎ ÐÔßÒ
scale 1/4"= 1'- 0"

ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ îÒÜ ÚÔÑÑÎ ÐÔßÒ

SHEET NUMBER

ÐÔßÒ ÜßÌÛæ

Ü
ß

Ê
×Ü

ß
Ò

Ü
Ü

Û
Þ

ß
ß

Î
Ñ

Ò

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
E

M
O

D
E

L
:

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

ßí

9.B.3

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
je

ct
 P

la
n

s 
 (

14
01

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



î
î

ùó
ïï

þ

ëðè ÍßÒÌß ÓßÎÙËßÎ×Ìß ÜÎ×ÊÛ
ßÐÌÑÍô Ýß çëððí ÝÑÒÌßÝÌæ

ÐØÑÒÛ èíïóíìëóêèçî ÑÎ ÛÓß×Ôæ
ÝßÜØÑÓÛÍàÒÛÌÍÝßÐÛòÝÑÓ

ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ ÜÛÍ×ÙÒ
Ý ß Ü Ø Ñ Ó Û Í

4
9

8
0

G
A

R
N

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

P
IT

O
L
A

,
C

A
9
5

0
1
0

ïîóðéóïë

scale 1/4"= 1'- 0" scale 1/4"= 1'- 0"

ÐÎÑÐÑÍÛÜ ÒÑÎÌØ ÛÔÛÊßÌ×ÑÒÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ÒÑÎÌØ ÛÔÛÊßÌ×ÑÒ

scale 1/4"= 1'- 0"

ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ÛßÍÌ ÛÔÛÊßÌ×ÑÒ

SHEET NUMBER

ÐÔßÒ ÜßÌÛæ

scale 1/4"= 1'- 0" Ü
ß

Ê
×Ü

ß
Ò

Ü
Ü

Û
Þ

ß
ß

Î
Ñ

Ò

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
E

M
O

D
E

L
:

ÐÎÑÐÑÍÛÜ ÛßÍÌ ÛÔÛÊßÌ×ÑÒ

ßì

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

REQUIRED 2ND

FLOOR FIRE WALL

ASSEMBLY

9.B.3

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
je

ct
 P

la
n

s 
 (

14
01

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



ëðè ÍßÒÌß ÓßÎÙËßÎ×Ìß ÜÎ×ÊÛ
ßÐÌÑÍô Ýß çëððí ÝÑÒÌßÝÌæ

ÐØÑÒÛ èíïóíìëóêèçî ÑÎ ÛÓß×Ôæ
ÝßÜØÑÓÛÍàÒÛÌÍÝßÐÛòÝÑÓ

ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ ÜÛÍ×ÙÒ
Ý ß Ü Ø Ñ Ó Û Í

4
9

8
0

G
A

R
N

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

P
IT

O
L
A

,
C

A
9
5

0
1
0

ïîóðéóïë

SHEET NUMBER

ÐÔßÒ ÜßÌÛæ

Ü
ß

Ê
×Ü

ß
Ò

Ü
Ü

Û
Þ

ß
ß

Î
Ñ

Ò

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
E

M
O

D
E

L
:

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

REQUIRED 2ND

FLOOR FIRE WALL

ASSEMBLY

scale 1/4"= 1'- 0" scale 1/4"= 1'- 0"

ÐÎÑÐÑÍÛÜ ÉÛÍÌ ÛÔÛÊßÌ×ÑÒÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ÉÛÍÌ ÛÔÛÊßÌ×ÑÒ

scale 1/4"= 1'- 0" scale 1/4"= 1'- 0"

ÐÎÑÐÑÍÛÜ ÍÑËÌØ ÛÔÛÊßÌ×ÑÒÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ÍÑËÌØ ÛÔÛÊßÌ×ÑÒ

ßë

9.B.3

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
je

ct
 P

la
n

s 
 (

14
01

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



WH
UP

UP

UP

1
4

'-
1

"1
9

'-
1

"

2
8

'-
1

"

4'-8"

1
5

'-
8

"

3
0

'-
0

"

DS DS

DS

DS

G A R N E T S T R E E T

R/W 60'
C

Ô×ÒÛ ÑÚ øÛ÷
ÙßÎßÙÛ ÉßÔÔ ú

ÉßÔÔ ßÞÑÊÛ

(E) CURB
& GUTTER

(E
)

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

CONCRETE FILL
INDICATES (P) 267 SQFT
PERMEABLE PAVER
STAMPED CONCRETE

ÍòÞò

øÛ
÷

Úò
Ç

òÍ
òÞ

ò

øÐ
÷

Úò
Ç

òÍ
òÞ

ò
Ì

Ñ
Ù

ß
Ì

Û

øÛ
÷

ê
Ú

Ñ
Ñ

Ì
Î

Ü
É

Ü
Ú

Û
Ò

Ý
Û

øÛ
÷

ê
Ú

Ñ
Ñ

Ì
Î

Ü
É

Ü
Ú

Û
Ò

Ý
Û

øÛ
÷

ê
Ú

Ñ
Ñ

Ì
Î

Ü
É

Ü
Ú

Û
Ò

Ý
Û

øÛ÷ ê ÚÑÑÌ ÎÜÉÜ ÚÛÒÝÛ

è
ð

ù
Ð

òÔ
ò

ìðù ÐòÔò

ìðù ÐòÔò

è
ð

ù
Ð

òÔ
ò

ß
Ü

Ü
×Ì

×Ñ
Ò

Û
È

×Í
Ì

×Ò
Ù

øÐ÷ ÛÒÌÎÇ
ÉßÔÔ

øÛ÷ ÐÑÉÛÎ
ÐÑÔÛ

R
/W

ÒÑÌÛæ øÛ÷
ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ ÌÑ

ÎÛÓß×Ò

ßÒÙÔÛ ØßÌÝØ ×ÒÜ×ÝßÌÛÍ
îíë ÍÏÚÌ ×ÓÐÛÎÊ×ÑËÍ øÛ÷
ÝÑÒÝÎÛÌÛ ÌÑ ÎÛÓß×Ò

øÛ÷ ÎÑÝÕ
ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ

ØÑÎ×ÆÑÒÌßÔ ØßÌÝØ
×ÒÜ×ÝßÌÛÍ øÐ÷ ÐÛÎÓÛßÞÔÛ ìîç
ÍÏÚÌ ÜÛÝÕ ä íðþ ßÞÑÊÛ ÙÎßÜÛ

(E) MONUMENT

Î
òÇ

òÍ
òÞ

ò

Ô×ÒÛ ×ÒÜ×ÝßÌÛÍ ßÜÖßÝÛÒÌ
ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ ÚÑÑÌÐÎ×ÒÌ

Ô×ÒÛ ×ÒÜ×ÝßÌÛÍ
ßÜÖßÝÛÒÌ ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ

ÚÑÑÌÐÎ×ÒÌ

øÛ÷ ÍÌÑÎßÙÛ
ÌÑ ÞÛ

ÜÛÓÑÔ×ÍØÛÜ

ANGL HATCH INDICATES
IMPERVIOUS (E) 200
SQFT CONCRETE.

REPLACE w/ LANDSCAPE

øÛ÷

øÐ÷ Í×ÔÊÛÎ
ÞËÍØ

øÐ÷ ÓÛÈ
ÍßÙÛ

øÐ÷ ×ÒÝÎÛßÍÛ É×ÜÌØ ÑÚ
ÜñÉ ßÐÐÎÑßÝØ ÌÑ ïêù

øÛ÷ ïìù É×ÜÌØ ÑÚ ÜñÉ
ßÐÐÎÑßÝØ

ßÜÖßÝÛÒÌ øÛ÷ ïìù É×ÜÛ
ÜñÉ ßÐÐÎÑßÝØ

ßÜÖßÝÛÒÌ øÛ÷ îðù
É×ÜÛ ÜñÉ ßÐÐÎÑßÝØ

øÛ÷ ÉßÌÛÎ
ØÛßÌÛÎ ÎÑÑÓ

ÌÑ ÎÛÓß×Ò

øÛ÷ ÜÑÉÒÍÐÑËÌ Ü×ÍÝØßÎÙÛÍ
ÑÒÌÑ ß ÝÑÒÝò ÍÐÔßÍØ ÞÔÑÝÕ ú
Ü×ÍÐËÎÍÛÍ ×ÒÌÑ ÌØÛ ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ

øÛ÷

øÛ÷

øÛ÷

øÛ÷

øÛ÷

øÛ÷

ÒÑÌÛæ øÛ÷
ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ ÌÑ

ÎÛÓß×Ò

ANGLE HATCH INDICATES
IMPERVIOUS (E) 364 SQFT
DEMOLISHED CONCRETE

CROSS BOX
INDICATES (E) 60
SQFT LANDSCAPE
TO BE REMOVED

øÛ÷ ÜÑÉÒÍÐÑËÌ Ü×ÍÝØßÎÙÛÍ
ÑÒÌÑ ß ÝÑÒÝò ÍÐÔßÍØ ÞÔÑÝÕ ú
Ü×ÍÐËÎÍÛÍ ×ÒÌÑ ÌØÛ ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ

øÛ÷ ÜÑÉÒÍÐÑËÌ Ü×ÍÝØßÎÙÛÍ
ÑÒÌÑ ß ÝÑÒÝò ÉßÔÕÉßÇ ú

Ü×ÍÐËÎÍÛÍ ×ÒÌÑ ÌØÛ ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ

øÐ÷ ÜÑÉÒÍÐÑËÌ Ü×ÍÝØßÎÙÛÍ
ÑÒÌÑ ß ÝÑÒÝò ÍÐÔßÍØ ÞÔÑÝÕ ú
Ü×ÍÐËÎÍÛÍ ×ÒÌÑ ÌØÛ ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ

ìæïî ÍÔÑÐÛ

øÐ
÷

Ú
òÇ

òÍ
òÞ

ò
Ì

Ñ
Ù

ß
Î

ß
Ù

Û

øÛ÷ ÜÑÉÒÍÐÑËÌ Ü×ÍÝØßÎÙÛÍ
ÑÒÌÑ ß ÝÑÒÝò ÉßÔÕÉßÇ ú

Ü×ÍÐËÎÍÛÍ ×ÒÌÑ ÌØÛ ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ

ìæïî ÍÔÑÐÛ

ìæïî ÍÔÑÐÛ ìæïî ÍÔÑÐÛ

ïþ ÝÎÑÉÒ ×Ò ÜÎ×ÊÛÉßÇò
Ü×ÎÛÝÌ ÍØÛÛÌ ÚÔÑÉ ÎËÒó
ÑÚÚ ÑÒ ÌÑ ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛ à
ÛßÝØ Í×ÜÛ ÑÚ ÜÎ×ÊÛÉßÇ

ÒßÌËÎßÔ ÙÎßÜÛ

ÜÎ×ÊÛÉßÇ ÍØßÔÔ ÞÛ Ó×Òòíòëþ
ÝÑÒÝÎÛÌÛ É×ÌØ ëþ ÑÚ ÝÔßÍÍ î
ßÙÙÎÛÙßÌÛ ÞßÍÛ ÞÛÔÑÉ

ÜÎ×ÊÛÉßÇ ÝÎÑÍÍ ÍÛÝÌ×ÑÒ ÒÑ ÍÝßÔÛ

DS

ÜÎß×ÒßÙÛ ÔÛÙÛÒÜ

ÐÎÑÐÛÎÌÇ Ô×ÒÛ

ÒÑÌÛæßÔÔ ÜÑÉÒÍÐÑËÌÍ ÍØßÔÔ
Ü×ÍÝØßÎÙÛ ÑÒÌÑ ÝÑÒÝÎÛÌÛ ÍÐÔßÍØ
ÞÔÑÝÕÍ ßÒÜ ÐÛÎÓÛßÌÛ ×ÒÌÑ ÔßÒÜÍÝßÐÛò

ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ú Ú×ÒßÔ
ÜÎß×ÒßÙÛ ÐßÌÌÛÎÒ

ÐÎÑÐÑÍÛÜ ÐÛÎÓÛßÞÔÛ
ÝÑÒÝÎÛÌÛ ÜÎ×ÊÛÉßÇ

ëðè ÍßÒÌß ÓßÎÙËßÎ×Ìß ÜÎ×ÊÛ
ßÐÌÑÍô Ýß çëððí ÝÑÒÌßÝÌæ

ÐØÑÒÛ èíïóíìëóêèçî ÑÎ ÛÓß×Ôæ
ÝßÜØÑÓÛÍàÒÛÌÍÝßÐÛòÝÑÓ

ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ ÜÛÍ×ÙÒ
Ý ß Ü Ø Ñ Ó Û Í

4
9

8
0

G
A

R
N

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

P
IT

O
L
A

,
C

A
9
5

0
1
0

ïîóðéóïë

SHEET NUMBER

ÐÔßÒ ÜßÌÛæ

ßê

Ü
ß

Ê
×Ü

ß
Ò

Ü
Ü

Û
Þ

ß
ß

Î
Ñ

Ò

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
E

M
O

D
E

L
:

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

9.B.3

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
je

ct
 P

la
n

s 
 (

14
01

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



ëðè ÍßÒÌß ÓßÎÙËßÎ×Ìß ÜÎ×ÊÛ
ßÐÌÑÍô Ýß çëððí ÝÑÒÌßÝÌæ

ÐØÑÒÛ èíïóíìëóêèçî ÑÎ ÛÓß×Ôæ
ÝßÜØÑÓÛÍàÒÛÌÍÝßÐÛòÝÑÓ

ÞË×ÔÜ×ÒÙ ÜÛÍ×ÙÒ
Ý ß Ü Ø Ñ Ó Û Í

4
9

8
0

G
A

R
N

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

P
IT

O
L
A

,
C

A
9
5

0
1
0

ïîóðéóïë

ÝÑÔÑÎÍ ú ÓßÌÛÎ×ßÔÍ

SHEET NUMBER

ÐÔßÒ ÜßÌÛæ

Ü
ß

Ê
×Ü

ß
Ò

Ü
Ü

Û
Þ

ß
ß

Î
Ñ

Ò

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
E

M
O

D
E

L
:

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

A.P.N. 034-043-16

ï÷ ÞÑÜÇ ÝÑÔÑÎæ Ô×ÙØÌ ÚÎÛÒÝØ ÞÔËÛ

î÷ ÌÎ×Ó ÝÑÔÑÎæ ÐËÎÛ ÉØ×ÌÛ

í÷ ÑÙÛÛ ÙËÌÌÛÎæ ÜÑÊÛÎ ÉØ×ÌÛ

ì÷ ÎÑÑÚ×ÒÙæ øÛ÷ ÙÎßÇ ÝÔßÍÍ ùÞù ÝÑÓÐ ÍØ×ÒÙÔÛÍ

ë÷ ÚÎÑÒÌ ÜÑÑÎæ ÓßØÑÙßÒÇ ÍÌß×ÒÛÜ ÉÑÑÜ

ê÷ É×ÒÜÑÉÍæ ÉØ×ÌÛ Ê×ÒÇÔ Ó×ÔÙËßÎÜ

é÷ ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ÚÛÒÝÛæ ËÒÌÎÛßÌÛÜ ÎÛÜÉÑÑÜ

è÷ ÎÑÝÕ ÐÑÍÌ ÞßÍÛæ ÝÑËÒÌÎÇ ÔÛÜÙÛÍÌÑÒÛ

ç÷ ÜÛÝÕ Îß×Ô×ÒÙæ ì¨ì ÎÜÉÜ ÐÑÍÌÍ ©ñ ÝßÞÔÛ ÞßÔËÍÌÎßÜÛ

ïð÷ Í×ÜÛ ú ÎÛßÎ ÜÛÝÕ Îß×Ô×ÒÙÍæ ì¨ì ÎÜÉÜ ÐÑÍÌ ©ñ î¨î ÞßÔËÍÌÎßÜÛ

ïï÷ ÓßÌÝØ ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ Ìïóïï Ú×Î Í×Ü×ÒÙ

ßé
ÛÈ×ÍÌ×ÒÙ ÒÛ×ÙØÞÑÎØÑÑÜ ÍÛÌÞßÝÕÍ

9.B.3

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
je

ct
 P

la
n

s 
 (

14
01

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

er
m

is
si

b
le

 S
tr

u
ct

u
ra

l A
lt

er
at

io
n

s 
C

al
cu

la
ti

o
n

  (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 a

n
d

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 A

p
p

ea
l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

er
m

is
si

b
le

 S
tr

u
ct

u
ra

l A
lt

er
at

io
n

s 
C

al
cu

la
ti

o
n

  (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 a

n
d

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 A

p
p

ea
l)



9.B.5

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

lic
an

t's
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 R
eq

u
es

t 
 (

14
01

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



9.B.5

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

lic
an

t's
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 R
eq

u
es

t 
 (

14
01

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



9.B.5

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

lic
an

t's
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 R
eq

u
es

t 
 (

14
01

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



9.B.5

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

lic
an

t's
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 R
eq

u
es

t 
 (

14
01

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



9.B.5

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

lic
an

t's
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 R
eq

u
es

t 
 (

14
01

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



City of Capitola Planning Department
February 4, 2016 Meeting

Design Permit and Variance request for 4980 Garnet Street
David and Deb Aaron

Photo from Caldarella letter, page 4 (cropped)

9.B.6

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

lic
an

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 2

-4
-1

6 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 H

ea
ri

n
g

  (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n



Before After

9.B.6

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

lic
an

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 2

-4
-1

6 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 H

ea
ri

n
g

  (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n



Before After

9.B.6

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

lic
an

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 2

-4
-1

6 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 H

ea
ri

n
g

  (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n



Before After

9.B.6

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

lic
an

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 2

-4
-1

6 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 H

ea
ri

n
g

  (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n



Before After

P
h

o
to

 f
ro

m
 C

al
d

ar
el

la
le

tt
e

r,
 p

ag
e 

5
 

9.B.6

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

lic
an

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 2

-4
-1

6 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 H

ea
ri

n
g

  (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n



P
h

o
to

 f
ro

m
 C

al
d

ar
el

la
le

tt
er

, p
ag

e 
5

Before After

9.B.6

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

lic
an

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 2

-4
-1

6 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 H

ea
ri

n
g

  (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n



Before After

P
h

o
to

 f
ro

m
 C

al
d

ar
el

la
le

tt
er

, p
ag

e 
7

9.B.6

Packet Pg. 130

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

lic
an

t 
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 2

-4
-1

6 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 H

ea
ri

n
g

  (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n



Property with a front yard setback less than 15ft

Garnet Street

152547554725
4675

4610 4650 4670 4760 4810

4955
5005

5080

9.B.7

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

ei
g

h
b

o
rh

o
o

d
 S

et
b

ac
k 

S
u

rv
ey

  (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 a

n
d

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 A

p
p

ea
l)



1525 49th Avenue – 3 ft

4610 Garnet Street – 14 ft

9.B.7

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

ei
g

h
b

o
rh

o
o

d
 S

et
b

ac
k 

S
u

rv
ey

  (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 a

n
d

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 A

p
p

ea
l)



4650 Garnet Street – 8 ft 

4670 Garnet Street – 8 ft

9.B.7

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

ei
g

h
b

o
rh

o
o

d
 S

et
b

ac
k 

S
u

rv
ey

  (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 a

n
d

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 A

p
p

ea
l)



4675 Garnet Street – 12 ft 

4725 Garnet Street – 11 ft 

9.B.7

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

ei
g

h
b

o
rh

o
o

d
 S

et
b

ac
k 

S
u

rv
ey

  (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 a

n
d

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 A

p
p

ea
l)



4755 Garnet Street – 10 feet 

4760 Garnet Street – 10 ft 

9.B.7

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

ei
g

h
b

o
rh

o
o

d
 S

et
b

ac
k 

S
u

rv
ey

  (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 a

n
d

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 A

p
p

ea
l)



4810 Garnet Street – 13 ft

4955 Garnet Street – 13 ft 

9.B.7

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

ei
g

h
b

o
rh

o
o

d
 S

et
b

ac
k 

S
u

rv
ey

  (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 a

n
d

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 A

p
p

ea
l)



5005 Garnet Street – 4 ft 

5080 Garnet Street – 11 ft

9.B.7

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

ei
g

h
b

o
rh

o
o

d
 S

et
b

ac
k 

S
u

rv
ey

  (
14

01
 :

 4
98

0 
G

ar
n

et
 S

t 
D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 a

n
d

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 A

p
p

ea
l)



9.B.8

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

ea
l L

et
te

r 
 (

14
01

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



9.B.8

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

ea
l L

et
te

r 
 (

14
01

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



9.B.8

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

ea
l L

et
te

r 
 (

14
01

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



9.B.8

Packet Pg. 141

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

ea
l L

et
te

r 
 (

14
01

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



9.B.8

Packet Pg. 142

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

ea
l L

et
te

r 
 (

14
01

 :
 4

98
0 

G
ar

n
et

 S
t 

D
es

ig
n

 P
er

m
it

 a
n

d
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 A
p

p
ea

l)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF APRIL 14, 2016

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Consider a Wharf House Lease Extension 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Give staff direction on the terms of the Wharf House Lease 
Extension and whether to prepare a competitive proposal process for the facility.

BACKGROUND: The City owns the restaurant facility on the wharf which is currently being 
leased to Willie Case for use as the Wharf House Restaurant. The current lease expires on May 
10, 2016. The City has leased the restaurant facility to Mr. Case since 2001 and extended the 
original lease for five years in 2011.

DISCUSSION: Staff would like direction on whether Council would like to extend the lease with 
the current lessee for another five-year term with an option for an additional five-year term. 
Alternatively, the City could initiate a competitive process and request proposals for the use of 
the facility and extend the current lease for one additional year until May 2017.

FISCAL IMPACT: Current monthly lease for the restaurant is $3,683.95.

Report Prepared By:  Larry Laurent
Assistant to the City Manager

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

9.C

Packet Pg. 143


	Agenda Packet
	REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	A. Roll Call

	2. PRESENTATIONS
	A. Introduction of Police Officers
	Printout: Introduction of Police Officers


	3. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
	A. Item 9.B. Public Communications regarding Design Permit for 4980 Garnet Street
	Attachment: Item 9.B. Public Communications regarding Design Permit for 4980 Garnet Street


	4. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA
	5. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	6. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS
	7. REPORT FROM CITY REPRESENTATIVES TO REGIONAL BOARDS / COMMISSIONS
	8. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A. Approval of City Council Minutes
	Printout: Approval of City Council Minutes
	1. Draft March 24, 2016, City Council Minutes

	B. Planning Commission Action Minutes 3/17/16 & 3/31/16
	Printout: Planning Commission Action Minutes 3/17/16 & 3/31/16
	1. Planning Commission Special Hearing Minutes March 17, 2016
	2. Planning Commission Special Hearing Minutes March 31, 2016

	C. Rosedale Area Paving Award of Contract
	Printout: Rosedale Area Paving Award of Contract
	1. Rosedale Paving Bid Summary

	D. Stockton and Esplanade Improvement Project CCO No. 1
	Printout: Stockton and Esplanade Improvement Project CCO No. 1
	1. Stockton and Esplanade CCO No 1
	2. Budget Amendment

	E. Zoning Code Update Professional Service Agreement Contract
	Printout: Zoning Code Update Professional Service Agreement Contract
	1. Ben Noble Urban and Regional Planning Proposal
	2. Standard Agreement Form - Zoning Code Update
	3. Sole Source Purchase Memo


	9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
	A. Wharf Condition Report
	Printout: Wharf Condition Report
	1. Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Resilency Study
	2. Wharf Widening Study Proposal

	B. 4980 Garnet St Design Permit and Variance Appeal
	Printout: 4980 Garnet St Design Permit and Variance Appeal
	1. Planning Commission 2-4-16 minutes
	2. Planning Commission 2-4-16 Staff Report
	3. Project Plans
	4. Permissible Structural Alterations Calculation
	5. Applicant's Variance Request
	6. Applicant Presentation 2-4-16 Planning Commission Hearing
	7. Neighborhood Setback Survey
	8. Appeal Letter

	C. Wharf House Lease Extension
	Printout: Wharf House Lease Extension


	10. ADJOURNMENT

	Appendix
	2.A · Introduction of Police Officers
	3.A · Item 9.B. Public Communications regarding Design Permit for 4980 Garnet Street
	8.A · Approval of City Council Minutes
	8.A.1 · Draft March 24, 2016, City Council Minutes

	8.B · Planning Commission Action Minutes 3/17/16 & 3/31/16
	8.B.1 · Planning Commission Special Hearing Minutes March 17, 2016
	8.B.2 · Planning Commission Special Hearing Minutes March 31, 2016

	8.C · Rosedale Area Paving Award of Contract
	8.C.1 · Rosedale Paving Bid Summary

	8.D · Stockton and Esplanade Improvement Project CCO No. 1
	8.D.1 · Stockton and Esplanade CCO No 1
	8.D.2 · Budget Amendment

	8.E · Zoning Code Update Professional Service Agreement Contract
	8.E.1 · Ben Noble Urban and Regional Planning Proposal
	8.E.2 · Standard Agreement Form - Zoning Code Update
	8.E.3 · Sole Source Purchase Memo

	9.A · Wharf Condition Report
	9.A.1 · Capitola Wharf Condition Assessment and Resilency Study
	9.A.2 · Wharf Widening Study Proposal

	9.B · 4980 Garnet St Design Permit and Variance Appeal
	9.B.1 · Planning Commission 2-4-16 minutes
	9.B.2 · Planning Commission 2-4-16 Staff Report
	9.B.3 · Project Plans
	9.B.4 · Permissible Structural Alterations Calculation
	9.B.5 · Applicant's Variance Request
	9.B.6 · Applicant Presentation 2-4-16 Planning Commission Hearing
	9.B.7 · Neighborhood Setback Survey
	9.B.8 · Appeal Letter

	9.C · Wharf House Lease Extension


